
 
 
 

 

 
Agenda 

 
 
 
 
 

General Purposes Licensing 
Committee 
 
 
 

Date: Wednesday 19 October 2011 

Time: To follow Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee 

Place: Oxford Town Hall 

 
For any further information please contact:  

Mathew Metcalfe 

Telephone: 01865 252214 

Email: mmetcalfe@oxford.gov.uk 

 
 
 



 

 

HOW TO OBTAIN AGENDA 

 

In order to reduce the use of resources, our carbon footprint and our costs we will no longer produce 
paper copies of agenda over and above our minimum internal and Council member requirement. 
Paper copies may be looked at the Town Hall Reception and at Customer Services, St Aldate’s and 
at the Westgate Library 

 

A copy of the agenda may be:- 

- Viewed on our website – mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Downloaded from our website 

- Subscribed to electronically by registering online at mycouncil.oxford.gov.uk 

- Sent to you in hard copy form upon payment of an annual subscription. 

 

 

 
 

General Purposes Licensing Committee 
 

Membership 
 
 
Chair Councillor Clark Brundin North; 

 
Vice-Chair Councillor Colin Cook Jericho and Osney; 

 
 Councillor Jim Campbell St. Margaret's; 

 Councillor Mary Clarkson Marston; 

 Councillor Van Coulter Barton and Sandhills; 

 Councillor John Goddard Wolvercote; 

 Councillor Michael Gotch Wolvercote; 

 Councillor Bryan Keen Cowley; 

 Councillor Gwynneth Royce St. Margaret's; 

 Councillor David Williams Iffley Fields; 

 
 



 
  

 

 

 

AGENDA 
 
 
  Pages 

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

 

 The Quroum for this meeting is 4. 

 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Councillors serving on the Committee are asked to declare any personal or 
prejudicial interests they may have in any of the following agenda items. 

 

 

3 UPDATE ON TAXI LICENSING ACTIVITY APRIL 2011- AUGUST 
2011 
 

1 - 6 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report which 
details the progress made by the Taxi Licensing Function between April 2011 
and August 2011. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) To note the contents of the report; 
 
(b) To make comments and recommendations regarding the future work 

of the Taxi Licensing Function. 

 

 

4 CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION IN LICENSED VEHICLES - 
CONDITIONS TO BE ATTACHED TO HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 
PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES 
 

7 - 8 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report which seeks 
approval for the attachment of additional conditions to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle licences in relation to CCTV. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) To approve the implementation of the attached additional conditions 

(as set out in Appendix 1 of this report) to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle licences in relation to the installation, operation 
and maintenance of CCTV systems; 

 
(b) To delegate the to the Head of Environmental Development and the 

Head of Law and Governance to make any necessary textual 
changes to the proposed conditions. 

 

 

5 DRAFT SEX ESTABLISHMENT LICENSING POLICY 
 

9 - 52 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report which seeks  



 
  

 

 

to create a policy that sets out Oxford City Council’s framework for the 
regulation of Sex Establishments in Oxford. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) Consider the draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy based on the 

document appended to this report;  
 
(b) Consider whether or not to set a limit on the “appropriate number of 

sex establishments; 
 
(c) Agree any amendments to the draft Sex Establishment Licensing 

Policy or otherwise depending upon whether to set a limit on the 
appropriate number of sex establishments; and; 

   
(d) Agree the consultation programme as set out in this report; and 
 
(e) Request that the Head of Environmental Development submit a 

further report following the consultation or should the Committee wish 
for a limit to be set on the “appropriate number” of sex 
establishments, that following consultation at Area Fora, the 
“appropriate numbers be submitted to the Head of Environmental 
Development and the draft policy be amended accordingly, and a 
further report be submitted detailing the limit to be set on the 
“appropriate number” of sex establishments and included in the draft 
policy and a revised consultation period. 

 
 

6 HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGES - CONSULTATION 
 

53 - 116 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report which asks 
the Committee to consider the responses to the consultation regarding Horse 
Drawn Carriages. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) Consider the responses received during the consultation regarding 

Horse Drawn carriages; and  
 
(b) Determine whether to either 
 

(i) Proceed with the implementation of the Horse Drawn Carriage 
scheme. 

 
(ii) Recommend Council to make the approved byelaws. 

 
(iii)  Subject to the making of the approved byelaws by Council 

authorise the Head of Law and Governance and Head of 
Environment Development to carry out the necessary statutory 
procedures. 

 
  OR 

 
(iv) Not to proceed with implementation of the horse drawn 

carriage scheme.  

 



 
  

 

 

 
 

7 HACKNEY CARRIAGE UNMET DEMAND SURVEY 
 

117 - 126 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report which 
informs the Committee of the requirement for a new “unmet demand survey” 
of Hackney Carriage vehicles, if the regulated number of Hackney Carriage 
vehicles is to be maintained. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) Determine whether it is minded to recommend Council maintain a 

regulated number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses as set out in 
the Council’s Policy Framework; and 

 
(b) If minded to recommend Council to maintain a regulated number of 

Hackney Carriage vehicles, to authorise the Head of Environmental 
Development to tender for a new unmet demand survey to be carried 
out in 2012 following the guidelines set by the Department of. 

 
 

 

8 DESIGNATION OF STREETS FOR STREET TRADING - 
CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 

127 - 148 

 The Head of Environmental Development has submitted a report the purpose 
of which is to report back on the responses to the public consultation on the 
proposal to designate all street in Oxford City as Consent streets for the 
purposes of Street Trading. 
 
The Committee is asked: 
 
(a) To consider responses to the consultation, 
 
(b) To resolve to recommend that Council designates all streets within 

the Oxford City Council boundary as Consent Streets for the purposes 
of the Street Trading Scheme with effect from 1st April 2012, 

 
(c) To remove the designation of the Covered Market Walkways, the 

Clarendon Centre Walkways and the Westgate Centre Walkways, 
 
(d) To request the Head of Environmental Development to include a fee 

for  daytime trading for sites outside the City centre and for 
community / charitable events in the review of fees and charges for 
2011/12. 

 
 

 

9 MINUTES 
 

149 - 152 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 15th June 2011. 

 
 

10 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS  



 
  

 

 

 

 The Committee is asked to note that it will meet on the following dates at the 
Town Hall: 
 
Wednesday 22nd February 2012 

 

 

 



 

 

 
DECLARING INTERESTS 
 
What is a personal interest? 
 
You have a personal interest in a matter if that matter affects the well-being or financial 
position of you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close personal association 
more than it would affect the majority of other people in the ward(s) to which the matter 
relates. 
 
A personal interest can affect you, your relatives or people with whom you have a close 
personal association positively or negatively.  If you or they would stand to lose by the 
decision, you should also declare it. 
 
You also have a personal interest in a matter if it relates to any interests, which you must 
register. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a personal interest? 
 
You must declare it when you get to the item on the agenda headed “Declarations of 
Interest” or as soon as it becomes apparent to you. You may still speak and vote unless it is 
a prejudicial interest. 
 
If a matter affects a body to which you have been appointed by the authority, or a body 
exercising functions of a public nature, you only need declare the interest if you are going to 
speak on the matter. 
 
What is a prejudicial interest? 
 
You have a prejudicial interest in a matter if; 
 
a)  a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would reasonably think your 

personal interest is so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the 
public interest; and 

 
b) the matter affects your financial interests or relates to a licensing or regulatory 

matter; and 
 
c) the interest does not fall within one of the exempt categories at paragraph 10(2)(c) of 

the Code of Conduct. 
 
What do I need to do if I have a prejudicial interest? 
 
If you have a prejudicial interest you must withdraw from the meeting.  However, under 
paragraph 12(2) of the Code of Conduct, if members of the public are allowed to make 
representations, give evidence or answer questions about that matter, you may also make 
representations as if you were a member of the public.  However, you must withdraw from 
the meeting once you have made your representations and before any debate starts. 



 

 

 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 
                                                                                     
 
To:  General Purposes Licensing Committee  
  
Date:  19 October 2011        Item No:  
  
Report of:   Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report:  Update on Taxi Licensing Activity  

April 2011 – August 2011 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To inform Committee of the progress made by the 
Taxi Licensing Function between April 2011 and August 2011.   
  
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield 
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s):   
The Committee is recommended to: 
(i) note the contents of the report, and 
(ii) make comments and recommendations regarding the future work of 
the Taxi Licensing Function. 

 
 
Introduction 
 
1. This report informs Committee of progress made by the Taxi Licensing 

Function under the duties of the Town & Police Clauses Act 1847 and 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 between 
April 2011 – August 2011.   

 
2. The report covers data on service volumes; details of Taxi Licensing 

hearing decisions; decisions made under delegated powers; information 
on volumes of drivers and vehicles and enforcement activity. 

 
3. The tables below provide data on licence applications received and 

processed during the period for April 2011 to August 2011.  

 

Agenda Item 3

1



 

 

 
 
Applications Granted by the Licensing Authority 
 
4. A hearing is not required where an application has been lawfully made 

and no adverse information pertaining to the “fitness” of a person or 
vehicle to be licensed by this Authority has been found.  There have 
been 294 driver, 350 vehicle, and 12 Operator licenses issued by the 
Head of Environmental Development under delegated authority during 
the period April 2011 – August 2011. 

 
Hackney Carriage & Private Hire Licensing Sub-Committee Hearings 
 
5. When adverse information pertaining to the “fitness” of a person or 

vehicle to be licensed by this Authority has been found then the 
application is determined at a Sub-Committee Hearing.   

 
6. During April 2011 – August 2011, 20 Hearings were held to determine 

the fitness of new applicants and existing applicants (including those 
who whilst in possession of a licence had been deemed to not be 
considered a “fit and proper” as detailed in the Policy on the Relevance 
of Offences, Cautions and Convictions). The results of the Hearings are 
shown in the table below: 

 

 Granted Refused Suspended Revoked 

New Driver 10 4   

Existing Driver 2 0 1 2 

New Operator 1 0   

Licences Issued 
Total 

Apr 11 – Aug 11 

Hackney Carriage Driver 135 

Private Hire Driver 279 

Hackney Carriage Vehicle 61 

Private Hire Vehicle 289 

Private Hire Operator 12 

Actions Undertaken 
Total 

Apr 11 – Aug 11 

Licensing Hearings 28 

Enforcement Actions 76 

Number of Prosecutions 0 

Complaints about Drivers / Vehicles 49 

2



 

 

Appeals  
 
7. The Licensing Authority received an application for appeal regarding the 

decision made by the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Sub-
Committee to revoke the licence of a Private Hire Driver, and this appeal 
is pending.  

 
Prosecutions 
 
8.  During the period April 2011 – August 2011, no prosecutions were 

undertaken, however 5 Formal Cautions were issued for the offences of 
plying for hire and driving without the correct insurance in place.  

 
Enforcement Activity 
 
9. Between April 2011 and August 2011, the Licensing Team has issued: 
 

• 25 Advisory Warnings 

• 24 Verbal Warnings  

• 14  Written Warning 

• 6 Final Warnings 

• 6 (5 driver, 1 vehicle) Suspensions 

• 5 Formal Cautions 
 
The majority of advisory warnings were issued due to minor breaches of 
driver / vehicle licence conditions i.e. failure to display Operator stickers, 
failure to have badge on display, minor cosmetic defects to vehicles. 
Other issues found that resulted in higher levels of warnings were non-
declaration of convictions on applications, excessive penalty points on 
DVLA driving licences, aggressive behaviour, poor driving standards, 
failures to comply with reasonable requests from the Licensing Officers, 
failures to adequately maintain a licensed vehicle, and repetitive failures 
to adhere to standard driver and vehicle conditions that called in to 
question the licence holders suitability in line with this Authority’s criteria 
of a Fit and Proper person as defined in the Policy on the Relevence of 
Offences, Cautions and Convicitons which states:  
 
Fit and Proper Person: A person who is of no threat to the general 
public, has a good City knowledge, is healthy, is of a good character 
(including driving record) and is therefore deemed fit and able to hold a 
licence. 
 

10. Suspensions were issued to drivers when intelligence was provided by 
the Police who recommended that the individual may pose a threat to 
public safety, following the individuals being arrested for alleged violent 
or sexual offences. The suspension of a vehicle was initiated by Officers 
who witnessed a licensed vehicle in a poor state of repair. Further details 
of all of the suspension notices issued can be provided to individual 
Members if so requested. 

 

3



 

 

11. An “advisory warning” is specifically issued to help educate licensed 
drivers who are new to the responsibilities of being a member of the taxi 
fraternity, or when there is some element of reasonable doubt between 
the version of events reported by the complainant and the licensed 
driver.  

 
12. Due to the increased enforcement activities, and the need to find a 

quicker solution to remedying minor issues found during compliance 
checks, on the spot advice is also given to drivers, and recorded on the 
drivers record as an “advisory warning” at the office. Such advice related 
mostly to drivers not having their drivers badge on display, not having 
their record book in the vehicle, and minor matters relating to the 
cosmetic condition of the vehicle. With proposed changes to the 
legislation governing Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing, fixed 
penalty notices may be implemented at a future date to deter licence 
holders from failing to uphold the conditions of their licence and to 
promote “best practice”. The role of the Licensing Authority is to ensure 
the licensed trade is “fit and proper” to service the general public. 

 
13. A “Verbal, Written or Final” warning” is issued when the complaint has 

been substantiated beyond reasonable doubt  or the alleged offence has 
been proven against the licensee, and is deemed to either be serious 
enough to warrant enforcement action of a higher level than an 
“advisory” letter, or the pattern of conduct by the licensee over any 
period of time has resulted in a “warning” being the next procedural level 
of action required. Such “warnings” rise in level, and their definitions can 
be found in the Policy on the Relevance of Offences, Cautions and 
Convictions (as adopted by Council). 

 
14. Members should note that the new procedures are now in place 

following Council’s adoption of the Policy on the Relevance of Offences, 
Cautions and Convictions. This has resulted in a significant increase in 
cases being referred to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Sub-Committee. 

 
15. Between April 2011 and August 2011, 3 taped interviews under Police & 

Criminal Evidence Act were carried out, either for the suspected offence 
of plying for hire, or other suspected criminal offences following 
information supplied by Thames Valley Police (i.e. violent offences). It 
should be noted that cases involving suspended drivers, are left to the 
Police and Courts to resolve, and upon such resolution, the matter then 
referred to the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Sub-
Committee. 

 
16.  Resulting from the above PACE interviews were: 

 

•          3 formal cautions issued for plying for hire,  
 

• 2 formal cautions issued for driving whilst uninsured 
 

 

4



 

 

Nightsafe 
 
17. The NightSafe initiative contributes to the taxi licensing objectives. This 

includes intelligence sharing and has led to the Taxi Licensing 
Enforcement Officers being able to view late night taxi activity in a 
number of locations by arrangement with the CCTV Manager. This 
benefits the enforcement of licensed drivers and vehicles as it can reveal 
unprofessional conduct by the licensed trade in the City at night, and can 
act as a check or deterrent. 

 
Future Work 
 
18. The Licensing Team will be relocating to St. Aldate’s Chambers in March 

2012, and has been very active in the Offices For The Future 
Programme. The Taxi Licensing function has now become almost totally 
electronic and virtually paperless, thus significantly reducing the volume 
of low-level service requests and creating significant efficiency savings. 

 
19. Minor revisions are planned to the Policy on the Relevance of Offences, 

Cautions and Convictions; and amendments to and updating of the 
conditions and regulations applicable to drivers, vehicles and operators 
will be drafted. The completed works will be brought to the Committee 
for approval in January 2012, in order to be able to proceed as expected 
from 1st April 2012. Members continued involvement in this process is 
welcomed. 

 
20. The Local Government Association is working with the Coalition 

Government and the Institute of Licensing to modernise the legislation 
regarding the licensing of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers, 
vehicles and operators. It is expected that should such modernisation 
take place and be approved, that Oxford City Council will be able to 
implement the previously reported “Fixed Penalty Notices” as an addition 
to our current enforcement actions. 

 
 
Name and contact details of author:  Julian Alison 
      Licensing Team Leader 
              Tel: (01865) 252381 
                        Email: jalison@oxford.gov.uk 
Background papers:  
 
Version: 1.0 

5



6

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 
 
To: General Purposes Licensing Committee  
 
Date: 19 October 2011     Item No:     

 
Report of:   Head of Environmental Development    
 
Title of Report:  Closed Circuit Television in Licensed Vehicles – 

Conditions to be attached to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicles 

  

Summary and Recommendations 
 
Purpose of report:   To seek approval from the Committee for the 
attachment of additional Conditions to be attached to Hackney Carriage 
and Private Hire Vehicle licences in relation to CCTV.   
    
 
Report Approved by: Head of Environmental Development    
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: Improving local environment, economy and quality of 
life and public safety. 
 
Recommendation(s): 
i) To approve the implementation of the attached additional Conditions 
(as set out in Appendix One of the report) to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicle licences in relation to the installation, operation and 
maintenance of CCTV systems; and 
ii) To delegate the Head of Environmental Development and the Head of 
Law & Governance to make any necessary textual changes to the 
proposed conditions. 

 
Introduction 
 
1. At it’s meeting on 1st March 2011, the General Purposes Licensing 

Committee agreed to the implementation of CCTV in all licensed vehicles as 
detailed in the report submitted on that date, and requested that the Head of 
Environmental Development submit further reports regarding the progress 
of the CCTV initiative. 
 

2. The General Purposes Licensing Committee has heard further reports and 
given it’s approval to the progression of the CCTV initiative, and at it’s last 
meeting on 15th June 2011, requested that the Head of Environmental 
Development submit a final report providing details of the additional 
Conditions applicable to the Licensing of Hackney Carriages and Private 
Hire vehicles in relation to CCTV. 

 

 

Agenda Item 4

7



 

 

Additional Conditions to be attached to Hackney Carriage and Private 
Hire vehicles 
 
3. The General Purposes Licensing Committee has already approved the 

Minimum Specification Standard for CCTV, and conditions relating to the 
nature of advertising on the CCTV display screens, however, conditions 
are required to regulate the installation, operation and maintenance of 
the CCTV system. 

 
4. Attached as Appendix One are the proposed additional Conditions 

applicable to the Licensing of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
vehicles, to be incorporated once approved / amended within the existing 
conditions, with immediate effect. 

 
5. Members will be aware that CCTV will become mandatory in all vehicles 

licensed for the first time from 1st April 2012, and mandatory in all 
existing vehicles by 31st March 2015. 

 
Financial Considerations 
 
6. There are no financial considerations contained within the content of this 

report that apply to the Authority. 
 

Legal Considerations 
 
7. The Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 at sections 

47 and 48 allows the licensing authority to attach to vehicle licences such 
conditions as it considers reasonably necessary. Committee must decide 
whether they consider that compulsory conditions regulating the 
installation, operation and maintenance of the CCTV system are 
reasonably necessary. Any licence holder aggrieved by any condition 
attached to their licence may appeal to the Magistrates’ Court  

 
Recommendations 
 
8. The Committee is recommended to: 
 
i) approve the implementation of the appended Conditions to be attached 

to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire vehicle licences in relation to 
CCTV; and 

 
ii) To delegate the Head of Environmental Development and the Head of 

Law & Governance to make any necessary textual changes to the 
proposed conditions. 

 

Name and contact details of author:  Julian Alison 
Licensing Team Leader 
Tel: 01865 25(2381) 
Email: jalison@oxford.gov.uk 

Background papers:  
 

Appendix One: Conditions to be attached to Hackney Carriage and 
Private Hire Vehicles 

8



 

 

 
 
 
                                                                                 
 
 
 
To:  General Purposes Licensing Committee  
  
Date:  19 October 2011        Item No:  
  
Report of:   Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report:  Draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 
 
Purpose of report: To create a policy that sets out Oxford City Council’s 
framework for the regulation of Sex Establishments in Oxford. 
    
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith (not approved) 
 
Policy Framework: A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
The Committee recommended to 
(i) consider the draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy based on the 
document appended to this report;  
(ii) consider whether or not to set a limit on the “appropriate number of 
sex establishments; 
(iii) agree any amendments to the draft Sex Establishment Licensing 
Policy or otherwise depending upon whether to set a limit on the 
appropriate number of sex establishments; and;  
(iv) agree the consultation programme as set out in this report; and 
(v) request that the Head of Environmental Development submit a 
further report following the consultation or should the Committee wish 
for a limit to be set on the “appropriate number” of sex establishments, 
that following consultation at Area Fora, the “appropriate numbers be 
submitted to the Head of Environmental Development and the draft 
policy be amended accordingly, and a further report be submitted 
detailing the limit to be set on the “appropriate number” of sex 
establishments and included in the draft policy and a revised 
consultation period. 

 
 
 

 

Agenda Item 5

9



 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1 At Full Council on 19 April 2010 Council resolved: 
 

a) To adopt Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by Section 27 of the Policing and 
Crime Act 2009 so that the provisions for the control of sexual 
entertainment venues shall apply; and 

 
(b) That the new powers took effect from 10th June 2010; 

 
2. The amended Schedule 3 gives local authorities more powers to control   

the number and location of sex establishments in their area.  
 
3. For the purposes of this report and the draft policy, sex establishments 

include: 
 
i) Sex Shops 
ii) Sex Cinemas 
iii) Sexual Entertainment Venues 

 
Sex Establishment Policy 
 
4. Members of the General Purposes Licensing Committee will note that 

the Licensing Authority has not previously developed a Sex 
Establishment Licensing Policy. It has been guided by the contents of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 with regard to previous applications for Sex Establishments. 

 
5. Members have requested that the absence of a formal policy be rectified.  

A draft policy (attached at Appendix One) building on the principles of 
Schedule 3 of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982 and incorporating the views expressed by Committee is therefore 
proposed. 

   
6. The proposed draft provides the relevant Committee with the authority to 

determine whether or not any location may be deemed appropriate or 
otherwise for a Sex Establishment, by providing the following 2 options: 

 
(i) Not set an “appropriate number” for the number of sex 

establishments, and instead determine the “relevant locality” of any 
application as and when it is made; or 

 
(ii) The Council is able to set a limit on the number of licences it issues 

or it can allow an unlimited number of premises to be licensed.   
 
7. Should Members wish to not set an “appropriate number”, then Section 

9.6 of the draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy will need to be 
removed, as will the second sentence of Section 9.4. 
 

10



 

 

8. Should Members wish to implement a limit on the number of sex 
establishments deemed to be appropriate, then such a decision must 
take into account any negative impact the venues are likely to have on 
the area where they are located.  In order to determine such negative 
impacts, Members may think it prudent to consult on this, and  Area Fora 
would enable local residents to take part in this initial process, and in turn 
determine the appropriate number of Sex Establishments for each Area. 
Should this be the case, then the proposed Consultation timetable 
detailed in this report will need to be amended accordingly, and the 
number of sex establishments deemed appropriate included in Section 
9.6 of the draft policy. The specific sections have been highlighted on the 
appended draft policy for the sake of clarity. 

 
9. The Committee is asked to comment upon this draft and make 

comments as to how to improve the Policy, and select whether or not 
they wish to implement a limit on the number of sex establishments 
deemed appropriate. 

 
Scheme of Delegation 
 
10. Under the scheme of delegation in the Council’s Constitution, Full 

Council sets policies on licensing and registration.  The General 
Purposes Licensing Committee: 
 

• recommends and reviews policies on licensing and registration  

• sets and reviews licence fees 
 
The General Purposes Licensing Committee appoints a Licensing and 
Registration Sub-Committee to: 
 

• decide Sex Establishment licence applications when there are 
objections 

 
The Head of Environmental Development does everything else. 

 
Legal Issues 
 
11. Oxford City Council has adopted schedule 3 to the Local Government  
 (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by section 27 of the  

Policing and Crime Act 2009) so that we can licence sex shops, sex 
cinemas, and sexual entertainment venues in the City.  
 

12. The Council is not permitted to take a moral stand with regard to 
licensing Sex Establishments. The Licensing Authority recognises that 
Parliament has made it lawful to operate a Sex Establishment, and that 
such businesses are a legitimate part of the retail and leisure industries. 
It is our role as a Licensing Authority to administer the licensing regime in 
accordance with the law. 

 
 
 

11



 

 

Consultation on the Draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
 
13. The consultation timetable should Members not wish to set a limit on 

the “appropriate number” of sex establishments, is as follows: 
 

• 19th October 2011, consultation draft Sex Establishment Licensing 
Policy approved by Committee. 

 

• 14th November 2001 – 31st December 2011, the agreed draft Sex 
Establishment Licensing Policy to go for to: Thames Valley Police; 
Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Services; Oxford City Community Safety 
Partnership; stakeholders in the sex establishment industry; local 
residents; other departments of Oxford City Council. 

 
The agreed draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy will be made 
available for public consultationon the Councils website and made 
available at libraries and public buildings. 

 

• 22nd February 2012: report to General Purposes Licensing 
Committee to consider consultation responses and approve the 
final Sex Establishment Licensing Policy, in light of the consultation 
responses received, and recommend Council to adopt. 
 

• 23rd April 2012: Final Sex Establishment Licensing Policy to Full 
Council to consider adoption. 

 
Financial Issues 
 
14. The Council collects licence fees for the Sex Establishment function.  

Fees are reviewed annually prior to the council setting its budget.  
Predicted income from licence fees is included in the Council’s budget. 

 
Recommendations 
 
15.  The Committee is recommended to: 
 

(i) consider the draft Sex Establishment Policy Licensing based on the 
document appended to this report and provide direction to Officers 
as to any improvements or amendments to the draft policy;  

 
(ii) Consider whether or not to set a limit on the “appropriate number” 

of sex establishments; 
 
(iii) agree any amendments to the draft Sex Establishment Licensing 

Policy;  
 

(iv) agree the consultation programme as set out in this report or 
otherwise depending upon their choice of whether to set a limit on 
the appropriate number of sex establishments; and 

 

12



 

 

(v) request that the Head of Environmental Development submit a 
further report following the consultation; or should the Committee 
wish for a limit to be set on the “appropriate number” of sex 
establishments that following consultation at Area Fora, the 
“appropriate numbers be submitted to the Head of Environmental 
Development and the draft policy be amended accordingly, and a 
further report be submitted detailing the limit to be set on the 
“appropriate number” of sex establishments and included in the 
draft policy and a revised consultation period.  

 
 
Name and contact details of author:  Julian Alison 
      Licensing Team Leader 
              Tel: (01865) 252381 
                        Email: jalison@oxford.gov.uk 
Background Papers: 
 
Appendix One: Draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy 
 
 
Version: 1.1 

13



14

This page is intentionally left blank



!

Licensing Authority

"#$!%&'()*+&,-#.'!
/+0#.&+.1!23*+04!
!
!
!
!
!

This Statement will apply from 

15



Oxford City Council   Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Contact details for Sex Establishment Licensing 
(in the Oxford City Council area)

Write to: Licensing Authority 
  Environmental Development 
  Oxford City Council 
  St. Aldate’s Chambers 
  St. Aldate’s 
  Oxford 
  OX1 1EN 

Email:  licensing@oxford.gov.uk

Phone: 01865 252565 

Fax:  01865 252344 

You can also find much information and links to other sources of information 
on Oxford City Council’s website: http://www.oxford.gov.uk

This document remains valid for three years, during which the Council is likely 
to amend it’s website. So, rather than providing a direct link to “sex 
establishment licensing”, we suggest either looking for links for “licensing” 
then “sex establishments” or “sexual entertainment venues”, or using the 
website’s “A-Z” search function. 

Date Areas of revision 

First published: 01 September 2011 

Corrections:

Revised:

Revised:

Revised:

Revised:

Revised:

16



Oxford City Council   Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

CONTENTS 

1 Purpose of the Policy       1 

2 Consultation        1 

3 Review of the Policy       2 

4 Legislation and Current Provisions     2 

5 Delegation of Functions       3 

6 The Licensing Process       4 

7 Hearings         5 

8 Grounds for Refusal of a Licence     5 

9 Relevant Locality        6 

10 Duration of Licences       8 

11 Appeals         8 

12 Exchange of information       8 

13 Fees          8 

14 Compliance and Enforcement      8 

15 Sex Shops         10 

16 Sex Cinemas        12 

17 Sexual Entertainment Venues      14 

18 Premises that are not Sexual Entertainment Venues  16 

19 Contacts         16 

Annex One 

Standard Conditions applicable to Sex Establishments     

Definitions: 

In this Policy: 

The “2009 Act” means the Policing and Crime Act 2009
The “1982 Act” means the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1982
The “2003 Act” means the Licensing Act 2003
“Section 27” means section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009  
“Schedule 3” means Schedule 3 to the Local Government (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 

17



Oxford City Council   Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

18



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

1 Purpose of the Policy 

1.1 This policy sets out Oxford City Council’s framework for the regulation 
of sex establishments in Oxford. Through the Sex Establishment 
Licensing Policy the Council aims to regulate the location and number 
of sex establishments. In doing so, it recognises both the importance of 
licensed businesses to the local economy and the rights of local 
residents and other stakeholders. 

1.2 This document will guide the Licensing Authority when it considers 
applications for a Sex Establishment licence. It will inform applicants 
and those seeking to make representations of the parameters in which 
the authority will make decisions and how their needs will be 
addressed. 

1.3 For the purposes of this policy, sex establishments include (but are not 
limited to) unless otherwise stated: 

i) Sex Shops 
ii) Sex Cinemas 
iii) Sexual Entertainment Venues 

2 Consultation 

2.1 In determining this policy, the Council has consulted the following 
people and bodies: 

! Thames Valley Police; 

! Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue Services; 

! Oxford City Community Safety Partnership; 

! stakeholders in the sex establishment industry; 

! local residents. 

2.2 We have also consulted various other professional people within the 
Council, which include: 

! Planning; 

! Law & Governance; 

! City Centre Manager; 

! Property and Facilities Management; 

! Environmental Protection; 

! Health & Safety. 

2.3 We will consider and take into account the views of all the appropriate 
bodies and organisations. 

119



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

3 Review of the Policy 

3.1 This policy will be reviewed every three years. At the time of the review, 
we will again consult all interested parties. As well as three-yearly 
reviews, we will continue to evaluate the policy and may update it at 
any time. Any minor changes can be agreed by the General Purposes 
Licensing Committee. 

4 Legislation and Current Provisions 

4.1   Oxford City Council has adopted schedule 3 to the Local Government 
  (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (as amended by section 27 of the 

Policing and Crime Act 2009) so that we can licence sex shops, sex 
cinemas, and sexual entertainment venues in the City. In this policy, 
we refer to these as “sex establishments” unless we say otherwise. 

4.2   We do not seek to take a moral stand in licensing sex establishments. 
We recognise that Parliament has made it lawful to operate a sex 
establishment, and that such businesses are a legitimate part of the 
retail and leisure industries. It is our role as a licensing authority to 
administer the licensing regime in accordance with the law. 

4.3   The 1982 Act and the 2009 Act can be viewed at www.opsi.gov.uk.

4.4 In developing this policy, we took into account the legal requirements of 
the 1982 Act and our duties under: 

(a) section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to take all 
reasonable steps to reduce crime and disorder within the City; 

(b) the Regulators’ Compliance Code (set out under the Legislative and 
Regulatory Reform Act 2006) not to impede economic progress by 
the regulations we set out and to particularly consider the impact of 
regulations on small businesses; and 

(c)  the Provision of Services Regulations 2009 to ensure requirements 
are:

(i) non-discriminatory, 
(ii) justified by an overriding reason relating to the public interest, 
(iii) proportionate to that public interest objective, 
(iv) clear and unambiguous, 
(v)  objective, 
(vi) made public in advance, and 
(vii)transparent and accessible. 

2 20



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

5  Delegation of Functions 

5.1 This part of the document sets out how we will deal with applications 
for the licensing of Sex Establishments in the City of Oxford. The 
Council aims to provide a clear, consistent licensing service to all 
service users. 

5.2   Delegation is laid out in the Council’s Constitution as follows: 

 Full Council sets policies on licensing and registration. 

 The General Purposes Licensing Committee: 

! Recommends and reviews policies on licensing and registration 

! Sets and reviews licence fees. 

The General Purposes Licensing Committee appoints a Licensing and 
Registration Sub-Committee: 

! Determine sex establishment licensing applications when there has 
been a relevant representation received from any interested party. 

 The Head of Environmental Development is authorised to: 

a) Issue a licence for a Sex Establishment and to attach such 
conditions as are necessary when no representation is received 
from an interested party. 

b) Refuse any application for the grant of licence, that: 
i) in the opinion of the Head of Environmental Development does 

not comply with the Council’s conditions and policies; 
ii) where there is an objection from the Chief Officer of Police 

5.3 The Head of Environmental Development does everything else 

321



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

6 The Licensing Process 

6.1 Unlike some other licensing regimes (such as for alcohol, 
entertainment, or gambling), a wide range of people can raise 
objections about sex establishment licences. The Chief Officer of 
Police is a statutory consultee for all applications. 

6.2 Objectors should have something to say which is relevant to 
consideration of the statutory grounds for refusal that are set out in the 
1982 Act. These are set out in Section 8 of this Policy. 

6.3 We take the following approach to deciding applications: 

(a)  each case will be decided upon its merits. This authority is mindful 
of the law and will not apply a rigid rule to its decision making; 

(b)  objectors can include residents’/tenants’ associations, community 
 associations, and trade associations. Councillors and MPs may 

also raise objections. Elected councillors may represent interested 
parties, providing they do not also sit on the Licensing Committee 
determining the application in question; 

  (c)  we will give clear reasons for our decisions. 

6.4   Objections should be: 

! be made in writing  

! indicate the name and address of the person or organisation 
making the representation (although this will not be disclosed to 
licence applicants) 

! indicate the premises to which the objection relates 

! indicate the proximity of the premises to the person making the 
objection.

! clearly set out the reasons for making the objections 

6.5  We will not consider objections that are frivolous or vexatious, or which 
solely relate to moral grounds (as these are outside the scope of the 
1982 Act). Decisions on whether objections are frivolous or vexatious 
will be made objectively by our officers and not on the basis of any 
political judgement. Where objections are rejected, the objector will be 
given a written reason.

6.6  Where relevant objections have been received, the Licensing Officer 
will compile a report that will be submitted to the Licensing and 
Registration Sub-Committee to determine the application. The report 
will also include the Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for the 
Home Office, a copy of the relevant representations, and a map 
showing the location of the premises for which the application relates. 

4 22



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

7 Hearings

7.1  Under paragraph 10(19) of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act, before refusing 
an application, all applicants should be given the opportunity to appear 
before and be heard by the Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee 
that is responsible for determining the application. 

7.2   The Licensing and Registration Sub-Committee consists of three 
Councillors. We allow both the applicant and the objectors equal 
opportunity to state their case in accordance with our protocol which is 
available on our website at www.oxford.gov.uk or from our licensing 
team.

7.3 Although the Licensing Authority is under a duty to consider any 
objections made within 28 days of the application, it has discretion to 
hear later objections provided the applicant is given the opportunity to 
deal with those objections. 

7.4 The outcome of the Hearing and the reasons for the decision shall be 
made available to all parties involved with the application by way of a 
Notification of Decision. This Notice will inform all parties of any right of 
appeal.

8 Grounds for Refusal of a Licence

8.1 Paragraph 12 of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act sets out the grounds for 
refusing an application for the grant, renewal or transfer of a licence.

A licence must not be granted:

(a)  to a person under the age of 18;

(b)  to a person who is for the time being disqualified due to the 
person having had a previous licence revoked in the area of the 
appropriate authority within the last 12 months;  

(c)  to a person, other than a body corporate, who is not resident in an 
European Economic Area (EEA) State or was not so resident 
throughout the period of six months immediately preceding the 
date when the application was made; or  

(d)  to a body corporate which is not incorporated in an EEA State; or

(e)  to a person who has, within a period of 12 months immediately 
preceding the date when the application was made, been refused 
the grant or renewal of a licence for the premises, vehicle, vessel 
or stall in respect of which the application is made, unless the 
refusal has been reversed on appeal.

523



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

8.2 A licence may be refused where:  

(a)  the applicant is unsuitable to hold the licence by reason of having 
been convicted of an offence or for any other reason;

(b)  if the licence were to be granted, renewed or transferred the 
business to which it relates would be managed by or carried on for 
the benefit of a person, other than the applicant, who would be 
refused the grant, renewal or transfer of such a licence if he made 
the application himself;   

(c)  the number of sex establishments, or of sex establishments of a 
particular kind, in the relevant locality at the time the application is 
determined is equal to or exceeds the number which the authority 
consider is appropriate for that locality;

(d)  that the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, 
having regard: 

(i) to the character of the relevant locality; or
(ii)  to the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put; or
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises, vehicle, 

vessel or stall in respect of which the application is made.  

8.3 A decision to refuse a licence must be relevant to one or more of the 
above grounds.

8.4 When determining a licence application, the local authority must have 
regard to any rights the applicant may have under Article 10 (right to 
freedom of expression) and Article 1, Protocol 1 (protection of 
property) of the European Convention on Human Rights. 

8.5  The Provision of Services Regulations 20098 amended Schedule 3 to 
the 1982 Act to state that, if having considered an application for the 
grant, renewal or transfer of a licence, the appropriate authority 
decides to refuse it on one or more of the above grounds, it must 
provide the applicant with reasons for the decision in writing. 

9  Relevant Locality 

9.1 Paragraph 12(3)(c) and 12(3)(d) of Schedule 3 allow the Licensing 
Authority to refuse applications on grounds related to an assessment of 
the “relevant locality”. A licence can be refused if either, at the time the 
application is determined the number of sex establishments, or sex 
establishments of a particular kind, in the relevant locality is equal to or 
exceeds the number that the authority considers appropriate for that 
locality; or that a sex establishment would be inappropriate having 
regard to the character of the relevant locality, the use to which any 
premises in the vicinity are put or the layout, character or condition of 
the premises. Nil may be the appropriate number.

6 24



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

9.2 Schedule 3 to the 1982 Act does not define “relevant locality” further 
than to say that:

(a)  in relation to premises, it is the locality where they are situated; 
and

(b)  in relation to a vehicle, vessel or stall, any locality where it is 
desired to use it as a sex establishment.

9.3   The decision regarding what constitutes the ‘relevant locality’ is a 
matter for the Licensing Authority. However, such questions must be 
decided on the facts of the individual application. 

9.4  When considering a particular application case law has determined that 
is is inappropriate for the Council to treat the whole of the City as a 
relevant locality. (OPTIONAL) However, the Council has determined 
that it is appropriate to consider each area type as a relevant 
locality. It has considered, in respect of each area, the number of 
sex establishments that it believes to the appropriate number for 
that area.

9.5 In considering the characteristics of a locality we shall particularly take 
account of the density and proximity of: 

(i)    Historic buildings or tourist attractions
(ii)   Schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s centres or similar
   premises
(iii)  Shopping complexes
(iv)  Residential areas
(v)   Places of Worship 

9.6 (OPTIONAL) The Council recognises that different parts of the 
City have different characteristics, and the number of sex 
establishments appropriate for a locality, and the reasons why, 
are detailed below: 

AREA NUMBER REASON

North

North East 

East

Cowley 

South East 

Central, South & West 

725



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

10  Duration of Licences  

10.1 Licences for sex establishments can be granted for up to one year.

11  Appeals  

11.1  In the event that the Licensing Authority refuses an application for the 
grant, renewal or transfer of a sex establishment licence the applicant 
may appeal the decision in a magistrates’ court, unless the application 
was refused under 12(3)(c) or (d) of the 1982 Act, in which case the 
applicant can only challenge the refusal by way of judicial review.

12  Exchange of Information 

12.1  The authority may from time to time exercise its’ powers under section 
115 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to exchange data and 
information with the police and other partners to fulfil its’ statutory 
objective of reducing crime in the area. 

12.2  Details of applications and objections which are referred to a Licensing 
Committee for determination will be published in reports that are made 
publicly available in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 
and the Freedom of Information Act 2000. 

12.3  Where a notice of a hearing is given to an applicant, the Authority is 
required to provide the applicant with copies of the relevant 
representations that have been made. The names and address of 
interested parties will not be disclosed to applicants or published in 
public reports in accordance with the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 (unless directed otherwise by the 
interested party). Such details will be made available to Councillors on 
the Licensing Committee. 

13 Fees 

13.1  Fees will be set and reviewed annually on a full cost recovery basis. 
The level of fee applicable takes into account the nature of the sex 
establishment (i.e. Sex Shop, Sex Cinema, Sexual Entertainment 
Venue, etc). Details of the current level of fees can be found on the 
Council’s website or on application to the Licensing Office. Fees must 
be paid on application, in full. 

14  Compliance and Enforcement 

14.1  We will keep informed of developments as regards the work of the 
Better Regulation Executive and other central government bodies in its 
consideration of the regulatory functions of local authorities. 

8 26



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

14.2 We recognise that sex establishments are not generally a source of 
crime or disorder. We will adopt a light touch inspection regime, 
carrying out simple inspections of premises, unless exceptional 
circumstances require otherwise. 

14.3  Our approach to enforcement is set out in our enforcement policies 
which are available on request, and can be found on our website. 

927



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

15 SEX SHOPS

15.1  Licences for sex shops are required where 18R films are sold, or where 
there is a “significant degree” of “sex articles” for sale. The phrase “sex 
articles” is defined in the 1982 Act as: 

(a) anything made for use in connection with, or for the purpose of 
stimulating or encouraging— 

(i)  sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; 

and
(b) any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at 

or anything intended to be used, either alone or as one of a set, for 
the reproduction or manufacture of any such article; and 

(c) to any recording of vision or sound, which— 
(i)  is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with 

or relates to, or is intended to stimulate or encourage, sexual 
activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual 
activity; or 

(ii) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or 
relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory functions. 

15.2  The phrase “a significant degree” is not defined. When considering 
whether or not a business is selling a significant degree of sex articles 
and needs a licence, we will consider: 

(1) the ratio of sex articles to other aspects of the business 
(2) the absolute quantity of sales 
(3) the character of the remainder of the business 
(4) the nature of the displays in the business 
(5) turnover generated by sales of sex articles 
(6) the format of any literature, publicity or advertising materials 
(7) other factors which appear to be materially relevant. 

15.3  There are some specific grounds for refusing sex establishment 
licences set out in paragraph 12 of schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. These 
include where the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence, due to their 
age, domiciliary status or previous criminal convictions. 

15.4  We can also refuse applications for new or renewed licences where: 

(1) the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time 
the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which we 
consider appropriate for that locality; 

(2) the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having 
regard to: 

(i)  the character of the relevant locality, or 
(ii)  the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or 
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises. 

1028



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

15.5 In considering the characteristics of a locality we shall particularly take 
account of the density and proximity of: 

(i)    Historic buildings or tourist attractions
(ii)   Schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s centres or similar
   premises
(iii)  Shopping complexes
(iv)  Residential areas
(v)   Places of Worship 

15.6  We will, unless there are exceptional reasons otherwise, grant any 
licences for the maximum duration of a year at a time to provide 
certainty to those operating businesses. 

15.7  We do not consider it would be appropriate to permit waivers from the 
requirements to hold a sex establishment licence, except in extreme 
circumstances considered by the General Purposes Licensing 
Committee (for example, to allow a temporary re-location of a business 
following damage to licensed premises). 

15.8  We have a standard application form, including public notices, which 
are available on request from our licensing team. 

15.9  We have adopted standard conditions for the operation of sex shops 
that are set out at Annex One. Where it is reasonable and necessary to 
do so, our Licensing and Registrations Sub-Committee will impose 
additional proportional conditions on a licence. Wherever possible, 
these will be discussed in advance with operators by our licensing 
officers.

15.10 Our fees are set each year and details are available from our licensing 
team and on our website at www.oxford.gov.uk. We charge separate 
fees for applying for a licence, renewing a licence, and for making 
variations to a licence. 

1129



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

16 Sex Cinemas 

16.1 A “sex cinema” means any premises, vehicle, vessel or stall used to a 
significant degree for the exhibition of moving pictures, by whatever 
means produced, which: 

(a) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with 
or relate to, or are intended to stimulate or encourage— 

(i) sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; 

or
(b) are concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deal with 

or relate to, genital organs or urinary or excretory functions, but
does not include a dwelling-house to which the public is not 
admitted.

16.2 The sale of sex articles is not permitted at a sex cinema. The phrase 
“sex articles” is defined in the 1982 Act as: 

(a) anything made for use in connection with, or for the purpose of 
stimulating or encouraging— 

(i)  sexual activity; or 
(ii) acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity; 

and
(b) any article containing or embodying matter to be read or looked at 

or anything intended to be used, either alone or as one of a set, for 
the reproduction or manufacture of any such article; and 

(c) to any recording of vision or sound, which— 
(i)  is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with 

or relates to, or is intended to stimulate or encourage, sexual 
activity or acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual 
activity; or 

(ii) is concerned primarily with the portrayal of, or primarily deals with or 
relates to, genital organs, or urinary or excretory functions. 

16.3 There are some specific grounds for refusing sex establishment 
licences set out in paragraph 12 of schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. These 
include where the applicant is unsuitable to hold a licence, due to their 
age, domiciliary status or previous criminal convictions. 

16.4  We can also refuse applications for new or renewed licences where: 

(1) the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time 
the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number which we 
consider appropriate for that locality; 

(2) the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having 
regard to: 

(i)  the character of the relevant locality, or 
(ii)  the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or 
(iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises. 

1230



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

16.5 In considering the characteristics of a locality we shall particularly take 
account of the density and proximity of: 

(i)    Historic buildings or tourist attractions
(ii)   Schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s centres or similar
   premises
(iii)  Shopping complexes
(iv)  Residential areas
(v)   Places of Worship 

16.6  We will, unless there are exceptional reasons otherwise, grant any 
licences for the maximum duration of a year at a time to provide 
certainty to those operating businesses. 

16.7  We do not consider it would be appropriate to permit waivers from the 
requirements to hold a sex establishment licence, except in extreme 
circumstances considered by the General Purposes Licensing 
Committee (for example, to allow a temporary re-location of a business 
following damage to licensed premises). 

16.8  We have a standard application form, including public notices, which 
are available on request from our licensing team. 

16.9 We have adopted standard conditions for the operation of sex cinemas 
that are set out at Annex One. Where it is reasonable and necessary to 
do so, our Licensing and Registrations Sub-Committee will impose 
additional proportional conditions on a licence. Wherever possible, 
these will be discussed in advance with operators by our licensing 
officers.

16.10 Our fees are set each year and details are available from our licensing 
team and on our website at www.oxford.gov.uk. We charge separate 
fees for applying for a licence, renewing a licence, and for making 
variations to a licence. 

1331



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

17 SEXUAL ENTERTAINMENT VENUES 

17.1 On 19 April 2010 Council resolved to adopt Schedule 3 of the Local 
Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 as amended by 
Section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009 so that the provisions for 
the control of sexual entertainment venues would apply in this District. 
The amended Schedule 3 gives the Local Authority more powers to 
control the number and location of lap dancing clubs and similar 
venues in the area. The new powers took effect in Oxford from 10th 
June 2010. 

17.2  Licences for sexual entertainment venues are required for “any 
premises at which relevant entertainment is provided before a live 
audience for the financial gain of the organiser or the entertainer”. 

17.3  “Relevant entertainment” is defined in schedule 3 (as amended by 
section 27 of the Policing and Crime Act 2009) as “any live 
performance or live display of nudity which is of such a nature that, 
ignoring financial gain, it must reasonably be assumed to be provided 
solely or principally for the purpose of sexually stimulating any member 
of an audience (whether by verbal or other means).” An audience can 
consist of just one person, e.g. in a private booth. 

17.4  In deciding whether entertainment is “relevant entertainment” we will 
judge each case on its merits, but will generally apply to: 
(1) lap dancing 
(2) pole dancing 
(3) table dancing 
(4) strip shows 
(5) peep shows 
(6) live sex shows 
Adult entertainment not classed as “relevant entertainment” may still 
require licensing under the Licensing Act 2003. 

17.5  There are some specific grounds for refusing sex establishment 
licences set out in paragraph 12 of schedule 3 to the 1982 Act. These 
include where the applicant themselves are unsuitable, due to their age, 
domiciliary status or previous criminal convictions. 

17.6  We can also refuse applications for new or renewed licences where: 

(1) the number of sex establishments in the relevant locality at the time 
the application is made is equal to or exceeds the number the 
number which we consider appropriate for that locality; 

(2) the grant or renewal of the licence would be inappropriate, having 
regard to: 

(i)  the character of the relevant locality, or 
(ii)  the use to which any premises in the vicinity are put, or 

 (iii) to the layout, character or condition of the premises. 

1432



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

17.7 In considering the characteristics of a locality we shall particularly take 
account of the density and proximity of: 

(i)  Historic buildings or tourist attractions
(ii) Schools, play areas, nurseries, children’s centres or similar
 premises
(iii)Shopping complexes
(iv)Residential areas
(v) Places of Worship 

.
17.8 We will, unless there are exceptional reasons otherwise, grant any 

licences for the maximum duration of a year at a time to provide 
certainty to those operating businesses. 

17.9  We do not consider it would be appropriate to permit waivers from the 
requirements to hold a sexual entertainment venue licence, particularly 
as the legislation allows relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis 
of no more than eleven occasions within a 12-month period, providing 
there is at least one month between each period of entertainment 
which itself does not last for more than 24 hours. 

17.10 We have a standard application form, including public notices, which 
 are available on request from our licensing team. 

17.11 We have adopted standard conditions for the operation of Sexual 
Entertainment Venues that are set out at Annex One. Where it is 
reasonable and necessary to do so, our Licensing and Registration 
Sub-Committee will impose additional proportional conditions on a 
licence. Wherever possible, these will be discussed in advance with 
operators by our licensing officers. 

17.12 Our fees are set each year and details are available from our licensing 
team and on our website at www.oxford.gov.uk. We charge separate 
fees for applying for a licence, renewing a licence, and for making 
variations to a licence. 

1533



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

16

18 Premises that are not Sexual Entertainment Venues 

18.1 Paragraph 2A(3) of Schedule 3 of the 1982 Act as amended by the 
2009 Act, sets out those premises that are not sexual entertainment 
venues. These are:

• premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis

These are defined as premises where: 

a)  no relevant entertainment has been provided on more than 11 
occasions within a 12 month period;

b)  no such occasion has begun within a period of one month 
beginning with the end of the previous occasions; and

c)  no such occasion has lasted longer than 24 hours.

•  other premises or types of performances or displays exempted by 
an order of the Secretary of State.  

18.2 Premises which provide relevant entertainment on an infrequent basis 
will continue to be regulated under the Licensing 2003 Act, insofar as 
they provide regulated entertainment under that Act, either by virtue of 
a premises licence or club premises certificate or a temporary events 
notice. Any premises that provide relevant entertainment on more 
occasions, more frequently or for a longer period of time than is 
permitted under the exemption will be operating as a sexual 
entertainment venue and will have committed an offence under 
Schedule 3 unless they hold a sexual entertainment venue licence or 
the local authority has waived the requirement for such a licence. 

19 Contacts 

19.1 The sex establishment function is part of the Licensing and 
Development Division of the Environmental Development Service. Our 
address is: 

Licensing Authority 
 Environmental Development 
 Oxford City Council 
 St. Aldate’s Chambers 
 St. Aldate’s 
 Oxford 
 OX1 1EN 

Telephone: 01865 252565  Email: licensing@oxford.gov.uk 

34



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

ANNEX ONE 

OXFORD CITY COUNCIL 

REGULATIONS PRESCRIBING STANDARD CONDITIONS APPLICABLE 
TO LICENSES FOR SEX ESTABLISHMENTS 

THESE REGULATIONS ARE MADE BY THE OXFORD CITY COUNCIL 
UNDER PARAGRAPH 13(1) OF THE THIRD SCHEDULE OF THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS) ACT 1982 (as 
amended) AND COME INTO EFFECT ON 10TH JUNE 2010 

Notes

(i) Except where the context demands otherwise the singular includes the 
plural and the masculine includes the feminine. 

(ii)  Nothing in these rules shall be construed as interfering with (i) the 
discretion of the licensee or his representative regarding the admission 
of any person or (ii) the need to strictly comply with all relevant 
statutory requirements. 

(iii) These rules are divided into three Parts as follows: 

Part I   General 

Part II   Rules which apply to all premises 

Part III  Rules which apply to Sex Shops 

Part IV Rules which apply to Sex Cinemas 

Part V  Rules which apply to Sexual Entertainment Venues 

(iv) In these rules all references to a British Standard (BS) shall be deemed 
to refer to the current standard. 

(iv) A Premises Licence may also be required for the operation of a Sex 
Cinema.

I35



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Part I General 

Definitions

1. In these Regulations save when the context otherwise requires the 
following expressions shall have the following meanings: 

i) “Sex Establishment”, “Sex Cinema”, “Sex Shop”,“Sex Article” and 
“Sexual Entertainment Venue” shall have the meanings ascribed to 
them in the Third Schedule of the Local Government 
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

ii) “Premises” means a building or part of a building and any forecourt 
yard or place of storage used in connection with a building or part 
of a building which is the subject of a licence for a Sex 
Establishment granted under the said Third Schedule. 

iii) “Approval of the Council” or “Consent of the Council” means the 
approval or consent of the Council in writing. 

iv) “Approved” means approved by the Council in writing. 

v) “The Council” means the Oxford City Council. 

General

2. In the event of a conflict between these Regulations and any special 
conditions contained in a licence relating to a Sex Establishment the 
special conditions shall prevail. 

3. The grant of a licence for a Sex Establishment shall not be deemed to 
convey any approval or consent which may be required under any 
enactment, by law, order or regulation other than the Third Schedule of 
the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

II 36



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Part II Rules which apply to all premises 

Exhibition of Licence 

4. The copy of the Licence and these Regulations which are required to 
be exhibited in accordance with paragraph 14(1) of Schedule 3 of the 
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 shall be 
reproductions to the same scale as those issued by the Council. The 
copy of the Licence required to be displayed as aforesaid shall be 
suitably framed and exhibited in a position that it can easily be seen by 
all persons using the premises. The copy of these Regulations shall be 
retained in a clean and legible condition. 

Times of Opening 

5. Except with the previous consent of the Council a Sex Establishment 
shall not be open to the public before 9 a.m. and shall not be kept open 
after 6 p.m. unless otherwise permitted. 

6. The premises shall not open on Sundays or any Bank Holidays or any 
public holidays, unless otherwise permitted. 

Responsibility of Licensee 

7. The licensee shall take all reasonable precautions for the safety of the 
public and employees and, except with the consent of the Council, shall 
retain control over all portions of the premises 

8. The premises shall not be used for regulated entertainment, exhibition 
or display of any kind unless the Council's consent has first been 
obtained and any necessary licence granted. 

Conduct and Management of Premises 

9. The Licensee or some responsible person over 18 years of age 
nominated by him in writing for the purpose of managing the Sex 
Establishment in his absence shall be in charge of and upon the 
Premises during the whole time they are open to the public. Such 
written nomination shall be continuously available for inspection by an 
officer authorised in writing by the Council. The person in charge shall 
not be engaged on any duties which will prevent him from exercising 
general supervision and he shall be assisted as necessary by suitable 
adult persons to ensure adequate supervision. The person in charge 
shall be conversant with these rules a copy of which shall be held on 
the premises. 

10. The Licensee or the responsible person approved under Regulation 9 
shall maintain a daily register to be kept on the Premises in which he 
shall record the name and address of any person who is to be 

III37



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

responsible for managing the Sex Establishment in his absence and 
the names and addresses of those employed in the Sex Establishment. 
The register is to be completed each day within 30 minutes of the Sex 
Establishment opening for business and is to be available for 
inspection by the police and by authorised officers of the Council. 

11. The Licensee shall ensure that during the hours the Sex Establishment 
is open for business every employee wears a badge of a type to be 
approved by the Council bearing the photograph of the employee and 
indicating his name and that he is an employee. 

12. A notice showing the name of the person responsible for the 
management of a Sex Establishment shall be prominently displayed 
within the Sex Establishment throughout the period during which he is 
responsible for its conduct. 

13. Where the Licensee is a body corporate or an unincorporated body any 
change of director, company secretary or other person responsible for 
the management of the body is to be notified in writing to the Council 
within 14 days of such change and such written details as the Council 
may require in respect of any new director, secretary or manager are to 
be furnished within 14 days of a request in writing from the Council. 

14. The Licensee shall maintain good order in the premises.  

15. The Licensee shall ensure that no part of the premises is used by 
prostitutes (male or female) for the purposes of soliciting or any other 
immoral purposes. 

16. The Licensee shall ensure that the public are not admitted to any part 
or parts of the Premises other than those which have been approved 
by the Council. 

17. Neither the Licensee nor any employee or other person shall seek to 
obtain custom by means of personal solicitation outside or in the 
vicinity of the premises. 

18. No person under the age of 18 shall be admitted to the premises or 
employed in the business of the sex establishment

19. The Licensee shall comply with all statutory provisions and any 
regulations made thereunder. 

External Appearance 

20. No display, advertisement, word, letter, model, sign, light, placard, 
board, notice, device, representation, drawing, writing or any matter or 
thing (whether illuminated or not) shall be exhibited so as to be visible 
from outside the Premises except: 

IV38



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

i) Any notice of a size and in a form approved by the Council which is 
required to be displayed so as to be visible from outside the 
Premises by law, or by any condition of a licence granted by the 
Council.

ii) Such display, advertisement, word, letter, model, sign, light, 
placard, board, notice, device, representation, drawing, writing, or 
any matter or thing as shall have been approved by the Council. 

21. The entrances to the Premises shall be of a material or covered with a 
material which will render the interior of the Premises invisible to 
passers by. 

22. Windows and openings to the Premises other than entrances shall not 
be obscured otherwise than with the consent of the Council but shall 
have suspended behind them, in a position and at an attitude approved 
by the Council opaque curtains of a type and size approved by the 
Council. This regulation shall not be construed as lessening the 
obligations of the Licensee under Regulation 20 hereof. 

State Condition and Layout of the Premises 

23. The Premises shall be maintained in good repair and condition. 

24. The number, size and position of all doors or openings provided for the 
purposes of the ingress and egress of the public shall be approved by 
the Council and shall comply with the following requirements : 

(i) All such doors or openings approved by the Council shall be clearly 
indicated on the inside by the word “exit”/graphic type. 

(ii) Doors and openings which lead to parts of the premises to which 
the public are not permitted to have access shall have notices 
placed over them marked, “private”. 

(iii) Save in the case of emergency no access shall be permitted 
through the premises to any unlicensed premises adjoining or 
adjacent.

25. The external doors to the premises shall be fitted with a device to 
provide for their automatic closure and such devices shall be 
maintained in good working order. 

26. The Licensee shall make provision in the means of access both to and 
within the premises for the needs of members of the public visiting the 
premises who are disabled. 

27. No fastening of any description shall be fitted upon any booth or cubicle 
within the premises nor shall more than one person (including any 

V39



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

employee) be present in any such booth or cubicle at any time. 

28. Alterations or additions either internal or external and whether 
permanent or temporary to the structure, lighting or layout of the 
premises shall not be made except with the prior approval of the 
Council.

29. All parts of the premises shall be kept in a clean and wholesome 
condition to the satisfaction of the Council. 

Maintenance of mean of escape 

30. The means of escape provided for all persons on the premises shall be 
maintained unobstructed, immediately available and clearly identifiable 
in accordance with the approved arrangements. 

31. All fire-resisting and smoke stop doors shall be maintained self-closing 
and shall not be secured open. 

Fire Appliances 

32. Fire appliances and equipment as approved by the Fire Officer shall be 
efficiently maintained in satisfactory working order and kept available 
for instant use. They shall be in the charge of a suitable person 
specially nominated for the purpose. 

33. Portable fire appliances shall be examined at least once a year and 
periodically  tested in accordance with the current British Standard by a 
competent person and the date of such test shall be clearly marked on 
the appropriate extinguishers or on stout tabs securely attached to 
them. Extinguishers which incorporate an anti-freeze agent shall be 
examined and recharged in compliance with manufacturer's 
instructions.

Lighting

34. The Licencee or any other person concerned in the conduct or 
management of the licensed sex establishment shall, in the absence of 
adequate daylight, ensure that adequate lighting is maintained to the 
satisfaction of the Council in all parts of the premises to which the 
public and staff have access and is in operation continuously during the 
whole time the premises are open to the public. 

35. The normal lighting shall be maintained alight and the lighting to 'EXIT' 
notices shall not in any circumstances be extinguished or dimmed while 
the public are on the premises, provided that so long as there is 
sufficient daylight in any part of the premises, artificial light need not be 
used in that part. 

VI40



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Electrical Installations 

36. The electrical installation for the premises shall be maintained  in a safe 
working condition, as prescribed in the current edition of the 
Regulations for electrical installations issued by the Institute of 
Electrical Engineers. 

37. Unless the Council decide otherwise an inspection certificate, as 
prescribed in the current edition of the Regulations for electrical 
installations issued by the Institution of Electrical Engineers, for the 
electrical installation associated with the premises shall be submitted to 
the Council at least once every five years or such other time specified 
on the certificate. The certificate shall be signed by a qualified 
engineer.

Change of Use 

38. No change of use of any portion of the premises from that approved by 
the Council shall be made until the consent of the Council and Thames 
Valley Police has been obtained thereto. 

39. No change from a Sex Cinema to a Sex Shop or from a Sex Shop to a 
Sex Cinema shall be effected without the consent of the Council and 
Thames Valley Police 

40. Neither Sex Articles nor other things intended for use in connection 
with, or for the purpose of stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or 
acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity shall 
be displayed, sold, hired, exchanged, loaned or demonstrated in a Sex 
Cinema or a Sexual Entertainment Venue. 

Admission of Authorised Officers 

41. Officers of the Council, Thames Valley Police, and other authorised 
agencies who are furnished with authorities which they will produce on 
request, shall be admitted immediately at all reasonable times and at 
any time the premises are open for business to all parts of the 
premises.

VII41



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Part III Conditions Applying to Sex Shops 

Goods Available in Sex Establishments 

42. All Sex Articles and other things displayed for sale, hire, exchange or 
loan within a Sex Shop shall be clearly marked to show to persons who 
are inside the Sex Shop the respective prices being charged. 

43. All printed matter offered for sale, hire, exchange or loan shall be 
available for inspection prior to purchase, hire, exchange or loan and a 
notice to this effect is to be prominently displayed within the Sex 
Establishment.

44. No film or video film shall be exhibited, sold or supplied unless it has 
(a) been passed by the British Board of Film Censors and bears a 
certificate to that effect or (b) approved by the Council and is a 
reproduction authorised by the owner of the copyright of the film or 
video film so certified. 

VIII42



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Part IV Conditions Applying to Sex Cinemas 

Film Categories 

1. The categories U, PG, 12, 15, 18 and RESTRICTED 18 have the 
following effect: 

U Universal.- Suitable for all 

PG Parental Guidance. Some scenes may be 
unsuitable for young children. 

12 Passed only for persons of 12 years and over. 

15 Passed only for persons of 15 years and over. 

18 Passed only for persons of 18 years and over. 

RESTRICTED (18) Passed only for persons of 18 or over who are 
members (or their guests) of a properly 
constituted club. 

Exhibition of Films 

2. ‘Film exhibition' means film exhibitions as defined in the Cinemas Act 
1985;i.e. any exhibition of moving pictures which is produced otherwise 
than by the simultaneous reception and exhibition of (a) television 
programmes, broadcast by the British Broadcasting Corporation or the 
Independent Broadcasting Authority or (b) programmes included in a 
cable programme service which is or does not require to be licensed 
under Section 4 of the Cable and Broadcasting Act 1984. 

3. No film shall be exhibited at the premises unless: 

(a) it is a current news-reel; or 
(b) it has been passed by the British Board of Film Classification as 
a   U, PG, 12, 15, 18 or RESTRICTED (18) film and no 
notice of  objection to its exhibition has been given by the Council; 
or
(c) it has been passed by the Council as a U, PG, 12, 15, 18
(Oxford)   or RESTRICTED (18) (Oxford) film. 

RESTRICTED (18) films 

4. Films in the RESTRICTED (18) category may be shown at the 
premises only with the Council's prior written consent and in 
accordance with the terms of any such consent. 

IX43



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Unclassified Films 

5. Not less than twenty-eight days notice in writing shall be given to the 
Council of any proposal to exhibit any other film which has not been 
classified as specified in rules 45 and 47 above. Such a film may only 
be exhibited if the Council's prior written consent has been obtained 
and in accordance with the terms of any such consent. 

Persons under 18 Notice 

6. No person appearing to be under the age of 18 shall be admitted to 
any part of the programme and the licensee shall display in a 
conspicuous position at each entrance to the premises a notice in clear 
letters in the following terms: 

PERSONS UNDER 18 CANNOT BE ADMITTED TO THIS CINEMA 
FOR ANY PART OF THE PROGRAMME. 

Category notices 

7. A representation or written statement of the terms of any certificates 
given by the British Board of Film Censors or the British Board of Film 
Classification shall be shown on the screen immediately before the 
showing of any film to which it relates and the representation or 
statement shall be shown for long enough and in form large enough for 
it to be read from any seat in the auditorium. 

Timetable of films 

8. The licensee shall display in a conspicuous position, to the satisfaction 
of the Council, at each entrance to the premises, during the whole time 
the public are being admitted to the premises and so as to be easily 
seen and read by the public, a timetable of the films on exhibition. 

Advertisements

9. No advertisement displayed at the premises of a film to be exhibited at 
the premises shall depict as a scene or incident in the film any scene or 
incident which is not included in the film as certified by the British Board 
of Film Censors or the British Board of Film Classification or approved 
for exhibition by the licensing authority, as the case may be. 

10. Where the licensing authority has given notice in writing to the licensee 
of the premises objecting to an advertisement on the ground, that, if 
displayed, it would offend against good taste or decency or be likely to 
encourage or incite to crime to lead to disorder or to be offensive to 
public feeling, that advertisement shall not be displayed at the premises 
except with the prior consent in writing of the licensing authority. 

X 44



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Objection to exhibition of film 

11. Where the licensing authority has given notice in writing to the licensee 
of the premises prohibiting the exhibition of a film on the ground that it 
contains material which, if exhibited, would offend against good taste or 
decency or would be likely to encourage or incite to crime or to lead to 
disorder or to be offensive to public feeling, that film shall not be 
exhibited in the premises except with the prior consent in writing of the 
licensing authority. 

Additional conditions for ‘Club’ Cinemas showing films in the restricted 
clasification

12. (i) No club showing films in the 'restricted 18' category may operate 
in a multi-screen complex whilst persons under 18 are being admitted 
to any performance in the complex unless the Council's written consent 
has first been obtained. 

(ii) When the programme includes a film in 'restricted 18, category the 
licensee shall display in a conspicuous position at each entrance to the 
premises a notice in clear letters in the following terms: 

"CINEMA CLUB - MEMBERS AND GUESTS ONLY. PERSONS 
UNDER 18 CANNOT BE ADMITTED TO THIS CINEMA FOR ANY 
PART OF THE PROGRAMME". 

(In case of a multi-screen complex where consent has been granted 
the notice shall specify the particular part of the premises in which films 
in the 'restricted 18' category are being exhibited). 

(iii) The timetable of films required by rule 52 shall include the following 
addition to the categories shown; 

“Category ‘RESTRICTED 18’ passed only for persons of 18 years and 
over who are either members of the cinema club or who are guests of a 
member”.

(iv) All registers of members and all visitors, books of their guests shall 
be available for immediate inspection by the Council's Officers during 
any performance, or at any other reasonable time. 

(V) Tickets shall in no circumstances be sold to persons other than 
members.

(vi) No persons under 18 years of age shall be employed in any 
capacity at licensed premises which are operating as cinema clubs. 

(vii) Subject to prior written consent by the Council, a subscription 
may entitle the club member to attend other clubs under the same 
management.

XI45



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

(viii) Membership rules for these club cinemas shall include the 
following:

(a) The club rules must be submitted to the Council 14 days before 
the club commences operations and notice of all rule changes shall 
be given to the Council within 14 days of the change. 

(b) Only members and their guests shall attend exhibitions of 
moving pictures classified in a restricted classification 

(c) Membership shall be open to persons of both sexes of not less 
than 18 years of age. Applications for membership, including both 
name and address, shall be in writing, signed by the applicant, and 
if deemed necessary such applicants shall provide satisfactory 
references and proof of age. 

(d) No person shall be admitted to membership until the expiration 
of at least 24 hours after such written application has been 
approved by the licensed proprietors. 

(e) New members shall be supplied with a personal copy of the club 
rules before being admitted to membership and be given a copy of 
any rule changes within 14 days of the change. 

(f) An annual subscription shall be fixed for the club and shall run 
for 12 months from  the date of registration. Membership may be 
renewed annually at the subscription for the time being in force, but 
the licensed proprietors may refuse to renew any membership 
without assigning reason for such refusal. 

(g) Members shall be entitled on any day to bring not more than one 
guest to accompany the member, and the name of the guest shall 
be entered in the visitors' book and counter-signed by the member. 

(h) On admission a member and his guest shall be bound by the 
rules of the club and by any by-laws and regulations made 
thereunder.

(i) Tickets shall be sold only to members on the production of a 
membership card, and members shall, if required, sign an 
acknowledgement for the ticket or tickets issued. 

(j) Membership cards shall be personal to the member and shall 
not be transferable to any other person. 

(k) Neither membership tickets nor guest tickets shall be 
transferable.

XII46



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

(l) No member shall introduce as a guest any persons under the 
age of 18 or any persons whose application for membership has 
been refused. The proprietors will reserve the right to refuse 
admission to any person. 

(m) Proof of identify, or of age, or of any particulars of any guest 
shall be produced by any member or guest if demanded by the 
licensed proprietors. 

(n) Members shall undertake to behave in a proper and orderly 
manner. Any member or guest acting in a manner which is 
offensive, or a nuisance or annoyance to others may be refused 
admission or expelled from the premises. A member may also be 
deprived of membership. 

Sale of sex articles 

13. Neither sex articles nor other things intended for use in connection 
with, or for the purpose of stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or 
acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity shall 
be displayed, sold, hired, exchanged, loaned or demonstrated in a ‘sex 
cinema’.

XIII47



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Part V Conditions Applying to Sexual Entertainment 
Venues

Times of Relevant Entertainment 

1. Relevant entertainment shall be permitted at the premises on the 
following days…. 

And between the following times……… 

Performances of Relevant Entertainment 

2. The performance of relevant entertainment within the premises shall 
not be visible from any area outside of the premises at any time. 

Age Restrictions

3. A prominent clear notice shall be displayed at each entrance to the 
premises advising customers that no person under 18 will be admitted 
and they may be asked to produce evidence of their age. 

4. All members of staff at the premises shall seek “credible photographic 
proof of age evidence” from any person who appears to be under the 
age of 25 years and who is seeking access to the premises.  Such 
credible evidence, which shall include a photograph of the customer, 
will either be a passport, photographic driving licence, or Proof of Age 
card carrying a “PASS” logo.

Staff

5. All staff employed to work at any premises licensed as a Sexual 
Entertainment Venue shall be required to provide an Enhanced 
Criminal Records Bureau disclosure to the Licensing Authority in which 
the premises is located. 

Club Rules 

6. The premises must provide a copy of it’s Club Rules to the Council and 
Thames Valley Police. 

7. All performers and staff shall be aware of the Club Rules. 

8. All dancers, staff and door supervisors shall read a copy of the rules 
relating to operating relevant entertainment. They shall sign and date a 
copy which shall be retained by the premises as part of their due 
diligence.

XIV48



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Management Operation Manual 

9. A Management Operation manual detailing all aspects of procedure 
when the premises is operating relevant entertainment shall be 
produced and approved by Thames Valley Police. This document shall 
be on going and under constant review. 

Performers

10. Performers shall be aged not less than 18. 

11. All performers shall be aware of the Management Operation. 

12. A log book shall be maintained on the premises detailing the names, 
start and finish times of individual performers involved in all forms of 
adult entertainment. 

13. At all times during the performance, performers shall have direct 
access to a dressing room without passing through or in close proximity 
to the audience. 

14. On leaving the premises performers, who wish to be, shall be escorted 
by a staff member to their vehicle or other safe location. 

Performances

15. Whilst dancers are performing there shall be a minimum distance of 
one metre between the dancer and the seated customers and 
prominent, clear notices shall be displayed at each table stating this 
requirement.

16. There shall be no physical contact between customers and the dancers 
except for the placing of money or tokens in a garter or into the hands 
of the dancer at the beginning or conclusion of a performance. 

17. No performances shall include any sex act with any other performer, 
persons in the audience or with the use of any object. 

18. No audience participation shall be permitted. 

19. Signs displaying the rules on the performance relevant entertainment 
will be displayed throughout the premises and be clearly visible to 
patrons. This will include any private individual booth area. 

20. In the event of the relevant entertainment be performed for private 
viewing, the patron shall be informed of the duration and price of the 
relevant entertainment, and the details shall be specified in a clearly 
visible notice in each area designated for private relevant 
entertainment.

XV49



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

Door Supervisors 

21. An adequate number of registered Door Supervisors shall be on duty 
on the premises whilst relevant entertainment takes place. There shall 
be at least one Door Supervisor on each entrance, in each separate 
part of the premises and on the door to the dressing room. 

22. The Door Supervisors shall be on duty at the premises at all times 
when the premises provides relevant entertainment. 

23. All Door Supervisors working outside the premises or whilst engaged in 
the dispersal of patrons at the close of business shall wear 'High 
Visibility Clothing' supplied the NightSafe Manager. 

24. The premises shall be a member of the Radiolink scheme. 

Closed Circuit Television (CCTV) 

25. A CCTV system shall be installed to cover all entrances and exits to the 
premises, and areas where relevant entertainment will take place. This 
system must be installed and fully operational before the premises 
opens for the licensable activity applied for. All cameras shall 
continually record whilst the premises are open to the public and video 
recordings shall be kept available for a minimum of 28 days with date 
and time stamping. 

26. At the time of installation or upgrading of any CCTV system it shall 
comply with the current and relevant Thames Valley Police guidelines 
for Standard Minimum Closed Circuit Television Requirements (Issue 
1, July 2004). To obtain a clear head and shoulders image of every 
person entering the premises on the CCTV system, persons entering 
the premises should be asked to remove headwear, unless worn as 
part of religious observance. 

27. The CCTV system shall incorporate a recording facility and any 
recordings shall be retained and stored in a suitable and secure 
manner for a minimum of one calendar month. A system shall be in 
place to maintain the quality of the recorded image and a complete 
audit trail maintained. The system will comply with other essential 
legislation, and all signs as required will be clearly displayed. The 
system will be maintained and fully operational throughout the hours 
that the premises are open for any licensable activity. 

28. A plan shall be submitted illustrating the position of all cameras and 
shall be with the approval of Thames Valley Police. 

29. A member of staff who is fully trained in the use of the system shall be 
on duty at all times when the premises is open till the premises is clear 
of customers, cleared of staff and closed. 

XVI50



Oxford City Council  Sex Establishment Licensing Policy

XVII

30. The premises will provide any footage upon request by Thames Valley 
Police or the Licensing Authority within 24 hrs of the request. 

31. The recordings for the preceding two days shall be made available 
immediately upon request, and recordings outside this period shall be 
made available within 24 hours. 

Crime Survey 

32. Upon completion of a crime survey by Thames Valley Police, the 
Licence Holder shall act accordingly with all reasonable 
recommendations of the survey in so far as they relate to licensable 
activities.

Layout of premises 

33. The approved activities shall take place only in the areas designated by 
the Licensing Authority and Thames Valley Police.

34. All dance booths are to be equipped with a panic alarm for safety. 

35. Arrangements shall be put in place to restrict access to the dressing 
room at all times when the relevant entertainment is taking place, and 
until such time as all performers have vacated it. 

36. The approved access to the dressing room(s) shall be maintained 
whilst striptease or entertainment of a like kind is taking place. 

37. The layout within areas used by customers shall not under go 
substantial change without the prior written consent of both Thames 
Valley Police and the Licensing Authority. 

Change of Use of Premises 

38. The Licensing Authority and Thames Valley Police must be informed 
should the licensee seek to change the use of the establishment to 
another form of sex establishment. 

Sale of Goods 

39. Neither sex articles nor other things intended for use in connection 
with, or for the purpose of stimulating or encouraging sexual activity or 
acts of force or restraint which are associated with sexual activity shall 
be displayed, sold, hired, exchanged, loaned or demonstrated in a 
‘Sexual Entertainment Venue’. 

51



!

Licensing Authority

"#$!%&'()*+&,-#.'!
/+0#.&+.1!23*+04!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
/+0#.&+.1!(55*+0('+3.&!(.6!#.78+9+#&:!! ;,#!/+0#.&+.1!<8',39+'4!

=$>396!?+'4!?38.0+*!
@(-&(4!A38&#!
BC!"'!%))#D&!"'!
=EF=@G!!=EB!B2;!
'#*H!!CBIJK!LKLKJK!
>($H!CBIJK!LKLMNN!

#-(+*:!*+0#.&+.1O3$>396H13PH8Q!

52



 
 
 

To:  General Purposes Licensing Committee 
    
Date:  19 October 2011         Item No:  
  
Report of:   Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report:  Horse Drawn Carriages - Consultation 
 

Summary and Recommendations 
 
Purpose of report: To recommend Committee to consider the responses to 
the consultation regarding Horse Drawn Carriages. 
 
Report Approved by: 
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Committee is recommended to: 
a) consider the responses received during the consultation regarding 
Horse Drawn carriages; and  
b) determine whether to  
(1) 
i) Proceed with the implementation of the Horse Drawn Carriage scheme. 
ii) Recommend Council to make the approved byelaws. 
iii) Subject to the making of the approved byelaws by Council authorise 
the Head of Law and Governance and Head of Environment Development 
to carry out the necessary statutory procedures. 
 

 OR 
 
(2) Not to proceed with implementation of the horse drawn carriage 
scheme.  
 

 
Introduction 
 
1. On 25th May 2010, a proposal to licence a Horse Drawn Carriage to 

carry out a journey on a designated route in the City Centre was 
received by the Licensing Authority, attached as Appendix One.  

 
Background 
 
2. Following receipt of this proposal, the Licensing Officers put the request 

to the General Purposes Licensing Committee on 13th October 2010, in 
order to obtain the Committee’s view on whether further consideration 
should be given to the proposal. At this meeting the Committee were 
informed of the following: 

 

Agenda Item 6

53



 
a) A Horse Drawn Carriage could not be licensed as a Hackney 

Carriage, but could be licensed as an Omnibus travelling along a 
fixed route. Such a route would need to be investigated with 
Oxfordshire County Council. 

 
b) Byelaws would need to be adopted to establish a stand where the 

horse and carriage would be able to wait to pick up and drop off fare 
paying passengers, and to cover the operation, and would have to 
cover the welfare of the animals, including a veterinary certificate, the 
provision of a suitably qualified driver and an attendant in addition to 
the normal requirements for Health & Safety.   

 
c) As no budget currently existed to carry out this proposal, the 

applicant must accept that he would be liable to pay for the costs 
incurred by the Licensing Authority carrying out the necessary work 
to investigate his proposal. 

 
d) Fees would need to be set to licence a guide, driver and proprietor. 

 
3. The Committee gave support in principle to the licensing of Horse 

Drawn Carriages, and requested that a further report be submitted in 
March 2011 following discussions with the Oxfordshire County Council 
as to the viability of roads and stands. 

 
4. At the next meeting on 1st March 2011, the Committee was informed of 

the following: 
 

a) The conditions applicable to the licensing of a guide, driver and 
proprietor of a Horse Drawn Carriage (attached as Appendix Two), 
and in order to promote public safety the guide and driver should 
undertake a Criminal Records Bureau Disclosure, and that the 
driver has attained a Road Certificate as described in the 
Department of Transport Code of Practice for Horse Dawn 
Vehicles.  

 
b) The proposed designated route following consultation with 

Oxfordshire County Council, including the proposal that the 
rickshaw stand in Broad Street be used for the carriage to pick up 
and drop off passengers, attached as Appendix Three. 

 
c) The Byelaws that would need to be implemented in order for the 

proposal to be implemented (attached as Appendix Four). 
 
5. The Committee resolved: 
 
 (a) To agree the proposed conditions for the: 

• Proprietor of a Horse Drawn Carriage 

• Driver of a Horse Drawn Carriage 

• Guide of a Horse Drawn Carriage 

• Route Provisionally Agreed with Oxfordshire County Council 

54



• Byelaws 
 

(b) That a reasonable fee to be set to hold a licence as a proprietor of a  
Horse Drawn Carriage, a driver of a Horse Drawn Carriage and a 
guide of a Horse Drawn Carriage; 

 
6. At its meeting on 15th June 2011, the Committee considered a further 

report regarding the proposal to licence Horse Drawn Carriages. The 
report informed the Committee of the following: 

 
a) That the Public Health Team Leader in Environmental Development 

had been consulted on the welfare of the horses and combined with 
the provisions in the draft byelaws and the legislative framework of 
the Animal Welfare Act 2006, the Public Health Team Leader did not 
believe that any further measures were required to ensure the 
welfare of the horses. 

 
b) The proposed licence fees be set at: 
 

• Guide of a Horse Drawn Carriage £100.00 

• Driver of a Horse Drawn Carriage £100.00 

• Proprietor of a Horse Drawn Carriage £250.00 

 
c) That there are additional costs to be borne by the applicants, and 

these include an Enhanced Criminal Records Bureau Disclosure and 
Medical Certificate for the driver and an Enhanced Criminal Records 
Bureau Disclosure for the guide. At the present time these costs are: 

 

• Enhanced Criminal Records Bureau Disclosure £43.00 

• Badge / Replacement Badge £10.00 

• Carriage Plate / Replacement Plate £25.00 

 
Any other costs associated with the applicants meeting the criteria 
will be payable by the applicant directly to the relevant service 
provider (i.e. Medical Certificate). 

 
d) That the draft byelaws have now received provisional approval from 

the Secretary of State for Transport, and that Full Council would need 
to make the byelaws before statutory advertisement and final 
confirmation by the Secretary of State.  

 
7. The Committee approved the proposed fees, recommended Council 

make the approved byelaws, and requested that the statutory 
advertisement of the byelaws be carried out, and that the general public 
be consulted as to the proposals. 

 
 
 

55



Consultation 
 
8. The Head of Environmental Development ran an online consultation 

from 4th July 2011 to 31st July 2011, seeking the views of the general 
public as to the Horse Drawn Carriage scheme. 

 
9. The online consultation received a total of 20 responses (4 in favour of 

the scheme, 16 in opposition of the scheme), which can be found 
attached as Appendix Five. 

 
10. In addition to the online consultation a response was received from the 

City of Oxford Licensed Taxicab Association and members of the 
Private Hire Trade Associations, attached as Appendix Six. 

 
11. Furthermore, 13 responses were received by email from individuals 

expressing their objection to the Horse Drawn carriage scheme, and 
are attached as Appendix Seven. 

 
12. An official response was received from the People for the Ethical 

Treatment of Animals Foundation (PETA) opposing the scheme, and 
650 further emails were received from members of PETA who had 
each completed an online petition on the PETA website. The official 
PETA response is attached as Appendix Eight, and one of the 650 
emails received via the PETA online petition is attached as Appendix 
Nine. 

 
13. Following the strong consultation response, officers have submitted 

this report to allow Committee to consider those responses.   
 
Recommendations 
 
14. The Committee is recommended to: 

 
a) consider the report and responses received during the consultation 

regarding Horse Drawn carriages; and  
 
b)  determine whether to: 
 

(1) 
 i) Proceed with the implementation of the Horse Drawn Carriage 

scheme. 
 

ii) Recommend Council to make the approved byelaws. 
 
iii) Subject to the making of the approved byelaws by Council 
authorise the Head of Law and Governance and Head of 
Environment Development to carry out the necessary statutory 
procedures. 

 
  OR 
 

56



(2) Not to proceed with implementation of the horse drawn carriage 
scheme.  

 

 
Name and contact details of report author: Julian Alison 

Licensing Team Leader 
Telephone (01865) 252381 
Email: jalison@oxford.gov.uk  

Background Papers 
 
Appendices: 
 
1. Proposal to licence Horse Drawn Carriages 
2. Conditions applicable to the licensing of a guide, driver and 

proprietor of a Horse Drawn Carriage 
3. Proposed Designated Route 
4. Draft approved Byelaws 
5. Responses from the online consultation 
6. Response from COLTA and Private Hire Trade Associations  
7. Responses from individuals received via alternative means 
8. Response from PETA Head Office 
9. Example of Response from PETA Members 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



Proposal to:  Oxford City Council 
 
On behalf of:  Kevin Merry Carriages 
 
Date:   25th May 2010 
 
 
Introduction: 
 
We are seeking permission from the City Council members to allow us to 
trade in the city centre.  Our business is Kevin Merry Carriages, we have 
been running a successful horse and carriage business for over 10 years, 
during which time we have provided a range of carriages for hundreds of 
weddings, funerals, country rides and summer balls. 
 
We have seen across many beautiful cities of the world that carriage rides 
offer the tourist a novel and pleasurable way to see the city’s sights in style.  
We believe that there is the opportunity in Oxford to provide our tourists 
and members of the public with a similar, stylish, environmentally friendly 
Oxford experience.  Particularly because, in days gone by, travel by carriage 
was a very popular mode of transport, we feel that this will help Oxford’s 
tourists “connect” with the city’s rich history. 
 
 
Health & Safety  
 
We recognise that having large animals in a city centre with many 
pedestrians, will inevitably lead to health & safety concerns.  Friesian horses 
are, by nature, compliant creatures and have been bred for over 300 years 
specifically to pull carriages.  Kevin’s horses have been under his guidance 
and instruction for many years.  He has over 30 years experience of working 
with horses, including the breaking in of horses for some of the most highly 
regarded racing stables in the world.  This is a practice that requires 
patience, a high level of skill and, most importantly, a finely tuned sense of 
empathy with horses. During the course of Kevin’s 10 year history of 
running his horse and carriage business, he has never experienced a horse 
getting out of control.  However, in the highly unlikely occurance of such an 
event, Kevin would be able to draw upon his vast experience to control the 
situation swiftly and safely.  Our horses are very experienced with traffic, the 
recently introduced 20 mph speed limit within the city will make carriage 
travel even safer and as an extra precaution, Kevin has even fitted disc 
brakes to the wheels of the carriages. 
 

APPENDIX ONE

59



With regards to insurance, all required insurance is in place to transport 
members of the public together with public liability insurance with the 
N.F.U. 
 
Finally, we would reserve the right to refuse anyone who we believe to be 
under the influence of alcohol or drugs, indeed anyone who we believe 
would compromise the welfare of the horses and safety of the driver, 
assistant and general public.   
 
 
Horse Welfare 
 
The welfare of our horses is of great importance to us, as is all animal 
welfare.  Kevin Merry Carriages donates a portion of its profits to a charity 
set up specifically to assist in rehabilitation of maltreated horses. Because of 
our concerns over the proper treatment of our horses, we would propose 
the following considerations; 
 
That we would ensure sufficient water is available for the horses to drink 
throughout the day.  The provision of hay would not be necessary as our 
horses feed early morning and in the evening. 
 
The horse’s working day would not extend 7.5 hrs per day.  We envisage 
that the proposed route would take approximately 30 minutes to complete.  
The horses would be perfectly capable, without being under duress, of 
managing 4 consecutive routes.  This 2 hour period would be followed by a 
30 minute rest during which we would provide our horses with water and 
loosen the girth belts to give maximum comfort.  
 
Transport to and from site 
 

In order to transport the horses and carriage into Oxford, we would use one 
of our horse boxes and our flat bed transporter for the carriage.  These 
would be parked at a pre-determined location in North Oxford (within the 
ring road) and from there we would ride the carriage into town.  There 
would be a second vehicle parked in close proximity to our ideal “pitch” to 
store water and refreshments for the team. 
 
Location  
 
We would ensure that we were mindful of other trader’s business areas and 
would not want to encroach on their “territory” or carry out our business in 
such a way as would have a negative impact on them.  Broad Street is a 
popular destination for tourists providing access to Balliol and Trinity 

60



Colleges as well as close proximity to the Sheldonian theatre and the 
Bodlean Library.  The passage of traffic is limited, making it one of the 
quieter streets and therefore an obvious ideal location to offer our service. 
The ideal pitch would be on the opposite side to the main row of shops.  
This being the quieter side of the street, it would also have less impact on 
pedestrians.  The site would also have the added advantage of being 
opposite the tourist office. 
 
Waste Collection  
 
We would ensure that any droppings between rides would be collected and 
disposed of immediately.  However, most horses tend to go whilst moving. 
It would be impractical to keep stopping & starting tending to the 
droppings, so we would ensure that at the end of the day, we would collect 
any droppings made by the horses, to ensure that the streets were left clean. 
 
 

Routes and Schedules 
 

The route would take approximately 30 minutes and would take passengers 
from the pick up point from Broad Street, tour a number of the major sites 
throughout the city centre and return the passengers to Broad Street.  We 
do not intend our service to pick up passengers from one point and 

drop off at another. 
 
We would look to operate a route no greater than 1 km radius from our 
desired location of Broad Street.  To avoid the more heavily congested roads 
whilst ensuring that our passengers had the opportunity to pass the major 
attractions and colleges.  We are aware that there are several streets in 
Oxford which are “restricted access” but as yet are unsure as to whether this 
applies to horses and carriage.  Therefore, should our application be 
successful, we would take advice and instruction from the Council’s 
highways department before finalising the specific route. 
 
We would look to initially offer the carriage service on Sundays from May 
through to September. However, should the rides prove as popular as we 
expect, we have the capacity to extend our service to Saturdays and 
throughout the week if permissable.   
 
As indicated in the Horse welfare section, we would not want the horses to 
work beyond approximately 7.5 hours daily, inclusive of rests.  We would 
envisage that rides would be available from 10:00 am through to 5:30 pm.  
During very warm periods, should we be so lucky, the rides would run to 

61



avoid prolonged exposure to heat.  In all circumstances, we would stop 
taking passengers at least 1 hour before lighting up time. 
 
We would have 3 staff members present; Kevin as the driver and his 
assistant to accompany him on the ride.  The assistant’s duty would be to 
provide the passengers with information on the city’s sights and colleges 
during the tour. 
 
A 3rd staff member would be permanently stationed on Broad Street.  Their 
duties would include any clearing up after the horses if necessary as well as 
publicising the carriage rides to passing tourists and general public.  
 
 

Publicity  
 

Leaflets would be produced and distributed to the tourist office on Broad 
Street as well as hotels, guest houses and B & B’s throughout Oxford.  In 
addition, we would look to place promotional literature with other 
attractions around the city including websites with links to our own.  
 
 

Summary 
 

We very much hope that you can see the value of our enterprise in attracting 
tourism to Oxford, adding to the city’s cosmopolitan charm and allure. In 
fact, we hope that it becomes an Oxford attraction in its own right!   
 
The comments we have made so far hopefully will show you that our 
proposal is a considered one.  However, we would welcome from you any 
suggestions to help it become a successful one.  And finally, we would be 
happy to take anyone from the council on a “dry run” of our horse and 
carriage tour of the city and colleges.  Not only will you have a wonderful 
experience but will forever have the distinction of being the first people to 
have enjoyed what we hope will become a long tradition. 
 
Further information on the services currently being offered by our 
company, together with additional images, can be found on our website. 
www.kevinmerry.co.uk 
 
Niels Paige 
Kevin Merry Carriages 
Forest Hill 
Oxfordshire 
OX33 1DY  07547455692 01865 873099 

62



!"#$%&'#()*&"+*,-.$&/,0%*0%&
&

12345&0674383679!
! !

"#! $%&!'()*&!+,!-!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0 !7%&/&)3-,8&/!9-::&*!;8%&!'()*&<!-3*!
;8%&! 453)6(0<!/&0=&98)>&:?@!-3*!8 %&! %+:*&/!+,!8%&!>&%)9 :&! :)9&39&!
7%&/&)3-,8&/! 9-::&*!A8%&!=/+=/)&8+/B@!0 %-::! &30(/&!8%-8!8 %&?! -/&!-2-/&!+,!
8%&)/!*(8)&0!-3*!/&0=+30)6):)8)&0!)3!/&0 =&98!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&C!*/)>&/!-3*!8%&!
D)9&30)3'! E(8%+/)8?#!!.&F0%&!0%-::! 9+5=:?! 2)8%!8%&!=/+>)0)+30 ! +,!$%&!
$+23! G+:)9&!H:-(0 &0! E98!"IJK!-3*! "IILC! G-/8!MM!+,!8%&!D+9-:!
N+>&/35&38!7O)09&::-3&+(0!G/+>)0)+30@!E98!"LKP!-3*!-3?!Q?&R:-20!-3*!
9+3*)8)+30!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%&!:)9&30)3'!+,!%+/0&!*/-23!>&%)9:&0#!

! !
S#! $%&! '()*&! 2)::!6&!/& T()/&*! 8+!6&!9&/8),)&*!5&*)9-::?!,)8!-3*!%->&!8%& !

=%?0)9-:!-6):)8?!8+!%-3*:&!-!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0#!
! !
U#! $%&!'()*&!0%-::!3+8!=&/5)8!9%):*/&3!(3*&/ !8%&!-'&!+,!"J!?&-/0!8+!8/->&:!)3!

8%&!453)6(0!(3:&00!-99+5=-3)&*!6?!-3!-*(:8#!
! !
J#! $%&! '()*&!0%-::!3+8! -::+2! =-00&3'&/0! 8+!6&!9- //)&*! )3!8%&!4 53)6(0!

(3:&00!-!*/)>&/!)0!)3!-88&3*-39&!2%):08!8%&!453)6(0!)0!)3!5+8)+3#!
! !
V#! M,!8%&!'()*&!)0!9 +3>)98&*!+,!-3!+ ,,&39&!%&F0%&!5(08!)3,+/5!8%&!D)9&30)3'!

4,,)9&/!)3!2/)8)3'!2)8%)3!K!*-?0!+,!9+3>)98)+3C!')>)3'!,(::!*&8-):0#!
! !
P#! $%&! '()*&!0%-::!3+8!-::+2!-3?!-3)5-: ! 8+!6&!9+3>&?&*!)3!8%&!453)6(0!

(3:&00!)8!6&!-3!-00)08-39&!*+'#!
! !
K#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&!5(08! =/+>)*&! 8%&!-**/&00!+,!%)0F%&/!3+/5-:!

=:-9&!+,!-6+*&!-3*!),!8 %&!-**/&00!9%-3'&0!%&F0%&! 5(08! ')>&!3+8)9&!)3!
2/)8)3'!8+!8%&!D)9&30)3'!4,,)9&!2)8%!0&>&3!*-?0!+,!0(9%!9%-3'&#!

! !
I#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&! 0%-::!9+R+=&/-8&!2)8%! -3?!4,,)9&/!+,!8%&!H)8?!

H+(39):! -3*!(3*&/8-W&!8+!9+5=:?!2)8%!-3?!/&-0+3-6:&!/&T(&08!+/ !
)308/(98)+3!')>&3!6?!8%&!-,+/&0-)*!4,,)9&/#!

! !
L#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&! 0%-::!9+R +=&/-8&! ,(::?!)3!8%&!)3>&08)'-8)+3!+, !

9+5=:-)380! 6?!-3?!-(8%+/)0&*!4,,)9&/! -3*! 0%-::!-88&3*!-8!8%&!4,,)9&0!+, !
8%&! H+(39):!-3*!=/+*(9&!-3?!)3,+/5- 8)+3! /&-0+3-6:?!/&T(&08&*!*(/)3'!
8%&!9+(/0&!+,!8%&!)3>&08)'-8)+3#!

! !
"X#! .+:*&/0!+,!-3?!:)9&39 &! 0%+(:*!6&!-2 -/&! 8%-8!8%&!9+(39):!*+&0!3+8!8-W&!

/&0=+30)6):)8?! ,+/!)3,+/5)3'!:)9&39&!%+: *&/0! +,!8%&!&Y=)/?!+,!8%&!:)9&39 &!
-3*! 8%-8!/&,(3*0!-/&!3+8!5-*&!,+ /! -3?!(3&Y=)/&*!=&/)+*0 ! +,!-!
0(//&3*&/&*!:)9&39&#!

! !
""#! $%&!D)9&30)3'!E(8%+/)8?!/&0&/>&0!8%&!/)'%8!8+!-5&3*C!*&:&8&!+/!-**!-3?!

9+3*)8)+30!8+!8%&!D)9&39&!6?!2-?!+,!2/)88&3!3+8)9&!8+!8%&!D)9&30&&#!
!
!
!

APPENDIX TWO

63



':3;5:&0674383679!
! !

"#! $%&!*/)>&/!+,!-!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0!7%&/&)3-,8&/!9-::&*!;8%&!*/)>&/<!-3*!
;8%&! 453)6(0<!/&0=&98)>&:?@!-3*!8 %&! %+:*&/!+,!8%&!>&%)9 :&! :)9&39&!
7%&/&)3-,8&/! 9-::&*!A8%&!=/+=/)&8+/B@!0 %-::! &30(/&!8%-8!8 %&?! -/&!-2-/&!+,!
8%&)/!*(8)&0!-3*!/&0=+30)6):)8)&0!)3!/&0 =&98!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&C!*/)>&/!-3*!8%&!
D)9&30)3'! E(8%+/)8?#!!.&F0%&!0%-::! 9+5=:?! 2)8%!8%&!=/+>)0)+30 ! +,!$%&!
$+23! G+:)9&!H:-(0 &0! E98!"IJK!-3*! "IILC! G-/8!MM!+,!8%&!D+9-:!
N+>&/35&38!7O)09&::-3&+(0!G/+>)0)+30@!E98!"LKP!-3*!-3?!Q?&R:-20!-3*!
9+3*)8)+30!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%&!:)9&30)3'!+,!%+/0&!*/-23!>&%)9:&0#!

! !
S#! $%&! */)>&/!+,!-!.+/0&!1/-23!4 53)6(0! 0%-::!6&!+>&/ ! S"!?&-/0!+,!-'&C !

%->&!%&:*!-!,(::!*/)>)3'!:)9&39&!,+/!-8!:&-08!"S!5+38%0#!!
! !
U#! $%&!*/)>&/!+,!-!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0 !2)::!%->&!-88-)3&*!-!Z+-*!1/)>)3'!

H&/8),)9-8&! -0!*&09/)6&*!)3!8%&!1 &=-/85&38! +,!$/-30=+/8B0!H+*&!+, !
G/-98)9&!,+/!.+/0&!1/-23![&%)9:&0#!

! !
J#! $%&! */)>&/!2)::!6 &! /&T()/&*!8+!6&! 9&/8),)&*! 5&*)9-::?!,)8!-3*!%->&!8%& !

=%?0)9-:!-6):)8?!8+!%-3*:&!-!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0#!
! !
V#! $%&!*/)>&/!2)::!&30(/&!8%-8!8%&!453)6(0!W&&=0!8+!8%&!=/&09/)6&*!/+(8&!-0!

-==/+>&*!6?!8%&!H+(39):#!
! !
P#! $%&!*/)>&/!0%-::!3+8!=&/5)8!9%):*/&3! (3*&/!8%&!-'&!+,!"J!?&-/0!8+!8/->&:!)3!

8%&!453)6(0!(3:&00!-99+5=-3)&*!6?!-3!-*(:8#!
! !
K#! $%&! */)>&/! 0%-::!3+8 ! -::+2!=-00 &3'&/0! 8+!6&!9- //)&*! )3!8%&!453)6(0 !

(3:&00! -!*/)>&/B0!-0 0)08-38F'/++5! ! )0!)3!-88&3*-39&!8+!0(=&/>)0&!
=-00&3'&/0!2%):08!8%&!453)6(0!)0!)3!5+8)+3#!

! !
I#! M,!8%&!*/)>&/!)0!9+3>)98&*!+,!-3!+, ,&39&!%&F0%&!5(08!)3,+/5!8%&!D)9&30)3'!

4,,)9&/!)3!2/)8)3'!2)8%)3!K!*-?0!+,!9+3>)98)+3C!')>)3'!,(::!*&8-):0#!
! !
L#! $%&!%+:*&/!+,!!-!*/)>&/B0!:)9&39 &!0%-::!3+8!-98!-0!*/)> &/!+,!8%&!453)6(0 !

2)8%+(8!8%&!9+30&38!+,!8%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+,!8%&!453)6(0#!
! !
"X#! $%&! */)>&/! 0%-::!3+8!-::+2!-3?! -3)5-:! 8+!6&!9+3>&? &*! )3!8%&!453)6(0!

(3:&00!)8!)0!-3!-00)08-39&!*+'#!
! !
""#! $%&!*/)>&/!0%-::!-8!-::!8)5&0!2%&3 !*/)>)3'!8%&!453)6(0 !9-//?!2)8%!%)5!-!

9+=?!+,!8%&!Q?&!:-20!-3*! 8%&0&!9+3*)8)+30!-3*!0%-::!5-W&!)8!->-):-6:&!,+/!
)30=&98)+3!+3!/&T(&08!6?!8%&!%)/&/!+/!-3?!+8%&/!=-00&3'&/#!

! !
"S#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&!5(08! =/+>)*&! 8%&!-**/&00!+,!%)0F%&/!3+/5-:!

=:-9&!+,!-6+*&!-3*!),!8 %&!-**/&00!9%-3'&0!%&F0%&! 5(08! ')>&!3+8)9&!)3!
2/)8)3'!8+!8%&!D)9&30)3'!4,,)9&!2)8%!0&>&3!*-?0!+,!0(9%!9%-3'&#!

! !
"U#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&! 0%-::!9+R+=&/-8&!2)8%! -3?!4,,)9&/!+,!8%&!H)8?!

H+(39):! -3*!(3*&/8-W&!8+!9+5=:?!2)8%!-3?!/&-0+3-6:&!/&T(&08!+/ !
)308/(98)+3!')>&3!6?!8%&!-,+/&0-)*!4,,)9&/#!

64



"J#! $%&! %+:*&/! +,!-3?!:)9 &39&! 0%-::!9+R +=&/-8&! ,(::?!)3!8%&!)3>&08)'-8)+3!+, !
9+5=:-)380! 6?!-3?!-(8%+/)0&*!4,,)9&/! -3*! 0%-::!-88&3*!-8!8%&!4,,)9&0!+, !
8%&! H+(39):!-3*!=/+*(9&!-3?!)3,+ /5-8)+3! /&-0+3-6:?!/&T(&08&*!*(/)3'!
8%&!9+(/0&!+,!8%&!)3>&08)'-8)+3#!

! !
"V#! .+:*&/0!+,!-3?!:)9&39 &! 0%+(:*!6&!-2 -/&! 8%-8!8%&!9+(39):!*+&0!3+8!8-W&!

/&0=+30)6):)8?! ,+/!)3,+/5)3'!:)9&39&!%+: *&/0! +,!8%&!&Y=)/?!+,!8%&!:)9&39 &!
-3*! 8%-8!/&,(3*0!-/&!3+8!5-*&!,+ /! -3?!(3&Y=)/&*!=&/)+*0 ! +,!-!
0(//&3*&/&*!:)9&39&#!

! !
"P#! $%&!D)9&30)3'!E(8%+/)8?!/&0&/>&0! 8%&!/)'%8!8+!-5&3*C! *&:&8&!+/!-**!-3? !

9+3*)8)+30!8+!8%&!D)9&39&!6?!2-?!+,!2/)88&3!3+8)9&!8+!8%&!D)9&30&&#!
! !
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

65



<:6=:3586:&0674383679!
! !

"#! $%&!*/)>&/!+,!!.+/0&!1/-23!453)6(0!7%&/&)3-,8&/!9-::&*!;8%&!*/)> &/<!-3*!
;8%&! 453)6(0<! /&0=&98)>&:?@!!-3*!8%&!%+:*&/!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&!:)9&39&!
7%&/&)3-,8&/! 9-::&*!A8%&!=/+=/)&8+/B@!0 %-::! &30(/&! 8%-8!8%&?!-/&!-2-/&!+,!
8%&)/!*(8)&0!-3*!/&0=+30)6):)8)&0!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%&!>&%)9 :&C!*/)>&/!-3*!8%&!
D)9&30)3'! E(8%+/)8?#!!.&F0%&!0%-::! 9+5=:?! 2)8%!8%&!=/+>)0)+30 ! +,!$%&!
$+23! G+:)9&!H:-(0&0!E98!"IJK!-3*! "IILC! G-/8!MM!+,!8%&!D+9-:!
N+>&/35&38! 7O)09&::-3&+(0!G/ +>)0)+30@! E98!"LKP!-3*!-3?!Q?&R:-20!
-3*!9+3*)8)+30!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%&!:)9&30)3'!+,!%+/0&!*/-23!>&%)9:&0#!

!
S#! $%&!=/+=/)&8+/!5(08!6&!-2-/&!-3*! %->&!-!9+=?!+,!-3?!6?&:-2!/ &:-8)3'!

8+!8%&!:)9&30)3'!+,!-3!453)6(0!
! !
U#! $%&! =/+=/)&8+/!0%-::!&30(/&!8%-8! 8%&! */)>&/!-3*!'()*& ! -/&!-2-/&!-3*!

-*%&/&!8+!8%&!9+3*)8)+30!+3!8%&)/!:)9&39&!-8!-::!8)5&0#!
!
J#! $%&! =/+=/)&8+/!0%-::C!+3!9&-0)3'! 8+! +=&/-8&!8%&!453)6(0!,+/!2%)9%!-!

:)9&39&! )0!'/-38&*!+/!2%&3!/&T()/&*! 8+!*+!0+!0(//&3*&/!8%&!:)9&39 &! 8+!
8%&!D)9&30)3'!4,,)9&C!8+'&8%&/!2)8%!-3? !=:-8&! /&T()/&*!8+!6&!-,,)Y&*!8+!
8%&!>&%)9:&#!

!
V#! $%&! =/+=/)&8+/!5(08!&30(/&!8%&!2& :,-/&! +,!-3?!-3)5-:0!-3*!8%-8!8%&!

*/)>&/F'()*&!-/&!8/-)3&*!0(,,)9)&38:?!8+!*+!0+#!
!
P#! $%&! =/+=/)&8+/!5(08!5-W&!-//-3'&5&380 ! ,+/!-!0()8-6:&!=&/0 +3! 8+!

-00(5&! 8%&!*-? ! 8+!*-?!/&0=+30 )6):)8)&0! )3!/&0=&98!+,!6+8%!>&%)9:&!-3*!
*/)>&/!0%+(:*!%&F0%&!3+8!6&!/&-*):?!->-):-6:&!8+!(3*&/8-W&!8%&5#!

!
K#! $%&!%+:*&/!+,!-3?! :)9&39&!5(08!=/+>)*&!8%&!-**/&00!+, !%)0F%&/!3+/5-:!

=:-9&!+,!-6+*&!-3*!),!8 %&!-**/&00!9%-3'&0!%&F0%&!5(08!')>&!3+8)9&!)3!
2/)8)3'!8+!8%&!D)9&30)3'!4,,)9&!2)8%!0&>&3!*-?0!+,!0(9%!9%-3'&#!

!
I#! $%&!%+:*&/!+,!-3?!:)9&39&!0%-::! 9+R+=&/-8&!2)8%!-3?!4,,)9&/!+,!8%&!H)8?!

H+(39):! -3*!(3*&/8-W &! 8+!9+5=:?!2)8%!-3?!/&-0+3- 6:&! /&T(&08! +/!
)308/(98)+3!')>&3!6?!8%&!-,+/&0-)*!4,,)9&/#!

!
L#! $%&!%+:*&/!+,!-3? ! :)9&39&!0%-::!9+R+=&/-8&! ,(::?! )3!8%&!)3> &08)'-8)+3!+,!

9+5=:-)380!6?!-3?!-(8 %+/)0&*!4,,)9&/!-3*!0%-::!-88&3*!-8!8%&!4,,)9&0!+,!
8%&!H+(39):!-3*!=/+*(9&!-3?!)3,+/5- 8)+3!/&-0+3-6:?!/&T(&08&*!*(/)3'!
8%&!9+(/0&!+,!8%&!)3>&08)'-8)+3#!

!
"X#! .+:*&/0!+,!-3?!:)9 &39&!0%+(:*!6&!-2-/&!8%-8!8 %&!9+(39):!*+&0!3+8!8-W&!

/&0=+30)6):)8?! ,+/!)3,+/5)3'!:)9&39 &!%+:*&/0!+,!8%&!&Y=)/?!+,!8%&!:)9&39 &!
-3*! 8%-8!/&,(3*0!-/&!3+8!5-*&!,+ /! -3?!(3&Y=)/&*!=&/)+*0 ! +,!-!
0(//&3*&/&*!:)9&39&#!

!
""#! $%&!D)9&30)3'!E(8%+/)8?!/&0&/>&0!8%&!/)'%8!8+!-5&3*C!*&:&8&!+/!-** !-3?!

9+3*)8)+30!8+!8%&!D)9&39&!6?!2-?!+,!2/)88&3!3+8)9&!8+!8%&!D)9&30&&#!
!

!

66



&
&
&

<:6=6954&#6285&<:6;39367>??@&(A:554&B38C&"DE6:49C3:5&
06278@&0627F3?&
&
$%&!/+(8&!0%+(:*!8-W&!-==/+Y)5-8&:?!UX!5)3(8&0#!!$%&!9-//)-'&!
08-3*!)0!)3!Q/+-*!\8/&&8!
!

!! \8-/8)3'!,/+5!Q/+-*!\8/&&8!/)'%8!)38+!H-88&!\8/&&8!
!

!! $%/+('%!)38+!Z-*9:),,&!\T(-/&!7-(8%+/)8?!-3*!W&?!=&/5)88)3'@!C!
/+(3*!H-5&/-!6-9W!)38+!H-88&!\8/&&8C!08/-)'%8!+3!8+!G-/W0!
Z+-*!

!

!! D&,8!)38+!]&6:&!Z+-*C!:&,8!)38+!Q:-9W%-::!Z+-*C!:&,8!)38+!O(0&(5!
Z+-*!

!

!! Z)'%8!)38+!G-/W0!Z+-*#!!D&,8!)38+!\+(8%!G-/W0!Z+-*!
!

!! Z)'%8!)38+!\8#!H/+00!Z+-*C!)38+!D+3'2-::!\8/&&8!
!

!! D&,8!)38+!.)'%!\8/&&8C!+>&/!O-'*-:&3!Q/)*'&!8+!$%&!G:-)3C!6-9W!
(=!.)'%!\8/&&8!

!

!! D&,8!)38+!O&/8+3!\8/&&8C!/)'%8!)38+!4/)&:!\T(-/&!
!

!! ])3'!^*2-/*!\8/&&8!7-(8%+/)8?!=&/5)88)3'@!!
!

!! D&,8!)38+!.)'%!\8/&&8C!/)'%8!)38+!$(/:!\8/&&8!
!

!! D&,8!)38+!Q/+-*!\8/&&8!-3*!6-9W!8+!08-3*!

&
!

!

!

APPENDIX THREE

67



!

'#(GH&

&

"IG"#'&0,HJ&0".*0,/&

&

-J%/()$&

&

&

+>45&2745:&95F8367&K&6E&8C5&H6B7&<6?3F5&0?>2959&(F8&LMMNO&>9&37F6:=6:>854&B38C&8C5&

<2P?3F&!5>?8C&(F8&LMQRO&P@&8C5&"DE6:4&038@&0627F3?&B38C&:59=5F8&86&"S73P2959&37&8C5&

038@&6E&"DE6:4T&

&

&

,785:=:58>8367&

&
"#!!$%/+('%+(8!8%&0&!6?&:-20!_R!
!
!!!!!!!!!!!!!!;8%&!H+(39):<!5&-30!8%&!4Y,+/*!H)8?!H+(39):C!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!;8%&!*)08/)98<!5&-30!8%&!H)8?!+,!4Y,+/*C!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!;>&8&/)3-/?!0(/'&+3<!5&-30!-!O&56&/!+/!`&::+2!+,!8%&!Z+?-:!H+::&'&!+,![&8&/)3-/?!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!\(/'&+30C!-3*!!

!;>&%)9:&!:)9&39&<!5&-30!-!:)9&39&!)00(&*!(3*&/!0&98)+3!UK!+,!8%&!$+23!G+:)9&!
H:-(0&0!E98!"IJK!-3*!-3?!9+3*)8)+30!-88-9%&*!8+!8%&!'/-38!+,!0(9%!-!:)9&39&!)3!
-99+/*-39&!2)8%!0&98)+3!JK7"@!+,!8%&!D+9-:!N+>&/35&38!7O)09&::-3&+(0!G/+>)0)+30@!
E98!"LKP#<!
!

&

<:6;393679&:5A2?>837A&8C5&S>775:&37&BC3FC&8C5&72SP5:&6E&5>FC&6S73P29&F6::59=67437A&

B38C&8C5&72SP5:&6E&389&?3F57F5&9C>??&P5&439=?>@54T&

&

S#!!7-@!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!9-(0&!8%&!3(56&/!+,!8%&!:)9&39&!'/-38&*!8+!%)5!)3!

/&0=&98!+,!8%-8!+53)6(0!8+!6&!:&')6:?!=-)38&*!+/!5-/W&*!+3!-!=:-8&C!+,!-!*&0)'3!-3*!8?=&!

0(==:)&*!6?!8%&!H+(39):C!2%)9%!)0!=/+5)3&38:?!*)0=:-?&*!-8!8%&!/&-/!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&#!

!!!!!

76@!E!=/+=/)&8+/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!_R!

!

!!!!!!!!!7-@!2):,(::?!+/!3&':)'&38:?!9-(0&!+/!0(,,&/!-3?!0(9%!3(56&/!8+!6&!9+39&-:&*!,/+5!=(6:)9!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!>)&2!2%):&!8%&!>&%)9:&!)0!=:?)3'!+/!08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!6?!+/!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0a!!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!+/!

76@!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!8%&!>&%)9:&!8+!=:?!+/!08-3*!,+/!%)/&!+/!6&!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0!!!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!2)8%!-3?!0(9%!=:-8&!0+!*&,-9&*!8%-8!-3?!,)'(/&!+/!5-8&/)-:!=-/8)9(:-/!)0!)::&')6:&#!

!

APPENDIX FOUR

68



<:6;393679&95F2:37A&8C5&E387599&6E&8C5&6S73P29&>74&8C5&C>:7599&6E&8C5&>73S>?9&4:>B37A&

8C5&9>S5T&

&

U#!!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!9-(0&!8%&!+53)6(0!-3*!-::!+,!)80!,)88)3'0!-3*!&T()=5&38!

8+!6&!W&=8!)3!-!9:&-3!-3*!0-,&!9+3*)8)+3C!2&::!5-)38-)3&*!-3*!)3!&>&/?!2-?!,)8!,+/!=(6:)9!

0&/>)9&#!

!

J#!!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!9-(0&!&>&/?!=-/8!+,!8%&!%-/3&00!+,!-3?!-3)5-:!

%)89%&*!(=!8+!8%&!+53)6(0!8+!6&!W&=8!)3!'++*!+/*&/!0+!8%-8!8%&!-3)5-:!)0!=/+=&/:?!-3*!

0&9(/&:?!-88-9%&*!8+!8%&!>&%)9:&!-3*!(3*&/!9+38/+:!-8!-::!8)5&0#!

!

<:6;393679&:5A2?>837A&8C5&F6742F8&6E&8C5&=:6=:3586:9O&4:3;5:9&>74&F6742F86:9&6E&

6S73P2959&=?@37A&B38C37&8C5&4398:3F8&37&8C53:&95;5:>?&5S=?6@S5789O&>74&4585:S3737A&

BC58C5:&92FC&4:3;5:9&>74&F6742F86:9&9C>??&B5>:&>7@&>74&BC>8&P>4A59T&

&

V#!!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!9-//?!+/!=&/5)8!8+!6&!9-//)&*!)3!

0(9%!+53)6(0!-3?!'/&-8&/!3(56&/!+,!=-00&3'&/0!8%-3!8%&!3(56&/!+,!=-00&3'&/0!2%)9%!)8!)0!

:)9&30&*!8+!9-//?#!

!

P#!!E!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!6&%->&!)3!-!9)>):!-3*!+/*&/:?!5-33&/!-3*!0%-::!

8-W&!-::!/&-0+3-6:&!=/&9-(8)+30!8+!&30(/&!8%&!0-,&8?!+,!=&/0+30!9+3>&?&*!)3C!&38&/)3'!+/!

-:)'%8)3'!,/+5!8%&!+53)6(0C!-3*!+,!-3?!-3)5-:!(0&*!8+!*/-2!)8#!

!

K#!!E!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!05+W&!-8!-3?!8)5&!2%&3!8%&!+53)6(0!)0!6&)3'!

(0&*!8+!9+3>&?!=-00&3'&/0#!

!

I#!!E!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!-8!-::!8)5&0!2%&3!8%&!+53)6(0!)0!=:?)3'!+/!

08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!6?!+/!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0!2&-/!8%&!6-*'&!=/+>)*&*!6?!8%&!H+(39):!)3!

0(9%!-!=+0)8)+3!-3*!5-33&/!-0!8+!6&!=:-)3:?!>)0)6:&#!

!

L#!!E!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8C!-8!-3?!8)5&!2%&3!8%&!+53)6(0!)0!=:?)3'!+/!

08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!6?!+/!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0C!+=&/-8&!-!/-*)+!+/!+8%&/!0+(3*R

/&=/+*(9)3'!&T()=5&38!+8%&/!8%-3!,+/!8%&!=(/=+0&0!+,!0&3*)3'!+/!/&9&)>)3'!5&00-'&0!)3!!!

9+33&98)+3!2)8%!8%&!+=&/-8)+3!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&#!

!

69



"X#!E!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!2%&3!=:?)3'!,+/!%)/&!+/!9-//?)3'!=-00&3'&/0!0%-::!=/+9&&*!!!

!!2)8%+(8!*&:-?!6&82&&3!8%&!=+)380!*&8&/5)3&*!6?!8%&!>&%)9:&!:)9&39&!)00(&*!)3!/&0=&98!+,!

8%-8!+53)6(0C!-3*!+3:?!>)-!-3?!+,!8%&!08-3*0!*&8&/5)3&*!6?!8%&!0-)*!>&%)9:&!:)9&39&#!!!

!

""#!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8C!)3!-3?!08/&&8!2)8%)3!8%&!*)08/)98C!!

!!!!!!,&&*!+/!-::+2!8+!6&!,&*!-3?!-3)5-:!%-/3&00&*!+/!+8%&/2)0&!-88-9%&*!8+!8%&!+53)6(0C!!!!

!!!!!!&Y9&=8!2)8%!,++*!9+38-)3&*!)3!-!=/+=&/!6-'!+/!9+38-)3&/!0(0=&3*&*!,/+5!8%&!%&-*!+,!8%&!!

!!!!!!-3)5-:!+/!,/+5!-3?!9&38/&!=+:&!+,!8%&!>&%)9:&C!+/!2%)9%!)0!6&)3'!%&:*!-3*!*&:)>&/&*!2)8%!8%&!!!

!!!!!!%-3*!+,!8%&!=&/0+3!,&&*)3'!8%&!-3)5-:#!

!

<:6;393679&:5A2?>837A&8C5&72SP5:&>74&95F2:37A&8C5&E387599&6E&8C5&>73S>?9&86&P5&>??6B54&

86&4:>B&>7&6S73P29O&>74&E6:&8C5&:5S6;>?&8C5:5E:6S&6E&27E38&>73S>?9T&

&

"S#!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!8%&!0-5&!8+!6&!*/-23!6?!!

!!!!!!5+/&!8%-3!82+!-3)5-:0!-8!-3?!+3&!8)5&C!-3*!0%-::!&30(/&!8%-8!8%&!82+!-3)5-:0!-/&!+,!8%&!!!

!!!!!!0-5&!0=&9)&0#!

!

"U#!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!8%&!-3)5-:!8+!6&!(0&*!8+!!!

!!!!!!*/-2!8%&!+53)6(0!(3:&00C!2)8%)3!8%&!=/&9&*)3'!82&:>&!5+38%0C!-!9&/8),)9-8&!+,!,)83&00C!)3!-!!!!!!!!!!

!!!!!!,+/5!0(==:)&*!6?!8%&!H+(39):C!%-0!6&&3!)00(&*!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%-8!-3)5-:!,+::+2)3'!-3!!

!!!!!!&Y-5)3-8)+3!6?!-!>&8&/)3-/?!0(/'&+3!0=&9)-:)0)3'!)3!:-/'&!-3)5-:!=/-98)9&#!

!

"J#!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8C!-8!-3?!8)5&!2%&3!8%&!+53)6(0!)0!=:?)3'!+/!!

08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!+/!6&)3'!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0C!*/)>&!+/!-::+2!8+!6&!*/)>&3!+/!%-/3&00!

+/!-::+2!8+!6&!%-/3&00&*!8+!8%&!+53)6(0!-3?!-3)5-:!)3!0(9%!9+3*)8)+3!-0!8+!&Y=+0&!-3?!!

!!!!!!=&/0+3!6&)3'!9+3>&?&*!+/!6&)3'!)3!0(9%!+53)6(0C!+/!-3?!=&/0+3!8/->&/0)3'!-3?!08/&&8C!8+!!

!!!!!!/)0W!+,!)3b(/?#!

!

"V#!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!-3!-3)5-:!8+!*/-2!-3?!!

!!!!!!+53)6(0!+/!8+!6&!%-/3&00&*!+/!+8%&/2)0&!-88-9%&*!8+!0(9%!-3!+53)6(0!,+/!5+/&!8%-3!0)Y!!

!!!!!!%+(/0!)3!-3?!+3&!*-?#!E3*C!),!8%&!-3)5-:!)0!%-/3&00&*!8+!-3!+53)6(0!,+/!-!=&/)+*!+,!8%/&&!!

!!!!!!9+30&9(8)>&!%+(/0C!8%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!0%-::!&30(/&!8%-8!8%&!-3)5-:!)0!/&08&*!,+/!-!

!!!!!!=&/)+*!+,!3+8!:&00!8%-3!+3&!%+(/C!*(/)3'!2%)9%!8)5&!8%&!-3)5-:!5(08!6&!,&*!-3*!2-8&/&*#!

!

"P#!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!-3?!-3)5-:!2%)9%!%-0!!

70



!!!!!!=/&>)+(0:?!6&&3!(0&*!8+!*/-2!-3!+53)6(0!,+/!-!8+8-:!+,!3+8!5+/&!8%-3!0)Y!%+(/0C!+3!-3?!

!!!!!!+3&!*-?C!8+!6&!(0&*!-8!-3?!+8%&/!8)5&!*(/)3'!8%&!/&5-)3*&/!+,!8%-8!*-?!,+/!-3?!+8%&/!!

!!!!!!=(/=+0&!)3!9+33&98)+3!2)8%!8%-8!+/!-3?!+8%&/!+53)6(0#!

!

"K#!E!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!&30(/&!8%-8!2%):&!-3!-3)5-:!)0!6&)3'!/&08&*!

!!!!!!)3!-99+/*-39&!2)8%!6?&:-2!"V!-6+>&C!8%-8!8%&!-3)5-:!0%-::!3+8!/&5-)3!%-/3&00&*C!+/!!!!

!! +8%&/2)0&!-88-9%&*!8+!-3!+53)6(0C!+/!(0&*!,+/!-3?!+8%&/!=(/=+0&!)3!9+33&98)+3!2)8%!-3!!!

!! +53)6(0#!!!!

!

"I#!7-@!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::C!+3!6&)3'!0+!)308/(98&*!6?!-3!-(8%+/)0&*!!

!!!!!!+,,)9&/!+,!8%&!H+(39):C!)55&*)-8&:?!9&-0&!8+!(0&C!,+/!8%&!=(/=+0&!+,!*/-2)3'!-3!+53)6(0C!!!

!!!!!!-3?!-3)5-:!2%)9%!8%-8!+,,)9&/C!-,8&/!9+30(:8-8)+3!2)8%!-!>&8&/)3-/?!0(/'&+3C!0=&9)-:)0)3'!)3!!!!

!!!!!!:-/'&!-3)5-:!=/-98)9&C!9+30)*&/0!8+!6&!(3,)8!,+/!8%-8!=(/=+0&#!!

!!!!!!

!!!!!!76@!c%&/&!-!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!-!*/)>&/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!%-0!6&&3!)308/(98&*!8+!08+=!(0)3'!-!!!

!!!!!!=-/8)9(:-/!-3)5-:!,+/!8%&!=(/=+0&!+,!*/-2)3'!-3!+53)6(0C!3+!0(9%!=/+=/)&8+/!+/!*/)>&/!!!

!!!!!!0%-::!9-(0&!+/!=&/5)8!8%-8!-3)5-:!8+!6&!(0&*!-'-)3!,+/!8%-8!=(/=+0&!(38):!-!9&/8),)9-8&!+,!!!

!!!!!!,)83&00!%-0!6&&3!)00(&*!6?!-!>&8&/)3-/?!0(/'&+3C!0=&9)-:)0)3'!)3!:-/'&!-3)5-:!=/-98)9&C!)3!-!!!

!!!!!!,+/5!0(==:)&*!6?!8%&!H+(39):#!

!

<:6;393679&E6:&95F2:37A&8C5&9>E5&F29864@&>74&:582:7&6E&=:3;>85&=:6=5:8@&

&

"L#!$%&!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::C!6&,+/&!*&=-/8)3'!,/+5!-3?!=+)38!,)Y&*!6?!!

!!!!!!8%&!>&%)9:&!:)9&39&!)00(&*!)3!/&0=&98!+,!8%-8!+53)6(0C!9-/&,(::?!0&-/9%!8%&!+53)6(0!,+/!-3?!!

!!!!!!=/+=&/8?!2%)9%!5-?!%->&!6&&3!-99)*&38-::?!:&,8!8%&/&)3#!

!

SX#!E3?!=/+=/)&8+/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::C!),!-3?!=/+=&/8?!-99)*&38-::?!:&,8!!

!!!!!!8%&/&)3!6?!-3?!=&/0+3!2%+!5-?!%->&!6&&3!9+3>&?&*!)3!8%&!+53)6(0!6&!,+(3*!6?!+/!!!

!!!!!!%-3*&*!8+!%)5C!8-W&!)8!-0!0++3!-0!=+00)6:&!-3*!)3!-3?!&>&38!2)8%)3!SJ!%+(/0C!),!3+8!9:-)5&*!!

!!!!!!6?!+/!+3!6&%-:,!+,!)80!+23&/C!8+!-!=+:)9&!08-8)+3!)3!8%&!*)08/)98!-3*!:&->&!)8!)3!8%&!9(08+*?!+,!!

!!!!!!-!=+:)9&!9+308-6:&!+3!%)0!')>)3'!-!/&9&)=8!,+/!)8#!

!

<:6;393679&E6:&8C5&5DC3P38367&67&96S5&F679=3F2629&=>:8&6E&5;5:@&6S73P29&6E&>&

98>85S578&37&?5A3P?5&?5885:9&>74&E3A2:59&6E&8C5&E>:59&86&P5&45S>7454&>74&:5F53;54&E:6S&

8C5&=5:9679&2937A&>7&6S73P29T&

71



&

S"#!7-@!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!9-(0&!-!08-8&5&38!+,!8%&!,-/&0!=-?-6:&!6?!!!

!!!!!!=-00&3'&/0!8+!6&!&Y%)6)8&*!9+30=)9(+(0:?!)30)*&!8%&!>&%)9:&C!)3!9:&-/!:&')6:&!:&88&/0!-3*!!!

!!!!!!,)'(/&0#!&!!!!!!!

!&&!

76@!$%&!=/+=/)&8+/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!6&-/)3'!-!08-8&5&38!+,!,-/&0!)3!!!

!!!!!!-99+/*-39&!2)8%!8%)0!6?&:-2!0%-::!3+8!2):,(::?!+/!3&':)'&38:?!9-(0&!+/!0(,,&/!8%&!:&88&/0!+/!!!

!!!!!!,)'(/&0!)3!8%&!08-8&5&38!8+!6&!9+39&-:&*!+/!/&3*&/&*!)::&')6:&!-8!-3?!8)5&!2%&3!8%&!>&%)9:&!!!!

!!!!!!)0!=:?)3'!+/!08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!6?!+/!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0#!

!

<:6;393679&=:5;57837A&3S=6:82737A&>74&8C5&P?6B37A&6E&6:&=?>@37A&2=67&C6:79&6:&68C5:&

S293F>?&3798:2S5789O&6:&8C5&:37A37A&6E&P5??9O&P@&>7@&=5:967&8:>;5??37A&67&6:&2937A&>7&

6S73P29T&

&

SS#!$%&!+23&/C!*/)>&/!+/!9+3*(98+/!+,!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8C!-8!-3?!8)5&!2%&3!8%&!+53)6(0!)0!!!

!!!!!!=:?)3'!+/!08-3*)3'!,+/!%)/&!6?!+/!(0&*!8+!9-//?!=-00&3'&/0C!6?!8+(8)3'C!9-::)3'!+(8!+/!!!

!!!!!!+8%&/2)0&C!)5=+/8(3&!-3?!=&/0+3!8+!(0&!+/!8+!6&!9-//)&*!,+/!%)/&!)3!0(9%!+53)6(0C!8+!8%&!!

!!!!!!-33+?-39&!+,!-3?!0(9%!=&/0+3!+/!+,!-3?!+8%&/!=&/0+3C!-3*!0%-::!3+8!5-W&!(0&!+,!8%&!!

!!!!!!0&/>)9&0!+,!-3?!+8%&/!=&/0+3!,+/!8%&!=(/=+0&#!

!

SU#!E!*/)>&/C!9+3*(98+/!+/!-3?!=&/0+3!8/->&::)3'!+3!+/!(0)3'!-3!+53)6(0!0%-::!3+8!6:+2!+/!=:-?!!

!!!!!!(=+3!-3?!%+/3!+/!+8%&/!5(0)9-:!)308/(5&38!+/!/)3'!-3?!6&::#!

!

<57>?8359&

&

SJ#!E3?!=&/0+3!2%+!+,,&3*0!-'-)308!-3?!+,!8%&0&!6?&:-20!0%-::!6&!:)-6:&!+3!0(55-/?!!

!!!!!!9+3>)98)+3!8+!-!,)3&!3+8!&Y9&&*)3'!:&>&:!S!+3!8%&!08-3*-/*!09-:&C!-3*!)3!8%&!9-0&!+,!-!!

!!!!!!9+38)3()3'!+,,&39&!8+!-!,(/8%&/!,)3&!3+8!&Y9&&*)3'!82+!=+(3*0!,+/!&-9%!*-?!*(/)3'!2%)9%!!

!!!!!!8%&!+,,&39&!9+38)3(&0!-,8&/!8%&!*-8&!+,!9+3>)98)+3#!

!

!

H!%&0"++"*&$%(/&"G&H!%&&U&

"IG"#'&0,HJ&0".*0,/&B>9&&U&

C5:52786&>EE3D54&P@&6:45:&6E&8C5&U&

0627F3?&37&8C5&=:5957F5&6E&VW&&&&&&U&

&

!5>4&6E&/>B&X&16;5:7>7F5& 72



!

!

!

!

$%&!,+/&'+)3'!6?&:-20!-/&!%&/&6?!9+3,)/5&*!6?!8%&!\&9/&8-/?!+,!\8-8&!-3*!0%-::!9+5&!)38+!

,+/9&!+3!8%&!!!!!*-?!+,!!!!!!!!!!SX""#!

!

\)'3&*!6?!-(8%+/)8?!+,!8%&!\&9/&8-/?!+,!\8-8&C!!

73



O)00!G!E!Q/+23!
G+:)9?!E*>)0&/!
$-Y)!G+:)9?!Q/-39%!
1&=-/85&38!,+/!$/-30=+/8!
UF""!N/&-8!O)308&/!.+(0&!
KP!O-/0%-5!\8/&&8!
D4d14d!
\c"G!J1Z!
1)/&98!D)3&_!XSX!KLJJ!SSKI!
1)>)0)+3-:!^3T()/)&0_!XSX!KLJJ!SSKI!
`-Y_!XSX!KLJJ!SS"S!
N$d!d+_!UVUU!SSKI!
!
c&6!\)8&_!222#*,8#'+>#(W!
!
4(/!Z&,_!QE$!SF"SFX"!
!
SU!O-?!SX""!

!

!

1-3)&:!\5)8%!^0T!
4Y,+/*!H)8?!H+(39):!
!
*05)8%e+Y,+/*#'+>#(W!
!

!
!
!
!
!
!
!
1&-/!O/!\5)8%C!
!
HORSE-DRAWN OMNIBUS BYELAWS!
!
$%-3W!?+(!,+/!?+(/!&R5-):!+,!SU!O-?!&39:+0)3'!,+/!=/+>)0)+3-:!-==/+>-:!*/-,8!6?&:-20!
/&:-8)3'!8+!%+/0&R*/-23!+53)6(0&0!)3!4Y,+/*#!
!
$%&!*/-,8!6?&:-20!-/&!-99&=8-6:&#!
!
\(6b&98!8+!8%&!9+30)*&/-8)+3!+, !-3?!+6b&98)+30!2&!5)'%8!/&9& )>&C!2&!0%-::!6&!=/&=-/&*!8+!
0(65)8! 8%&!6?&:-20!,+/!9+3,) /5-8)+3!+3!6&%-:,!+,!8%&!\&9/&8-/ ?!+,!\8-8&!,+/!$/-30=+/8!),C!
%->)3'!6&&3!5-*&!6?!8%&!H+(39 ):!-3*!0&-:&*C!8 %&?!-/&!8%&3!-*>&/8)0&*!-3*!0(65)88&*!)3!
-99+/*-39&!2)8%!8%&!=/+9&*(/&!=/&09/)6&*!)3! 0&98)+3! SUP!+,!8%&!D+9-:!N+>&/35&38!E98!
"LKS#!
!
!
f+(/0!0)39&/&:?C!
!
!
!
!
!
Miss P A Brown!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!
!

74



N
a

m
e

P
o

s
tc

o
d

e
Q

u
e

s
tio

n
:H

D
C

2
  D

o
 y

o
u

 h
a

v
e

 a
n

y
 c

o
m

m
e

n
ts

 to
 m

a
k

e
 re

g
a

rd
in

g
 th

e
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 o

f th
e

 B
y

e
la

w
   Y

E
S

 / N
O

 / O
T

H
E

R

Q
/)-
3
!

D
&
0
8&
/

4
g
J
!P
1
\

2
)::!8%

&
0
&
!+
=
&
/-
8+
/0
!6
&
!-
::+
2
&
*
!8+
!=
:?
!,+
/!%
)/&
#!2
&
!%
-
>
&
!-
:/&
-
*
?
!%
-
*
!8%
&
!

0
-
'
-
!+
,!8%
&
!/)9
W
0
%
-
2
0
!)3
!/&
9
&
3
8!?
&
-
/0
!2
%
+
!-
,8&
/!6
&
)3
'
!-
::+
2
&
*
!-
!0
8-
3
*
!8%
&
3
!

-
=
=
:)&
*
!,+
/!-
!%
-
9
W
3
&
?
!9
-
//)-
'
&
!:)9
&
3
0
&
!8+
!=
:?
!,+
/!%
)/&
#!'
:-
*
:?
!8%
-
8!2
-
0
!8(
/3
&
*
!

*
+
2
3
C!)0
!8%
)0
!-
3
+
8%
&
/!=
:+
?
a!2
%
&
3
!)8!)0

!=
/+
>
&
3
!(
3
&
9
+
3
+
5
)9
-
:!2
)::!8%

&
!+
2
3
&
/0
!

-
=
=
:?
!,+
/!-
!%
-
9
W
3
&
?
!9
-
//)-
'
&
!:)9
&
3
0
&
C!8%
&
3
!0
8+
=
!8%
&
!0
&
/>
)9
&
!-
3
*
!8/?
!8+
!

8/-
3
0
,&
/!8%
&
!:)9
&
3
0
&
!8+
!-
!8-
Y
)!9
-
6
h

O
-
/8)3
!

\
(
88+
3

4
g
J
!S
Z
f

^
:)i
-
6
&
8%
!

O
)::0
!4
Q
^
4
g
J
!"
D
.

H
+
3
'
&
0
8)+
3
_!9
-
/0
!>
-
3
0
!6
(
0
&
0
!j
!:+
//)&
0
!-
::!(
0
&
!8%
&
!D
+
3
'
2
-
::C!\

+
(
8%
!G
-
/W
0
!

Z
+
-
*
!/+
(
8&
!-
3
*
!-
:8%
+
(
'
%
!-
!S
X
5
=
%
!:)5

)8!)0
!3
+
2
!)5
=
+
0
&
*
!)3
!8%
&
!H
)8?
!9
&
3
8/&
C!)8!

)0
!3
+
8!&
3
,+
/9
&
*
#!$
%
&
!-
>
&
/-
'
&
!0
=
&
&
*
!+
,!-
!%
+
/0
&
!*
/-
2
3
!>
&
%
)9
:&
!)0
!

-
=
=
/+
Y
)5
-
8&
:?
!K
!5
=
%
C!-
3
*
!8%
&
/&
!2
)::!6
&
!3
+
!+
=
=
+
/8(
3
)8?
!8+
!+
>
&
/8-
W
&
!8%
&
!

9
-
//)-
'
&
!0
-
,&
:?
!-
:+
3
'
!-
!9
+
3
0
)*
&
/-
6
:&
!0
8/&
89
%
!+
,!-
3
!)5
=
+
/8-
3
8!8%
/+
(
'
%
!/+
(
8&
!

,+
/!5
+
8+
/!>
&
%
)9
:&
0
#!$
%
)0
!2
)::!9
-
(
0
&
!&
Y
8/&
5
&
!%
+
:*
(
=
0
C!-
3
*
!9
+
3
0
&
T
(
&
3
8!

,/(
0
8/-
8)+
3
!8+
!*
/)>
&
/0
!-
88&
5
=
8)3
'
!8+
!'
+
!-
6
+
(
8!8%
&
)/!:&

'
)8)5

-
8&
!6
(
0
)3
&
0
0
#

4
g
J
!"
G
E

M!-
5
!3
+
8!9
+
3
>
)3
9
&
*
!8%
-
8!8%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
&
*
!Q
?
&
:-
2
0
!9
+
(
:*
!6
&
!&
,,&
9
8)>
&
:?
!&
3
,+
/9
&
*

4
g
J
!"
E
f

O
)W
&
!

Z
-
89
:),,&

+
Y
U
!K
:8

M!,&
&
:!8%
-
8!8%
&
!(
0
&
!+
,!%
+
/0
&
0
!8+
!=
(
::!-
!9
-
//)-
'
&
!)0
!)3
!5
?
!+
=
)3
)+
3
!

*
&
8/)5

&
3
8-
:!8+
!8%
&
!%
+
/0
&
0
!%
&
-
:8%
!-
3
*
!0
-
,&
8?
#!8%
&
!3
+
)0
&
!+
,!-
::!8%

&
!6
(
0
&
0
!

8%
-
8!(
0
&
!8%
&
0
&
!0
8/&
&
80
!9
+
(
:*
!0
9
-
/&
!8%
&
5
!9
-
(
0
)3
'
!*
-
3
'
&
/!8+
!8%
&
!%
+
/0
&
0
!

-
3
*
!=
-
0
0
&
3
'
&
/0
#!8%
&
!8+
Y
)9
!,(
5
&
0
!9
-
(
0
&
*
!6
?
!8/-
,,)9
!9
+
(
:*
!-
,,&
9
8!8%
&
!0
-
)*
!

%
+
/0
&
0
!%
&
-
:8%
#!8%
&
/&
k0
!5
+
/&
!&
3
+
(
'
%
!0
)8&
!0
&
&
)3
'
!>
&
%
)9
:&
0
!3
+
2
!9
-
(
0
)3
'
!

9
+
3
'
&
0
8)+
3
!+
3
!8%
&
0
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
&
*
!/+
(
8&
0
!3
+
2
!2
)8%
+
(
8!9
-
(
0
)3
'
!,(
/8%
&
/!*
&
:-
?

2
%
)9
%
!)3
!8(
/3
!9
-
(
0
&
!5
+
/&
!=
+
::(
8)+
3
!2
%
)9
%
!8%
&
0
&
!=
+
+
/!-
3
)5
-
:0
!2
+
(
:*
!%
-
>

8+
!&
3
*
(
/&
#

0&

c
%
):0
8!9
-
/&
!%
-
0
!6
&
&
3
!8-
W
&
3
!+
>
&
/!8%
&
!/+
(
8&
C!M!-

5
!9
+
3
9
&
/3
&
*
!D
+
3
'
2
-
::!

\
8/&
&
8!R!8%

&
!G
:-
)3
!R!4

/)&
:!\
8/&
&
8F]
)3
'
!^
*
2
-
/*
!\
8/&
&
8!R!$

(
/:!\
8/&
&
8!2
)::!-
*
*
!

8+
!*
&
:-
?
0
!,+
/!6
(
0
&
0
#!`
/+
5
!8%
)0
!2
&
&
W
&
3
*
!8%
&
/&
!-
/&
!,&
2
&
/!6
(
0
&
0
!(
0
)3
'
!

.
)'
%
!\
8/&
&
8!-
0
!=
-
/8!+
,!8%
&
!l$
/-
3
0
,+
/5
!4
Y
,+
/*
l!>
)0
)+
3
!8+
!)5
=
/+
>
&
!8%
&
!

&
3
>
)/+
3
5
&
3
8!,+
/!=
&
*
&
0
8/)-
3
0
#!$
%
)0
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:0
!2
+
(
:*
!-
=
=
&
-
/!8+
!6
&
!

0
+
5
&
2
%
-
8!-
8!+
*
*
0
!2
)8%
!8%
-
8!>
)0
)+
3
#!c
&
!0
8/+
3
'
:?
!9
-
(
8)+
3
!-
'
-
)3
0
8!%
&
!.
)'
%
!

\
8/&
&
8!6
&
)3
'
!=
-
/8!+
,!8%
&
!/+
(
8&
#

M!+
6
b&
9
8!8+
!8%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:!+
3
!'
/+
(
3
*
0
!+
,!=
(
6
:)9
!%
&
-
:8%
!-
3
*
!%
?
'
)&
3
&
_!2
%
&
/&
!

8%
&
!%
+
/0
&
!0
8-
3
*
0
!)3
!8%
&
!Q
/+
-
*
C!(
/)3
&
!2
)::!/(

3
!)3
!8%
&
!/+
-
*
2
-
?
C!)3
8+
!8%
&
!

=
(
6
:)9
!*
/-
)3
-
'
&
!0
?
0
8&
5
C!9
-
(
0
&
!0
5
&
::!-
3
*
!-
88/-
9
8!,:)&

0
#!`
-
&
9
&
0
!:&
,8!)3

!8%
&
!

/+
-
*
2
-
?
C!+
3
!8%
&
!/+
(
8&
C!2
)::!6
&
!8/+
*
*
&
3
!)3
8+
!8%
&
!=
-
>
)3
'
C!/(
3
!+
>
&
/!6
?
!

>
&
%
)9
:&
0
C!-
3
*
!)5
=
+
0
0
)6
:&
!8+
!9
:&
-
/!(
=
C!-
0
!8%
&
!-
=
=
:)9
-
3
8!9
:-
)5
0
!%
&
!2
)::!*
+
!-

8%
&
!&
3
*
!+
,!&
>
&
/?
!*
-
?
#!$
%
&
?
!2
)::!-
:0
+
!0
5
&
::!-
3
*
!-
88/-
9
8!,:)&

0
#!

8

Q
u

e
s

tio
n

:D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 to

 m
a

k
e

 re
g

a
rd

in
g

 th
e

 

p
ro

p
o

s
a

l to
 lic

e
n

c
e

 a
 H

o
rs

e
 D

ra
w

n
 C

a
rria

g
e

M!2
+
(
:*
!6
&
!9
+
3
9
&
/3
&
*
!,+
/!8%
&
!2
&
:,-
/&
!+
,!8%
&
!%
+
/0
&
0
#!$
%
&
!9
&
3
8/&
!+
,!8%
&
!

9
)8?
!)0
!=
+
::(
8&
*
C!3
+
)0
?
!-
3
*
!6
(
0
?
#!$
%
)0
!)0
!3
+
8!'
+
+
*
!,+
/!8%
&
!%
&
-
:8%
!+
,!8%
&
!

=
&
+
=
:&
C!:&
8!-
:+
3
&
!-
!%
+
/0
&
!2
%
)9
%
!2
)::!3
+
8!6
&
!'
)>
&
3
!-
3
?
!9
%
+
)9
&
!-
6
+
(
8!6
&
)3
'
!

8%
&
/&
#!M!8%

)3
W
!8%
)0
!)0
!3
+
8!-
!'
+
+
*
!-
*
>
&
/8)0
&
5
&
3
8!,+
/!%
+
2
!4
Y
,+
/*
!/&
'
-
/*
0
!

-
3
)5
-
:!2
&
:,-
/&
#

$
%
)0
!)0
!,)3
&
#!H
-
3
k8!6
&
!-
3
?
!5
+
/&
!-
3
3
+
?
)3
'
!8%
-
3
!8%
&
!8+
(
/!6
(
0
&
0
#

APPENDIX FIVE

75



N
&
5
)3
-
4
g
U
!X
1
c

M!
-
5
!-
'
-
)3
0
8!
8%
&
!)
5
=
:&
5
&
3
8-
8)
+
3
!+
,!
8%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
&
*
!Q
?
&
:-
2
0
#!
G
/+
=
+
0
-
:!
8+
!

)3
8/
+
*
(
9
&
!%
+
/0
&
R*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//
)-
'
&
!/
)*
&
0
!)
3
!4
Y
,+
/*
!H
)8
?
!9
&
3
8/
&
!*
+
&
0
!3
+
8!
5
-
W
&
!

0
&
3
0
&
C!
'
)>
&
3
!%
)'
%
!>
+
:(
5
&
!+
,!
8/
-
,,
)9
C!
8/
-
,,
)9
!9
+
3
'
&
0
8)
+
3
!R
!9
/(
&
:8
?
!8
+
!%
+
/0
&
0
#!

!

Z
+
'
&
/!

^
>
-
3
0

4
g
U
!X
1
c

M5
=
:&
5
&
3
8!
8%
&
5

4
g
J
!"
m
N

.
-
>
&
3
k8!
%
-
*
!8
)5
&
!8
+
!/
&
-
*
!8
%
&
5
!2
)::
!8
/?
!8
+
!*
+
!0
+
!6
&
,+
/&
!8
%
&
!9
+
3
0
(
:8
-
8)
+
3
!)
0
!

+
>
&
/#

4
g
"
!U
E
\

.
&
:&
3
!

.
(
89
%
)3
0
+

3

4
g
J
!U
Q
\

D
&
-
%

Q
d
S
!U
^
1

1
/#
!E
#!

O
+
/+
>
-
8
4
g
U
!L
1
n

Mk
5
!-
'
-
)3
0
8!
8%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:#
!Z
+
(
8&
!)
3
9
:(
*
&
0
!0
8/
&
&
80
!2
)8
%
!0
&
/)
+
(
0
!8
/-
,,
)9
!

9
+
3
'
&
0
8)
+
3
!R
!)
8!
2
+
(
:*
!6
&
!9
/(
&
:!
8+
!%
+
/0
&
0
!-
3
*
!*
-
3
'
&
/+
(
0
#!
M3
!8
+
(
/)
0
8!

0
&
-
0
+
3
=
-
>
&
5
&
3
80
+
,8
&
3
+
>
&
/9
/+
2
*
&
*
R
=
&
*
&
0
8/
)-
3
0
,+
/9
&
*
)3
8+
/+
-
*
2
-
?

7+
>
&
/!
P
V
!?
+
(
3
'
!o
-
=
-
3
&
0
&
!>
)0
)8
+
/0
!9
+
(
3
8&
*
!)
3
!+
3
&
!0
)3
'
:&
!'
/+
(
=
!)
3
!.
)'
%
!

\
8/
&
&
8C
!3
&
-
/!
H
-
/,
-
Y
C!
)3
!o
(
:?
!S
X
"
"
@#
!

!
!

!
!
!

!
!

!

$
+
8-
::?
!-
'
/&
&
!2
)8
%
!8
%
)0
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:C
!4
Y
,+
/*
!3
&
&
*
0
!-
!5
+
/&
!>
-
/)
&
*
!0
&
:&
9
8)
+
3
!

+
,!
+
,,
&
/0
!,
+
/!
8+
(
/)
0
80
!2
%
+
!9
+
5
&
!8
+
!+
(
/!
'
/&
-
8!
9
)8
?
!p

M!
+
6
b&
9
8#
M!
*
+
3
k8
!W
3
+
2
!%
+
2
!2
)8
%
+
(
8!
8)
9
W
)3
'
!k+
8%
&
/k
#!
M!
-
5
!=
&
*
&
0
8/
)-
3
C!
9
?
9
:)0
8C
!

9
-
/!
*
/)
>
&
/!
j
!/
&
0
)*
&
3
8#
!n
0
)3
'
!/
+
-
*
0
!+
3
!/
+
(
8&
!0
(
'
'
&
0
8&
*
!%
-
0
!6
&
&
3
!*
),
,)
9
(
:8
!

2
)8
%
!8
%
&
!-
5
+
(
3
8!
+
,!
8/
-
,,
)9
!-
3
*
!2
)8
%
!*
/)
>
&
/0
!j
8+
(
/)
0
80
!2
%
+
!%
-
>
&
!:
)8
8:
&
!/
+
-
*
!

0
&
3
0
&
#!
E
!%
R*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//
)-
'
&
!2
)::
!0
:+
2
!(
=
!8
/-
,,
)9
!-
3
*
!6
&
!>
&
/?
!%
-
/*
!,
+
/!

9
?
9
:)0
80
!8
+
!3
&
'
+
8)
-
8&
#c
)::
!0
+
5
&
+
3
&
!=
)9
W
!(
=
!*
(
3
'
!T
(
)9
W
:?
!0
+
!8
%
-
8!
6
)W
&
0
!

*
+
3
k8!
0
:)=
!+
>
&
/!
2
%
&
3
!)
8k0
!2
&
8!
h
!M
0
!8
%
&
!6
+
88
:&
3
&
9
W
!+
,!
8%
&
!G
:-
)3
!/
+
(
3
*
-
6
+
(
8!

8%
&
!6
&
0
8!
=
:-
9
&
!,
+
/!
-
!0
:+
2
C!
8+
(
/)
0
8C
!5
+
3
&
?
RC
5
-
W
)3
'
!&
3
8&
/=
/)
0
&
!h

E
!.
+
/0
&
!1
/-
2
3
!H
-
//
)-
'
&
!+
=
&
/-
8)
+
3
!)
3
!8
%
&
!9
)8
?
!9
&
3
8/
&
!2
+
(
:*
!6
&
!-
3
!

-
*
*
)8
)+
3
-
:!
*
/-
2
!,
+
/!
>
)0
)8
+
/0
!8
+
!8
%
&
!9
)8
?
#!
$
%
&
!:
+
9
-
8)
+
3
!+
,!
8%
&
!0
8-
3
*
!+
3
!Q
/+
-
*
!

\
8/
&
&
8!
3
&
&
*
0
!8
+
!6
&
!9
-
/&
,(
::?
!9
+
3
0
)*
&
/&
*
#!
M!
3
+
8&
!8
%
-
8!
8%
&
!k+
8%
&
/!
0
)*
&
!+
,!
8%
&
!

/+
-
*
!8
+
!8
%
&
!5
-
)3
!/
+
2
!+
,!
0
%
+
=
0
!+
=
=
+
0
)8
&
!8
%
&
!$
+
(
/)
0
8!
M3
,+
/5
-
8)
+
3
!H
&
3
8/
&
k!

%
-
0
!6
&
&
3
!0
(
'
'
&
0
8&
*
#!
$
%
)0
!0
&
&
5
0
!8
+
!6
&
!-
!/
&
-
0
+
3
-
6
:&
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:!
-
0
!0
)8
)3
'
!

8%
&
!0
8-
3
*
!+
3
!8
%
&
!0
-
5
&
!0
)*
&
!+
,!
8%
&
!/
+
-
*
!-
0
!8
%
&
!0
%
+
=
0
!-
3
*
!M
3
,+
/5
-
8)
+
3
!

H
&
3
8/
&
!2
+
(
:*
!9
-
(
0
&
!-
*
*
8)
+
3
-
:!
9
+
3
'
&
0
8)
+
3
!8
+
!2
%
-
8!
)0
!-
:/
&
-
*
?
!-
!6
(
0
?
!-
/&
-
#

M!
+
=
=
+
0
&
!8
%
&
!(
0
&
!+
,!
%
+
/0
&
!*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//
)-
'
&
0
!,
+
/_
!-
3
)5
-
:!
2
&
:,
-
/&
C!
8%
&
!/
)0
W
!+

-
9
9
)*
&
3
80
C!
8%
&
!9
+
0
8!
8+
!8
%
&
!8
-
Y
!=
-
?
&
/!
,+
/!
8%
&
!/
&
'
(
:-
8)
+
3
!-
3
*
!&
3
,+
/9
&
5
&
3
8C
!

%
?
'
)&
3
&
!)
3
!8
%
&
!0
8/
&
&
8C
!-
3
*
!8
%
&
!,
-
8&
!+
,!
)3
b(
/&
*
!-
3
*
!/
&
8)
/&
*
!%
+
/0
&
0
#!
!$
%
)0
!)
0
!

-
!>
&
/?
!+
:*
!,
-
0
%
)+
3
&
*
C!
9
/(
&
:C
!-
3
*
!(
3
3
&
9
&
0
0
-
/?
!,
+
/5
!+
,!
&
3
8&
/8
-
)3
5
&
3
8#
!

G
:&
-
0
&
!0
&
&
!E
3
)5
-
:!
E
)*
k0
!/
&
=
+
/8
!-
0
!8
+
!2
%
?
!%
+
/0
&
!*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//
)-
'
&
0
!0
%
+
(
:*
!

3
+
8!
6
&
!:
)9
&
3
9
&
*
!)
3
!4
Y
,+
/*
!

%
88
=
_F
F2
2
2
#-
3
)5
-
:-
)*
#+
/'
#(
W
F%
F3
FH
E
O
G
E
MN
d
\
F+
8%
&
/F
E
D
D
FJ
J
J
F

,

E
'
-
)3
0
8!
8%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:#
!1
-
3
'
&
/0
!8
+
!%
+
/0
&
0
!-
3
*
!8
%
&
!=
(
6
:)9
#!
H
+
3
'
&
0
8)
+
3
!

)0
0
(
&
0
!,
+
/!
/&
0
)*
&
3
80
!-
3
*
!>
)0
)8
+
/0
#!
c
+
(
:*
!)
3
,:
(
&
3
9
&
!5
?
!*
&
9
)0
)+
3
!8
+
!>
)0
)8
!

-
3
*
!5
?
!+
=
)3
)+
3
!+
,!
8%
&
!9
)8
?
C!
)3
!-
!3
&
'
-
8)
>
&
!2
-
?
#

M!
0
%
+
(
:*
!:
)W
&
!8
+
!/
&
9
+
/*
!5
?
!0
8/
+
3
'
!+
6
b&
9
8)
+
3
!8
+
!8
%
&
!=
/+
=
+
0
-
:#
!$
+
!(
0
&
!%
+
/0
&
R

*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//
)-
'
&
0
!)
0
!-
!6
-
9
W
2
-
/*
!5
+
>
&
!-
3
*
!5
&
/&
:?
!-
!/
+
5
-
3
8)
9
)0
-
8)
+
3
#!
$
%
&
!

/&
-
:)8
?
!)
0
!-
3
)5
-
:!
*
)0
9
+
5
,+
/8
!-
3
*
!9
/(
&
:8
?
#

76



O
-
/8)3
!

^
*
2
-
/*
!

.
&
3
)'

4
g
S
!X
1
Q

M!-
5
!0
(
/&
!?
+
(
!9
-
3
!-
5
&
:)+
/-
8&
!8%
&
!0
)8(
-
8)+
3
!),!?

+
(
!'
+
!-
%
&
-
*
!6
(
8!8%
-
8!)0
!-
::#

N
/-
%
-
5
!

O
-
?
3
-
/*

4
g
S
L
!J
o
\

7d
+
!H
+
5
5
&
3
8!^
3
8&
/&
*
@

E
3
3
!

`
(
/8-
*
+

4
g
S
!X
m
$

4
g
"
S
!

I
Z
d

7d
+
!H
+
5
5
&
3
8!^
3
8&
/&
*
@

!

!!!
4
g
S
!I
Q
N

+
Y
"
"
!L
*
=

-
0
!-
6
+
>
&

o
-
3
&
!

O
-
/0
%
-
::

4
g
J
!J
o
^

E
0
!8%
&
/&
!)0
!+
8%
&
/!8/-

,,)9
!)3
!8%
&
!0
8/&
&
80
!8%
&
/&
!2
)::!6
&
!9
+
3
0
)*
&
/-
6
:&
!/)0
W
!8+
!

8%
&
!0
-
,&
8?
!+
,!8%
&
!%
+
/0
&
0
#!M!,&

-
/!8%
-
8!5
-
3
?
!2
)::!6
&
!)3
b(
/&
*
C=
&
/%
-
=
0
!W
)::&
*
C!

6
?
!6
(
0
&
0
!-
3
*
!+
8%
&
/!>
&
%
)9
:&
0
#!$
%
&
/&
!5
-
?
!-
:0
+
!6
&
!-
3
!)3
9
/&
-
0
&
*
!/)0
W
!8+
!

=
&
*
&
0
8/)-
3
0
#!M!-

5
!2
&
::!-
2
-
/&
!+
,!8%
&
!-
9
9
)*
&
3
8!=
+
8&
3
8)-
:!+
,!6
+
:8)3
'
!%
+
/0
&
0
!

&
>
&
3
!6
&
,+
/&
!2
&
!%
-
*
!5
+
8+
/)0
&
*
!8/-
3
0
=
+
/8#!4

Y
,+
/*
!)0
!6
(
0
?
!&
>
&
3
!+
3
!

0
(
3
*
-
?
0
!-
3
*
!)0
!3
+
!:+
3
'
&
/!0
(
)8-
6
:&
!,+
/!%
+
/0
&
R*
/-
2
3
!9
-
//)-
'
&
0
#

7d
+
!H
+
5
5
&
3
8!^
3
8&
/&
*
@

E
0
!-
!/&
0
)*
&
3
8!+
,!4
Y
,+
/*
!M!-
5
!9
+
3
9
&
/3
&
*
!,+
/!8%
&
!,+
::+
2
)3
'
!/&
-
0
+
3
0
_!q!

E
3
)5
-
:!2
&
:,-
/&
!q!$

/-
,,)9
!*
)0
/(
=
8)+
3
!-
3
*
!0
(
6
0
&
T
(
&
3
8!=
+
::(
8)+
3
!*
(
&
!8+
!:+
2
&
/

0
=
&
&
*
0
!q!4

8%
&
/!9
)8)&
0
!%
-
>
&
!-
:/&
-
*
?
!6
-
3
3
&
*
!8%
)0
!8?
=
&
!+
,!&
3
8&
/=
/)0
&
!q!$

%
&
!

(
3
=
/&
*
)9
-
6
):)8?
!+
,!%
+
/0
&
0
!9
-
(
0
)3
'
!.
&
-
:8%
!j
!\
-
,&
8?
!)0
0
(
&
0
!q!H

+
3
'
&
0
8)+
3
!

*
(
&
!8+
!0
:+
2
!0
=
&
&
*
!q!1

),,)9
(
:8)&
0
!+
,!/&
5
+
>
)3
'
!5
-
3
(
/&
!&
,,)9
)&
3
8:?
!q

^
Y
9
&
::&
3
8!)*
&
-
!8%
-
8!2
)::!*
&
,)3
)8&
:?
!6
+
+
0
8!8%
&
!-
=
=
&
-
:!+
,!4
Y
,+
/*
!,+
/!8+
(
/)0
80
#

7d
+
!H
+
5
5
&
3
8!^
3
8&
/&
*
@

M!-
5
!3
&
)8%
&
/!-
!8/-
*
&
/!3
+
/!-
3
!-
3
)5
-
:!/)'

%
80
!-
9
8)>
)0
8#!E

0
!-
!6
(
0
R(
0
&
/C!9
?
9
:)0
8!

-
3
*
!=
&
*
&
0
8/)-
3
C!M!+

6
b&
9
8!0
8/+
3
'
:?
!+
3
!8%
&
!'
/+
(
3
*
0
!8%
-
8!8%
&
0
&
!9
-
//)-
'
&
0
!2
)::!

-
*
*
!8+
!9
+
3
'
&
0
8)+
3
!)3
!8%
&
!9
)8?
!9
&
3
8/&
C!&
0
=
&
9
)-
::?
!,+
/!6
(
0
&
0
!)3
!8%
&
!.
)'
%
!

\
8/&
&
8#

M!%
-
>
&
!0
&
/)+
(
0
!9
+
3
9
&
/3
0
!-
0
!-
!/&
0
)*
&
3
8!+
,!4
Y
,+
/*
0
%
)/&
C!2
%
+
!>
)0
)80
!4
Y
,+
/*
!

/&
'
(
:-
/:?
!j
!-
0
!-
!%
+
/0
&
!+
2
3
&
/C!,+

/!8%
&
!,+
::+
2
)3
'
!/&
-
0
+
3
0
_!q!c

&
:,-
/&
!+
,!8%
&
!

%
+
/0
&
!q!1

)0
/(
=
8)+
3
!+
,!8/-

,,)9
!-
3
*
!9
+
3
'
&
0
8)+
3
!)3
*
)/&
9
8:?
!9
-
(
0
)3
'
!-
*
*
)8)+
3
-
:!

&
5
)0
0
)+
3
0
!*
(
&
!8+
!:+
2
&
/!0
=
&
&
*
0
!+
3
!8%
&
!*
&
0
)'
3
-
8&
*
!/+
(
8&
!q!.

&
-
:8%
!j
!

\
-
,&
8?
!+
,!=
&
*
&
0
8/)-
3
0
!)3
!8%
&
!&
>
&
3
8!+
,!-
!%
+
/0
&
!6
&
)3
'
!0
=
+
+
W
&
*
!q!.

+
/0
&
!

-
::&
/'
)&
0
F9
:&
-
3
)3
'
!+
,!(
/)3
-
8)+
3
!j
!,-
&
9
&
0
C!2
%
&
3
!0
8/&
&
8!9
:&
-
3
)3
'
!)0
!(
3
*
&
/!

=
/&
0
0
(
/&
#!q!`

:?
!3
(
)0
-
3
9
&
!q!Q

-
3
3
&
*
!)3
!+
8%
&
/!5
-
b+
/!9
)8)&
0
!2
+
/:*
2
)*
&

77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



A
P

P
E

N
D

IX
 F

IV
E

N
a

m
e

P
o

s
tc

o
d

e

B
ri
a

n
 L

e
s
te

r
O

X
4

 6
D

S
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

M
a

rt
in

 S
u

tt
o

n
O

X
4

 2
R

Y
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

E
liz

a
b

e
th

 M
ill

s
 O

B
E

O
X

4
 1

L
H

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
X

4
 1

P
A

Y
E

S
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
X

4
 1

A
Y

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

M
ik

e
 R

a
tc

lif
fe

o
x
3

 7
lt

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

G
e

m
in

a
O

X
3

 0
D

W
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

R
o

g
e

r 
E

v
a

n
s

O
X

3
 0

D
W

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
X

4
 1

Q
G

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
X

1
 3

A
S

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

H
e

le
n

 H
u

tc
h

in
s
o

n
O

X
4

 3
B

S
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

le
a

h
B

N
2

 3
E

D
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

Y
E

S

D
r.

 A
. 

M
o

ro
v
a

t
O

X
3

 9
D

U
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

M
a

rt
in

 E
d

w
a

rd
 H

e
n

ig
O

X
2

 0
D

B
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

G
ra

h
a

m
 M

a
y
n

a
rd

O
X

2
9

 4
J
S

Y
E

S
N

O

A
n

n
 F

u
rt

a
d

o
O

X
2

 0
Q

T
O

th
e

r 
(p

le
a

s
e

 

s
p
e

c
if
y
)

N
O

O
X

1
2

 8
R

N
Y

E
S

N
O

O
X

2
 8

B
G

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

T
 S

U
R

E

o
x
1

1
 9

d
p

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

J
a

n
e

 M
a

rs
h

a
ll

O
X

4
 4

J
E

O
th

e
r 

(p
le

a
s
e

 

s
p

e
c
if
y
)

N
O

T
 S

U
R

E

H
a

v
e

n
't 

h
a

d
 t

im
e

 t
o

 r
e

a
d

 t
h

e
m

 w
ill

 t
ry

 t
o

 d
o

 s
o

 b
e

fo
re

 t
h

e
 c

o
n

s
u

lt
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 o

v
e

r.

Im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
th

e
m

I 
a

m
 s

u
re

 y
o

u
 c

a
n

 a
m

e
lio

ra
te

 t
h

e
 s

it
u

a
ti
o

n
 i
f 

y
o

u
 g

o
 a

h
e

a
d

 b
u

t 
th

a
t 

is
 a

ll.

a
s
 a

b
o

v
e

A
s
 a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
 I

 a
m

 c
o

n
c
e

rn
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
: 

* 
A

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a

re
 *

 T
ra

ff
ic

 d
is

ru
p

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 s
u

b
s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 

lo
w

e
r 

s
p

e
e

d
s
 *

 O
th

e
r 

c
it
ie

s
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 b

a
n

n
e

d
 t

h
is

 t
y
p

e
 o

f 
e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 *
 T

h
e

 u
n

p
re

d
ic

a
b

ili
ty

 o
f 

h
o

rs
e

s
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 *

 

C
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 d

u
e

 t
o

 s
lo

w
 s

p
e

e
d

 *
 D

if
fi
c
u

lt
ie

s
 o

f 
re

m
o

v
in

g
 m

a
n

u
re

 e
ff

ic
ie

n
tl
y
 *

Q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
:H

D
C

2
  

D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 i

m
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e

 B
y

e
la

w
  

 Y
E

S
 /

 N
O

 /
 O

T
H

E
R

w
ill

 t
h

e
s
e

 o
p

e
ra

to
rs

 b
e

 a
llo

w
e

d
 t

o
 p

ly
 f

o
r 

h
ir
e

. 
w

e
 h

a
v
e

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 h

a
d

 t
h

e
 s

a
g

a
 o

f 
th

e
 r

ic
k
s
h

a
w

s
 i
n

 r
e

c
e

n
t 

y
e

a
rs

 w
h

o
 a

ft
e

r 

b
e

in
g

 a
llo

w
e

d
 a

 s
ta

n
d

 t
h

e
n

 a
p

p
lie

d
 f

o
r 

a
 h

a
c
k
n

e
y
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

 t
o

 p
ly

 f
o

r 
h

ir
e

. 
g

la
d

ly
 t

h
a

t 
w

a
s
 t

u
rn

e
d

 d
o

w
n

, 
is

 t
h

is
 

a
n

o
th

e
r 

p
lo

y
; 

w
h

e
n

 i
t 

is
 p

ro
v
e

n
 u

n
e

c
o

n
o

m
ic

a
l 
w

ill
 t

h
e

 o
w

n
e

rs
 a

p
p

ly
 f

o
r 

a
 h

a
c
k
n

e
y
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

, 
th

e
n

 s
to

p
 t

h
e

 s
e

rv
ic

e

a
n

d
 t

ry
 t

o
 t

ra
n

s
fe

r 
th

e
 l
ic

e
n

s
e

 t
o

 a
 t

a
x
i 
c
a

b
?

C
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
: 

c
a

rs
 v

a
n

s
 b

u
s
e

s
 &

 l
o

rr
ie

s
 a

ll 
u

s
e

 t
h

e
 L

o
n

g
w

a
ll,

 S
o

u
th

 P
a

rk
s
 R

o
a

d
 r

o
u

te
 a

n
d

 a
lt
h

o
u

g
h

 a
 2

0
m

p
h

 l
im

it
 i
s
 n

o
w

 

im
p

o
s
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 C

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
it
 i
s
 n

o
t 

e
n

fo
rc

e
d

. 
T

h
e

 a
v
e

ra
g

e
 s

p
e

e
d

 o
f 

a
 h

o
rs

e
 d

ra
w

n
 v

e
h

ic
le

 i
s
 a

p
p

ro
x
im

a
te

ly
 7

 m
p

h
, 

a
n

d
 

th
e

re
 w

ill
 b

e
 n

o
 o

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
y
 t

o
 o

v
e

rt
a

k
e

 t
h

e
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
 s

a
fe

ly
 a

lo
n

g
 a

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 s
tr

e
tc

h
 o

f 
a

n
 i
m

p
o

rt
a

n
t 

th
ro

u
g

h
 r

o
u

te
 

fo
r 

m
o

to
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 c

a
u

s
e

 e
x
tr

e
m

e
 h

o
ld

u
p

s
, 

a
n

d
 c

o
n

s
e

q
u

e
n

t 
fr

u
s
tr

a
ti
o

n
 t

o
 d

ri
v
e

rs
 a

tt
e

m
p

ti
n

g
 t

o
 g

o
 a

b
o

u
t 

th
e

ir
 

le
g

it
im

a
te

 b
u

s
in

e
s
s
.

I 
a

m
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
v
in

c
e

d
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 B

y
e

la
w

s
 c

o
u

ld
 b

e
 e

ff
e

c
ti
v
e

ly
 e

n
fo

rc
e

d

I 
a

m
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 B

y
e

la
w

s
. 

P
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
to

 i
n

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 h
o

rs
e

-d
ra

w
n

 c
a

rr
ia

g
e

 r
id

e
s
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 

C
it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 d
o

e
s
 n

o
t 

m
a

k
e

 s
e

n
s
e

, 
g

iv
e

n
 h

ig
h

 v
o

lu
m

e
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
, 

tr
a

ff
ic

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 -

 c
ru

e
lt
y
 t

o
 h

o
rs

e
s
. 

E
x
c
e

lle
n

t 
id

e
a

 t
h

a
t 

w
ill

 d
e

fi
n

it
e

ly
 b

o
o

s
t 

th
e

 a
p

p
e

a
l 
o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
 f

o
r 

to
u

ri
s
ts

.

I 
a

m
 n

e
it
h

e
r 

a
 t

ra
d

e
r 

n
o

r 
a

n
 a

n
im

a
l 
ri
g

h
ts

 a
c
ti
v
is

t.
 A

s
 a

 b
u

s
-u

s
e

r,
 c

y
c
lis

t 
a

n
d

 p
e

d
e

s
tr

ia
n

, 
I 

o
b

je
c
t 

s
tr

o
n

g
ly

 o
n

 t
h

e
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
s
e

 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e

s
 w

ill
 a

d
d

 t
o

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

, 
e

s
p

e
c
ia

lly
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
e

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t.

I 
h

a
v
e

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
s
 a

s
 a

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t 
o

f 
O

x
fo

rd
s
h

ir
e

, 
w

h
o

 v
is

it
s
 O

x
fo

rd
 r

e
g

u
la

rl
y
 &

 a
s
 a

 h
o

rs
e

 o
w

n
e

r,
 f

o
r 

th
e

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

a
s
o

n
s
: 

* 
W

e
lf
a

re
 

o
f 

th
e

 h
o

rs
e

 *
 D

is
ru

p
ti
o

n
 o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 i
n

d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
e

m
is

s
io

n
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 l
o

w
e

r 
s
p

e
e

d
s
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
e

s
ig

n
a

te
d

 r
o

u
te

 *
 

H
e

a
lt
h

 &
 S

a
fe

ty
 o

f 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 e

v
e

n
t 

o
f 

a
 h

o
rs

e
 b

e
in

g
 s

p
o

o
k
e

d
 *

 H
o

rs
e

 a
lle

rg
ie

s
/c

le
a

n
in

g
 o

f 
u

ri
n

a
ti
o

n
 &

 f
a

e
c
e

s
, 

w
h

e
n

 s
tr

e
e

t 

c
le

a
n

in
g

 i
s
 u

n
d

e
r 

p
re

s
s
u

re
. 

* 
F

ly
 n

u
is

a
n

c
e

 *
 B

a
n

n
e

d
 i
n

 o
th

e
r 

m
a

jo
r 

c
it
ie

s
 w

o
rl
d

w
id

e

A
g

a
in

s
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 D

a
n

g
e

rs
 t

o
 h

o
rs

e
s
 a

n
d

 t
h

e
 p

u
b

lic
. 

C
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 f

o
r 

re
s
id

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 v
is

it
o

rs
. 

W
o

u
ld

 i
n

fl
u

e
n

c
e

 m
y
 d

e
c
is

io
n

 t
o

 v
is

it
 

a
n

d
 m

y
 o

p
in

io
n

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
, 

in
 a

 n
e

g
a

ti
v
e

 w
a

y
.

I 
s
h

o
u

ld
 l
ik

e
 t

o
 r

e
c
o

rd
 m

y
 s

tr
o

n
g

 o
b

je
c
ti
o

n
 t

o
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 T

o
 u

s
e

 h
o

rs
e

-d
ra

w
n

 c
a

rr
ia

g
e

s
 i
s
 a

 b
a

c
k
w

a
rd

 m
o

v
e

 a
n

d
 m

e
re

ly
 a

 

ro
m

a
n

ti
c
is

a
ti
o

n
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
a

lit
y
 i
s
 a

n
im

a
l 
d

is
c
o

m
fo

rt
 a

n
d

 c
ru

e
lt
y
.

A
s
 t

h
e

re
 i
s
 o

th
e

r 
tr

a
ff

ic
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 t
h

e
re

 w
ill

 b
e

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

b
le

 r
is

k
 t

o
 t

h
e

 s
a

fe
ty

 o
f 

th
e

 h
o

rs
e

s
. 

I 
fe

a
r 

th
a

t 
m

a
n

y
 w

ill
 b

e
 i
n

ju
re

d
,p

e
rh

a
p

s
 

k
ill

e
d

, 
b

y
 b

u
s
e

s
 a

n
d

 o
th

e
r 

v
e

h
ic

le
s
. 

T
h

e
re

 m
a

y
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 a
n

 i
n

c
re

a
s
e

d
 r

is
k
 t

o
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
. 

I 
a

m
 w

e
ll 

a
w

a
re

 o
f 

th
e

 a
c
c
id

e
n

t 
p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
o

f 

b
o

lt
in

g
 h

o
rs

e
s
 e

v
e

n
 b

e
fo

re
 w

e
 h

a
d

 m
o

to
ri
s
e

d
 t

ra
n

s
p

o
rt

. 
O

x
fo

rd
 i
s
 b

u
s
y
 e

v
e

n
 o

n
 s

u
n

d
a

y
s
 a

n
d

 i
s
 n

o
 l
o

n
g

e
r 

s
u

it
a

b
le

 f
o

r 
h

o
rs

e
-d

ra
w

n
 

c
a

rr
ia

g
e

s
.

T
o

ta
lly

 a
g

re
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

l,
 O

x
fo

rd
 n

e
e

d
s
 a

 m
o

re
 v

a
ri
e

d
 s

e
le

c
ti
o

n
 o

f 
o

ff
e

rs
 f

o
r 

to
u

ri
s
ts

 w
h

o
 c

o
m

e
 t

o
 o

u
r 

g
re

a
t 

c
it
y
 !

I 
o

b
je

c
t.

I 
d

o
n

't 
k
n

o
w

 h
o

w
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
ti
c
k
in

g
 'o

th
e

r'
. 

I 
a

m
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

, 
c
y
c
lis

t,
 c

a
r 

d
ri
v
e

r 
&

 r
e

s
id

e
n

t.
 U

s
in

g
 r

o
a

d
s
 o

n
 r

o
u

te
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

d
if
fi
c
u

lt
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
tr

a
ff

ic
 a

n
d

 w
it
h

 d
ri
v
e

rs
 &

to
u

ri
s
ts

 w
h

o
 h

a
v
e

 l
it
tl
e

 r
o

a
d

 s
e

n
s
e

. 
A

 h
-d

ra
w

n
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
 w

ill
 s

lo
w

 u
p

 t
ra

ff
ic

 a
n

d
 b

e
 v

e
ry

 

h
a

rd
 f

o
r 

c
y
c
lis

ts
 t

o
 n

e
g

o
ti
a

te
.W

ill
 s

o
m

e
o

n
e

 p
ic

k
 u

p
 d

u
n

g
 q

u
ic

k
ly

 s
o

 t
h

a
t 

b
ik

e
s
 d

o
n

't 
s
lip

 o
v
e

r 
w

h
e

n
 i
t's

 w
e

t 
?

 I
s
 t

h
e

 b
o

tt
le

n
e

c
k
 o

f 
th

e
 P

la
in

 

ro
u

n
d

a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
 b

e
s
t 

p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
a

 s
lo

w
, 

to
u

ri
s
t,

 m
o

n
e

y
-,

m
a

k
in

g
 e

n
te

rp
ri
s
e

 ?

A
 H

o
rs

e
 D

ra
w

n
 C

a
rr

ia
g

e
 o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
 i
n

 t
h

e
 c

it
y
 c

e
n

tr
e

 w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 a
n

 a
d

d
it
io

n
a

l 
d

ra
w

 f
o

r 
v
is

it
o

rs
 t

o
 t

h
e

 c
it
y
. 

T
h

e
 l
o

c
a

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 s

ta
n

d
 o

n
 B

ro
a

d

S
tr

e
e

t 
n

e
e

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 c

a
re

fu
lly

 c
o

n
s
id

e
re

d
. 

I 
n

o
te

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 'o
th

e
r 

s
id

e
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
a

d
 t

o
 t

h
e

 m
a

in
 r

o
w

 o
f 

s
h

o
p

s
 o

p
p

o
s
it
e

 t
h

e
 T

o
u

ri
s
t 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 

C
e

n
tr

e
' h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 s

u
g

g
e

s
te

d
. 

T
h

is
 s

e
e

m
s
 t

o
 b

e
 a

 r
e

a
s
o

n
a

b
le

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
a

s
 s

it
in

g
 t

h
e

 s
ta

n
d

 o
n

 t
h

e
 s

a
m

e
 s

id
e

 o
f 

th
e

 r
o

a
d

 a
s
 t

h
e

 s
h

o
p

s
 a

n
d

 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 C

e
n

tr
e

 w
o

u
ld

 c
a

u
s
e

 a
d

d
ti
o

n
a

l 
c
o

n
g

e
s
ti
o

n
 t

o
 w

h
a

t 
is

 a
lr
e

a
d

y
 a

 b
u

s
y
 a

re
a

.

I 
o

p
p

o
s
e

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

h
o

rs
e

 d
ra

w
n

 c
a

rr
ia

g
e

s
 f

o
r:

 a
n

im
a

l 
w

e
lf
a

re
, 

th
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
a

c
c
id

e
n

ts
, 

th
e

 c
o

s
t 

to
 t

h
e

 t
a

x
 p

a
y
e

r 
fo

r 
th

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 

e
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t,
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
 i
n

 t
h

e
 s

tr
e

e
t,

 a
n

d
 t

h
e

 f
a

te
 o

f 
in

ju
re

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

ti
re

d
 h

o
rs

e
s
. 

 T
h

is
 i
s
 a

 v
e

ry
 o

ld
 f

a
s
h

io
n

e
d

, 
c
ru

e
l,
 a

n
d

 u
n

n
e

c
e

s
s
a

ry
 f

o
rm

 

o
f 

e
n

te
rt

a
in

m
e

n
t.

 P
le

a
s
e

 s
e

e
 A

n
im

a
l 
A

id
's

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

s
 t

o
 w

h
y
 h

o
rs

e
 d

ra
w

n
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
s
 s

h
o

u
ld

 n
o

t 
b

e
 l
ic

e
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 O
x
fo

rd
 

h
tt

p
:/

/w
w

w
.a

n
im

a
la

id
.o

rg
.u

k
/h

/n
/C

A
M

P
A

IG
N

S
/o

th
e

r/
A

L
L

/4
4

4
/

I 
w

o
u

ld
 b

e
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 f

o
r 

th
e

 w
e

lf
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 h

o
rs

e
s
. 

T
h

e
 c

e
n

tr
e

 o
f 

th
e

 c
it
y
 i
s
 p

o
llu

te
d

, 
n

o
is

y
 a

n
d

 b
u

s
y
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 n

o
t 

g
o

o
d

 f
o

r 
th

e
 h

e
a

lt
h

 o
f 

th
e

 

p
e

o
p

le
, 

le
t 

a
lo

n
e

 a
 h

o
rs

e
 w

h
ic

h
 w

ill
 n

o
t 

b
e

 g
iv

e
n

 a
n

y
 c

h
o

ic
e

 a
b

o
u

t 
b

e
in

g
 t

h
e

re
. 

I 
th

in
k
 t

h
is

 i
s
 n

o
t 

a
 g

o
o

d
 a

d
v
e

rt
is

e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
h

o
w

 O
x
fo

rd
 

re
g

a
rd

s
 a

n
im

a
l 
w

e
lf
a

re
.

T
h

is
 i
s
 f

in
e

. 
C

a
n

't 
b

e
 a

n
y
 m

o
re

 a
n

n
o

y
in

g
 t

h
a

n
 t

h
e

 t
o

u
r 

b
u

s
e

s
.

I'm
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

th
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l.
 R

o
u

te
 i
n

c
lu

d
e

s
 s

tr
e

e
ts

 w
it
h

 s
e

ri
o

u
s
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 -

 i
t 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 c
ru

e
l 
to

 h
o

rs
e

s
 a

n
d

 d
a

n
g

e
ro

u
s
. 

In
 t

o
u

ri
s
t 

s
e

a
s
o

n
 p

a
v
e

m
e

n
ts

 o
ft

e
n

 o
v
e

rc
ro

w
d

e
d

 -
 p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
 f

o
rc

e
d

 i
n

to
 r

o
a

d
w

a
y
 (

o
v
e

r 
6

5
 y

o
u

n
g

 J
a

p
a

n
e

s
e

 v
is

it
o

rs
 c

o
u

n
te

d
 i
n

 o
n

e
 s

in
g

le
 g

ro
u

p
 i
n

 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t,

 n
e

a
r 

C
a

rf
a

x
, 

in
 J

u
ly

 2
0

1
1

).
 

Q
u

e
s

ti
o

n
:H

D
C

1
  

D
o

 y
o

u
 h

a
v

e
 a

n
y

 c
o

m
m

e
n

ts
 t

o
 m

a
k

e
 r

e
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 p

ro
p

o
s

a
l 

to
 l

ic
e

n
c

e
 a

 H
o

rs
e

 D
ra

w
n

 C
a

rr
ia

g
e

  
 Y

E
S

 /
 N

O
 /

 O
T

H
E

R

I 
fe

e
l 
th

a
t 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

h
o

rs
e

s
 t

o
 p

u
ll 

a
 c

a
rr

ia
g

e
 i
s
 i
n

 m
y
 o

p
in

io
n

 d
e

tr
im

e
n

ta
l 
to

 t
h

e
 h

o
rs

e
s
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 s

a
fe

ty
. 

th
e

 n
o

is
e

 o
f 

a
ll 

th
e

 b
u

s
e

s
 t

h
a

t 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
tr

e
e

ts
 c

o
u

ld
 s

c
a

re
 t

h
e

m
 c

a
u

s
in

g
 d

a
n

g
e

r 
to

 t
h

e
 h

o
rs

e
s
 a

n
d

 p
a

s
s
e

n
g

e
rs

. 
th

e
 t

o
x
ic

 f
u

m
e

s
 c

a
u

s
e

d
 b

y
 t

ra
ff

ic
 c

o
u

ld
 a

ff
e

c
t 

th
e

 s
a

id
 

h
o

rs
e

s
 h

e
a

lt
h

. 
th

e
re

's
 m

o
re

 e
n

o
u

g
h

 s
it
e

 s
e

e
in

g
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
 n

o
w

 c
a

u
s
in

g
 c

o
n

g
e

s
ti
o

n
 o

n
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
e

d
 r

o
u

te
s
 n

o
w

 w
it
h

o
u

t 
c
a

u
s
in

g
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 

d
e

la
y
s
 w

h
ic

h
 i
n

 t
u

rn
 c

a
u

s
e

 m
o

re
 p

o
llu

ti
o

n
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

s
e

 p
o

o
r 

a
n

im
a

ls
 w

o
u

ld
 h

a
v
e

 t
o

 e
n

d
u

re
.

W
h

ils
t 

c
a

re
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 t

a
k
e

n
 o

v
e

r 
th

e
 r

o
u

te
, 

I 
a

m
 c

o
n

c
e

rn
e

d
 L

o
n

g
w

a
ll 

S
tr

e
e

t 
- 

th
e

 P
la

in
 -

 O
ri
e

l 
S

tr
e

e
t/

K
in

g
 E

d
w

a
rd

 S
tr

e
e

t 
- 

T
u

rl
 S

tr
e

e
t 

w
ill

 

a
d

d
 t

o
 d

e
la

y
s
 f

o
r 

b
u

s
e

s
. 

F
ro

m
 t

h
is

 w
e

e
k
e

n
d

 t
h

e
re

 a
re

 f
e

w
e

r 
b

u
s
e

s
 u

s
in

g
 H

ig
h

 S
tr

e
e

t 
a

s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

 "
T

ra
n

s
fo

rm
 O

x
fo

rd
" 

v
is

io
n

 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

 

th
e

 e
n

v
ir
o

n
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
p

e
d

e
s
tr

ia
n

s
. 

T
h

is
 p

ro
p

o
s
a

ls
 w

o
u

ld
 a

p
p

e
a

r 
to

 b
e

 s
o

m
e

w
h

a
t 

a
t 

o
d

d
s
 w

it
h

 t
h

a
t 

v
is

io
n

. 
W

e
 s

tr
o

n
g

ly
 c

a
u

ti
o

n
 a

g
a

in
s
t 

h
e

 

H
ig

h
 S

tr
e

e
t 

b
e

in
g

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
u

te
.

I 
o

b
je

c
t 

to
 t

h
e

 p
ro

p
o

s
a

l 
o

n
 g

ro
u

n
d

s
 o

f 
p

u
b

lic
 h

e
a

lt
h

 a
n

d
 h

y
g

ie
n

e
: 

w
h

e
re

 t
h

e
 h

o
rs

e
 s

ta
n

d
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 B

ro
a

d
, 

u
ri
n

e
 w

ill
 r

u
n

 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
w

a
y
, 

in
to

 

th
e

 p
u

b
lic

 d
ra

in
a

g
e

 s
y
s
te

m
, 

c
a

u
s
e

 s
m

e
ll 

a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

fl
ie

s
. 

F
a

e
c
e

s
 l
e

ft
 i
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
a

d
w

a
y
, 

o
n

 t
h

e
 r

o
u

te
, 

w
ill

 b
e

 t
ro

d
d

e
n

 i
n

to
 t

h
e

 p
a

v
in

g
, 

ru
n

 

o
v
e

r 
b

y
 v

e
h

ic
le

s
, 

a
n

d
 i
m

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 t

o
 c

le
a

r 
u

p
, 

a
s
 t

h
e

 a
p

p
lic

a
n

t 
c
la

im
s
 h

e
 w

ill
 d

o
 a

t 
th

e
 e

n
d

 o
f 

e
v
e

ry
 d

a
y
. 

T
h

e
y
 w

ill
 a

ls
o

 s
m

e
ll 

a
n

d
 a

tt
ra

c
t 

fl
ie

s
.

95



96

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX SIX

97



98



APPENDIX SEVEN

99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX EIGHT

113



114

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX NINE

115



116

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 
 
 
 
                                                                                    
 
To:  General Purposes Licensing Committee  
  
Date:  19 October 2011        Item No:  
  
Report of:   Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report:  Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
Purpose of report:  To inform the Committee of the requirement for a new 
“unmet demand survey” of Hackney Carriage vehicles, if the regulated 
number of Hackney Carriage vehicles is to be maintained.    
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield  
Legal: Daniel Smith  
 
Policy Framework: A vibrant and sustainable economy 
 
Recommendation(s):   
 
The Committee is recommended to: 
(i) determine whether it is minded to recommend Council maintain a 
regulated number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses as set out in the 
Council’s Policy Framework; and 
(ii) if minded to recommend Council to maintain a regulated number of 
Hackney Carriage vehicles, to authorise the Head of Environmental 
Development to tender for a new unmet demand survey to be carried out 
in 2012 following the guidelines set by the Department of. 

 
 
Introduction 
 
1. There is no statutory requirement to limit the number of Hackney Carriage 

vehicle licences issued within the City, but historically the Council has 
opted to, as set out in the Council’s Policy Framework.  There are 
currently 107 licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles operating within the city.  
Under Section 16 of the Transport Act 1985 an Authority can only limit the 
number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licences granted if it is satisfied that 
“there is no significant demand for the services of Hackney Carriage 
vehicles (within Oxford City), which is unmet”. The effect of this is that a 
refusal to grant a Hackney Carriage proprietor’s licence, on the grounds of 

 

Agenda Item 7

117



 

 

the numbers of Hackney Carriages within the area, could only be justified 
if the Council could demonstrate that there is no significant demand which 
remains unmet for Hackney Carriage vehicle services. 

 
2. If an Authority has a regulated number of licenses an “unmet demand 

survey” is required to be carried out regularly to demonstrate that there is 
not an unmet demand for Hackney Carriage vehicles.   An interval of 3 
years has been regarded as the maximum reasonable period between 
such surveys. 

 
3. The last unmet demand survey was carried out towards the latter part of 

2009 and showed that there was no unmet demand. The survey 
conclusions were presented to the General Purposes Licensing 
Committee in June 2010. The Committee recommended that Council 
retain the limit on the number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses and 
agreed that a further demand survey be commissioned in 2012. In July 
2010 Council resolved to follow the recommendation and maintain the 
policy of quantity control of licensed Hackney Carriage vehicles.      

 
4. If Council were to decide not to maintain a regulated number of Hackney 

Carriage vehicles, or an unmet demand survey shows the need of a 
significant increase in licenses, consideration of the current available taxi-
rank space must to be taken into account.  Oxfordshire County Council 
would need to be consulted in order to agree and approve any new taxi-
rank that may be required.  

 
5. Correspondence from the City of Oxford Taxicab Trade Association 

(COLTA) regarding the regulation of the number of Hackney Carriage 
vehicle licenses issued by this Authority is attached at Appendix One. 

 
Legislation  
 
6. Under Section 16 of the Transport Act 1985 a Licensing Authority may set 

a regulated number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses if, but only if, 
there is no significant demand which is unment.  As already stated in 
Paragraphs 1 and 2 of this report, if an Authority has regulated the number 
of Hackney Carriage vehicles, an unmet demand survey must be carried 
out on a regular basis.   

 
7. The Department for Transport has set out in a report titled ‘Taxi and 

Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best Practice Guidance’ guidance on what 
an Authority should do if it decides to have in place a regulated number of 
Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses.  The relevant section of the 
Department of Transport guidance is attached at Appendix Two.  

 
8. The Department of Transport guidance states that ‘the department also 

expects the justification for any policy on quantity restrictions to be 
included in the Local Transport Plan.   

 
 
 

118



 

 

Financial Implications 
 
10. Previous unmet demand surveys have been funded by the City of Oxford 

Licensing Taxi Association (COLTA) members.  COLTA collected the 
payment from its members and passed the payment to the Council who 
then paid for the survey on completion.  

 
11. At full Council in 2008 it was decided that any future surveys carried out 

should come from the fee of a Hackney Carriage vehicle licence.  The 
Hackney Carriage vehicle licence fee was increased accordingly on 1st 
April 2011; therefore there are no financial implications to the Council as 
there are sufficient funds in the Taxi Licensing budget to pay for a new 
survey if the Council decides to commission a new unmet demand survey. 

 
Recommendations 
 
12. The Committee is recommended to: 

 
(i) determine whether it is minded to recommend Council maintain 

a regulated number of Hackney Carriage vehicle licenses as set 
out in the Council’s Policy Framework;  

 
(ii) if minded to recommend Council to maintain a regulated number of 

Hackney Carriage vehicles, to authorise the Head of Environmental 
Development to tender for a new unmet demand survey to be carried 
out in 2012, following the guidance set by the Department of 
Transport. 

. 
  
 
 
Name and contact details of author:  Jill Cramer 
      Senior Licensing Officer 
              Tel: (01865) 252257 
                        Email: jcramer@oxford.gov.uk 
Background papers:  
 
Appendix One: Correspondence from COLTA 
Appendix Two: Department of Transport “Best Practice” Guidance 
 
 
Version: 1.0 

119



120

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX ONE 

From: AGW WOODWARD [agw.woodward@btinternet.com] 
Sent: 28 September 2011 09:37 
To: CRAMER Jill; ALISON Julian 
Subject: Re: Unmet demand survey 

Hi Jill 

My impression of the 2009/10 decision by councillors regarding to survey or 
not to survey, was that Oxford City Council resolved (with all party support), to 
adopt a long term committment to survey driven regulation for the following 
reasons:

1) In order to assist in the reduction of pollution and vehicle useage within the 
city centre (evidence at that time stressed that each cab produces around 202 
gms/ Km of CO2). 

2) Each additional ten hackney carriage plate licenses issued would increase 
the CO2 footprint of the hackney carriage trade by 9.5%, this would appear to 
observers as a rather stange move when we consider the extremely 
successful efforts of the local authority to reduce the number of buses within 
the city centre, strange only then to open the floodgates to possibly hundreds 
of additional cabs, Local Authorities who have deregulated include Sheffield 
who after deregulation moved from 300 plates to 830 an increase in CO2 of 
around 177% , once plate numbers are increased its a policy of no return 
where plates cannot be taken back unless an offence has been committed & 
then only when an unmet demand survey has been undertaken again, Even 
though Sheffield council resolved to go back to regulation they have found it 
virtually impossible to reduce the number of plates. 

3) Reading borough council, who had originally deregulated, found that the 
move subsequently resulted in mass overcrowding of rank space & were 
forced to provide additonal space for hackney carriage ranks, a lease 
agreement had to then be entered into in order to provide private land for 
additional ranking space after it was realised that the rail station rank had a 
100% shortfall in facilities for cabs waiting to ply for hire. 

4) The decision by Oxford City Council in 2009/10 to move to regular unmet 
demand surveys was as a result of Colta pursuading its membership to 
reduce the CO2 footprint of Oxford's Hackney Carriage fleet, this has been 
carried out in accordance to the conditions that were set out by councillors, ie. 
particulate trap exhaust systems on pre 2003 hackney carriages with further 
initiatives over the next few years, as a part of that 'agreement' Colta's 
memebership agreed to a scheme wherebye the cost of future surveys would 
be taken as a surcharge on annual hackney carriage plate license fees, that 
scheme has already commenced, such iniative has the full support of HM 
governments 'best practice guidence'. 

121



During 2010/11 the trade has seen a downturn in taxi usage of around 40%, 
such loss of business has not witnessed since the 1980's, in fact, many within 
the trade who were operating in those days are of the opinion that the scale of 
this downturn has surpassed all previously known records. 
We only have to visit the city's taxi ranks to witness the often ninety to 120 
minute wait by taxi drivers for the next job, and visit the petrol forcourts to 
witness the unsustainable cost of filling a taxi fuel tank for £80+, in a cab 
which returns an average of just 23 miles per gallon or 26 pence per every 
mile, the use of purpose built taxis was as a result of agreement to retain 
numerical control of hackney carriages back in 1989. 

Anyone who who owns a private car must have realised a vast increase in the 
cost of insurance for their private vehicle, the cost to a hackney carriage 
proprietor in Oxford has increase since 2009 by an average of 70%, some 
paying in excess of £2000 per year. 

There is a perception within the hackney carriage trade, that the city councils 
decision in 2009/10 to hold regular unmet demand surveys (for which plate 
'levies' have already been introduced), would allow proprietors to make 
positive, sound business decisions to invest in newer or brand new purpose 
built vehicles costing them up to £34,000 (around £800 per month in 
repayments), those proprietors with pre 2003 cabs, have invested in 
particulate trap exhaust systems costing up to £1600. 

It is difficult to understand how a decison by Oxford City Council (an all party 
resolution) just three years ago, could possibly be reconsidered and or 
overturned following such intense investment by the trade in support with the 
agreements made at that time & also at a time when the trade is facing 
meltdown.

AlanWoodward 

City of Oxford Licensed Taxidriver Association 

122



APPENDIX TWO

123



124



125



126

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 
 

 

 
To: General Purposes Licensing Committee 
 
Date: 19 October 2011 Item No:    
 
Report of:  Head of Environmental Development 
 
Title of Report:  Designation of Streets for Street Trading – 

Consultation Responses 
 
 

 
Summary and Recommendations 

 
 
Purpose of report:  To report back to Committee on the responses to the 
public consultation on the proposal to designate all streets in Oxford 
City as Consent streets for the purposes of Street Trading. 
 
 
Report Approved by:  
 
Finance: Paul Swaffield (Approved) 
Legal: Daniel Smith (Approved) 
 
Policy Framework: Vibrant, sustainable economy 
 
Recommendations: 
Committee is recommended to: 
 
(a) consider responses to the consultation, 
 
(b) resolve to recommend that Council designates all streets within the 
Oxford City Council boundary as Consent Streets for the purposes of 
the Street Trading Scheme with effect from 1st April 2012, 
 
(c) remove the designation of the Covered Market Walkways, the 
Clarendon Centre Walkways and the Westgate Centre Walkways, 
 
(d) request the Head of Environmental Development to include a fee for  
daytime trading for sites outside the City centre and for community / 
charitable events in the review of fees and charges for 2011/12. 
 

 

Agenda Item 8

127



 

 

Introduction 
 
1. At its meeting on the 15th June 2011 General Purposes Licensing 

Committee received a report on the Designation of Streets for Street 
Trading.  The purpose of the report was to address inconsistencies in the 
designation of streets under the current scheme. Committee considered 
two options for extending the street trading scheme. Option 1 was to retain 
the designation of Prohibited and Consent Streets and designate the 
remainder of the streets in Oxford as Consent Streets.  Option 2 was to 
designate all streets in Oxford (including the City centre) as Consent 
Streets.  Committee resolved: 

 
(1) To recommend Council designates all streets within the Oxford City 

Council boundary as Consent Streets for the purposes of the Street 
Trading Scheme; 

 
(2) To remove the designation of the Covered Market Walkways, the 

Clarendon Centre Walkways and the Westgate Centre Walkways; 
 

(3) To authorise the Head of Environmental Development to carry out the 
required consultation as set out in paragraph 13 of the report; 

 
(4) To receive a further report to consider responses to the consultation 

before making a recommendation to Council. 
 
2. This report summarises the responses to the consultation. 
 
Consultation 
 
3. The statutory public notice was printed in the Oxford Times on Thursday 

11th August 2011 inviting views of the proposal. 
 
4. A letter was sent to 70 stakeholders inviting their views.  Amongst these 

were; 
 

• Clarendon Shopping Centre 

• Existing traders at sites on or adjacent to undesignated streets 

• Existing weekly and annual street traders 

• Oxford Castle 

• Oxfordshire County Council Highways 

• Oxfordshire Fire & Rescue 

• Planning 

• Templar Square Shopping Centre 

• Thames Valley Police 

• Westgate Shopping Centre 
 
5. An email was sent to ‘Councillors All Members’ on Friday 12th August with 

an attachment of the Public Notice and a briefing note.  A press release 
was issued on Tuesday 16th August 2011. 

 

128



 

 

Summary of responses 
 
6. Two responses were received via the Oxford City Council website.  Both 

the respondents did not agree with expanding the designation of consent 
streets and both did not agree with removing the current designation of the 
Covered Market Walkways, the Clarendon Centre Walkways and the 
Westgate Centre Walkways.  One respondent commented “can’t see any 
good reason for obstructing car advertisers” and did not see how 
advertising a car for sale could be antisocial.  The other respondent wrote 
“the centre of Oxford is already a depressingly commercialised place with 
numerous stalls selling cheap tourist garbage.  We don’t need more of it.” 

 
7. Four written responses were also received (Appendix).  In summary: 
 

• Christ Church is in favour of extending the definition of Consent Street 
to all streets in the City but is against the reclassifying of Prohibited 
Streets 

 

• Pembroke College, St Aldates Church and Commonwealth House are 
strongly against the reclassification and urge the Council to adjust its 
proposed amendments to move to two categories of designation of 
streets: one being 'Consent' Streets and the other being 'Prohibited' 
Streets 

 

• Oxford Streets for People and Headington Action were concerned in 
particular that costs and bureaucratic paperwork would make it 
unviable for local activities such as street parties, farmers’ markets and 
festivals. They also ask that street trading regulations do not apply to 
park based events. 

 

• Alan Joyce expressed his concern that his business could no longer be 
viable and suggests that street trading fees be commensurate with 
business rates. 

 
Officer comments 

 
8. The two responses received via the website were against extending the 

designation of Consent Street to the whole of the City and against 
removing the designation of the shopping centre walkways.  They do not 
give reasons for their views. 

 
9. Christ Church, Pembroke College, St Aldate’s Church and Commonwealth 

House made a joint response. They are opposed to redesignating the 
whole of the City as Consent Street and support retaining the designation 
of Prohibited Street and extending the designation of Consent Street to the 
whole of the City.  This was one of the options considered by Committee 
on 15 June. 

 
10. The Street Trading Policy contains the criteria for deciding applications for 

Street Trading Consents and makes it clear that there is a process of 

129



 

 

consultation to adhere to, before any new pitches are approved.  If the 
current distinctions of Consent Street and Prohibited Street are maintained 
this may create an expectation that all applications for street trading 
consents in Consent Streets are likely to be successful.  It also does not 
give the flexibility in allowing street trading to take place during special 
events in streets that may previously have been prohibited. 

 
11. If all streets become Consent Streets, then existing traders on or adjacent 

streets that are currently undesignated will require a Street Trading 
Consent.  Alan Joyce is the only one of such traders to respond to the 
consultation.  He is concerned that should the scheme be extended with 
the current Consent fees being applied to all traders then his business 
would not be financially viable.  From the content of his letter, it could be 
interpreted that he operates as a “rounds man” and would be exempt for 
the requirement for a Street Trading Consent.  However, this does raise 
the question of setting an appropriate fee for those that are outside the 
scope of the current scheme.  It is suggested that a lower fee be applied 
for daytime trading for sites outside the City centre.  Officers would 
propose an appropriate fee for consideration at the annual fees and 
charges review that will be considered at the February Committee. 

 
12. Oxford Streets for People and Headington Action raised issues with street 

parties, farmers’ markets and park based events.  Small charitable 
activities associated with street parties and community events, fairs etc 
within parks do not require a Street Trading Consent.  However, farmers’ 
markets held on Consent Streets would require a consent.  Headington 
Farmers’ Market is already treated as a community/charitable event for its 
Road Closure application fee.  It is suggested that it is treated similarly for 
the purposes of street trading and that an appropriate fee be proposed for 
consideration at the annual fees and charges review that will be 
considered at the February Committee. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
13. In 1986 the Council resolved that Schedule 4 to the Local Government 

(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982 should apply to its area.  Under 
Schedule 4 of the Act the Council can manage street trading by 
designating streets as ‘Consent Streets’, ‘Licence Streets’ or ‘Prohibited 
Streets’. 

 
14. Should the Council decide to designate or change the designation of 

streets within its area, it must follow the procedure laid down in Schedule 4 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1982. 

 
15. The procedure to be followed before the Council can formally change the 

designation of streets is as follows; 
 

• The publication of a notice of intention to pass the resolution in a local 
newspaper and serve copies on the Chief Officer of Police and on the 
County Council as Highway Authority. 

130



 

 

• A period of 28 days must elapse from the time of the initial publication 
of the notice to the time the Council passes the resolution confirming 
the proposed designation. This is to allow objections to be made, which 
must be considered before a resolution is passed. 

• Once the resolution is passed, the Council must publish notice of the 
fact on 2 consecutive weeks in a local newspaper. The first publication 
date must be no later than 28 days before the date specified in the 
resolution as the date on which the designation comes into force. 

 
Financial Implications 
 
16. The Council collects licence fees for the Street Trading function.  Fees are 

reviewed annually prior to the Council setting its budget.  Predicted income 
from licence fees is included in the Council’s budget. 

 
Recommendations 
 
17. Committee is recommended to: 

 
(a) consider responses to the consultation, 
 
(b) resolve to recommend that Council designates all streets within the 
Oxford City Council boundary as Consent Streets for the purposes of the 
Street Trading Scheme with effect from 1st April 2012, 
 
(c) remove the designation of the Covered Market Walkways, the 
Clarendon Centre Walkways and the Westgate Centre Walkways, 
 
(d) request the Head of Environmental Development to include a fee for  
daytime trading for sites outside the City centre and for community / 
charitable events in the review of fees and charges for 2011/12. 

 
 
Name and contact details of author: 
Dawn Cox 
dcox@oxford.gov.uk 
01865 252375 
 
Background papers:  
Version number: 

 
 
 

131



132

This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148

This page is intentionally left blank



GENERAL PURPOSES LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

Wednesday 15 June 2011 
 
COUNCILLORS PRESENT: Councillors Cook (Vice-Chair), Campbell, Clarkson, 
Goddard, Gotch, Keen and Royce. 
 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND SUBSTITUTIONS 
 

Apologies were received from Councillors Brundin (Councillor Brett to 
substitute), Van Coulter and Williams. 
 

In the absence of Councillor Brundin (Chair), Councillor Cook (Vice Chair) 
chaired the meeting. 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

None made. 
 
 
3. HACKNEY CARRIAGES AND PRIVATE HIRE LICENSING SUB-

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 

Councillor Royce asked for this item to be included on the agenda.  She 
explained to the Committee that she wanted to ensure that women’s views were 
represented at bodies such as the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing 
Sub Committee. Women were the main users of taxis in Oxford, and therefore it 
was important for female views to be represented.  There should be at least one 
woman on any panel at all times. 
 

Councillor Cook pointed out that nominations to the various Committees 
were made by the political groups, and that it would be best to take up this issue 
via those groups. Daniel Smith (Legal) added that the Hackney Carriage sub 
committee had to be politically balanced. Substitutions were permitted, but they 
had to be by someone from the “parent “committee, and from the same political 
party as the member being substituted.  
 

Resolved that this issue should be taken forwards via the political groups. 
 
 
4. UPDATE ON TAXI LICENSING ACTIVITY JANUARY 2011 - MARCH 

2011 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended), concerning taxi licensing activity between January 
and March 2011.  Julian Alison (Licensing Team Leader) presented the report to 
the Committee, explained the background and answered questions. He 
explained that the onus was on applicants to prove that they were a “fit and 
proper” person to hold a licence, and that they met the criteria required by the 
Council. Each application was carefully processed. Criminal Records Bureau 
(CRB) checks would pick up anything that had been omitted from the form. 

Agenda Item 9

149



 

However, the Committee felt that it was important for applicants without any 
convictions to state this fact on their application form, not simply leave the boxes 
blank.  
 

Resolved:- 
 

(1) To note the contents of the report; 
 
(2) To note all comments made. 

 
 
5. UPDATE ON REQUEST TO LICENCE A HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGE 

AS AN OMNIBUS 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) concerning a request to licence a horse drawn 
carriage as an omnibus.  The applicant, Mr Kevin Merry, attended the meeting 
and answered questions from the Committee. He explained the proposed route 
through Oxford and plans to clear any manure from the roads on a daily basis.  
The horse drawn omnibus was different from a taxi - the fare paid would cover 
the fixed sightseeing journey. The fare would be approximately £40 for a 25 
minute journey.  
 

Daniel Smith (Legal) added that concerns had been expressed by the 
joint committee of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle operators. If the 
Committee agreed to the proposal, the Council would make a bye-law permitting 
this scheme to operate, after which there would be a period of consultation. 
Councillor Cook suggested that the joint committee be informed how the scheme 
was intended to run, and then if they so chose, they could make any objections 
as part of the normal consultation process.  Mr Merry should be invited to the 
next meeting of the licensed taxi trade so that they could address any concerns 
to him, and he could answer any questions. 
 

Resolved:- 
 

(1) To note the progress made with Oxfordshire County Council with regard 
to the proposed Horse Drawn Carriage Scheme; 

 
(2) To approve the level of fee determined to be reasonable for the guide, 

driver and proprietor of a Horse Drawn Carriage; 
 

(3) To recommend Council to make the appropriate Bye-laws; 
 

(4) To authorise the Head of Environmental Development and the Head of 
Law and Governance to carry out the statutory advertisement of the Bye-
laws. 

 
 
6. CLOSED CIRCUIT TELEVISION IN LICENSED VEHICLES - UPDATE 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) giving an update on the progress of the CCTV 
initiative that was implemented on 1st March 2011. 
 

150



 

Resolved to note the current position. 
 
 
7. HACKNEY CARRIAGE TARIFF - APPLICATION FOR INCREASE 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) giving consideration to the proposal that an automatic 
increase to the Hackney Carriage Tariff of 20 pence per journey be applied upon 
the price of a litre of diesel fuel reaching £1.50. 
 

Councillor Cook expressed doubt about this. Fuel costs were complicated, 
and he did not think that the cost of fares should vary from day to day. The taxi 
trade could ask for an increase in tariffs at any time should there be a significant 
rise in the price of diesel fuel.  It would be preferable for an approach to be made 
to the Committee, with evidence of prices, and a request for a specific increase, 
rather than creating a system that would make pricing over complicated. 
 

Therefore the recommendations were not approved. 
 
 
8. PAVEMENT STALL SIZE 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) that detailed proposals for the design, layout and size 
of street trading pitches, with special reference to pitches that had the capacity to 
overhang the 2m x 1m curtilage. Tony Payne and Andy Thompson (Licensing) 
introduced this item to the Committee and explained the background. A range of 
manufacturers provided a standard stall measuring 2.4m by 1.3m, which was 
easily obtained. This slight increase in size, from the current 2m by 1m, would 
make if easier to achieve a more uniform appearance of stalls across the City. 
The Committee felt that, if this was agreed, there should be no supernumerary 
stands and displays extending beyond the stalls agreed curtilage would need to 
be agreed by condition. 
 

Resolved:- 
 

(1) To grant delegated authority to the Head of Environmental Development 
to decide and authorise variations to stall sizes where it is reasonable and 
appropriate to do so, having regard to the location of the stall and the type 
of goods to be sold, up to a maximum size of 2.4m x 1.3m (8ft x 4ft); 

 
(2) To agree the prescriptive criteria for a street trading stall as set out in 

Appendix 3 of the report; 
 

(3) To approve that the Head of Environmental Development only be required 
to refer the decision to Committee for approval if representations are 
received from interested parties that a stall should not be increased in 
size or the conditions varied. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

151



 

9. DESIGNATION OF STREET FOR STREET TRADING 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report seeking 
approval for an amendment to the Street Trading Policy in relation to the 
designation of streets in the City of Oxford.  
 
Resolved:- 
 

(1) To recommend Council designates all streets within the Oxford City 
Council boundary as Consent Streets for the purposes of the Street 
Trading Scheme; 

 
(2) To remove the designation of the Covered Market Walkways, the 

Clarendon Centre Walkways and the Westgate Centre Walkways: 
 

(3) To authorise the Head of Environmental Development to carry out the 
required consultation as set out in paragraph 13 of the report; 

 
(4) To receive a further report to consider responses to the consultation 

before making a recommendation to Council. 
 
 
10. AMENDMENT TO FEES AND CHARGES 2011/12 
 

The Head of Environmental Development submitted a report (previously 
circulated, now appended) that sought to amend the fee for a weekly street 
trading fee in order to rectify an error. 
 
Resolved to approve the amendment of the fee for a one week street trading 
consent to £155. 
 
 
11. MINUTES 
 

Resolved to confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meetings held 
on 1st March and 19th May 2011. 
 
 
12. DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 
 

Resolved to:- 
 

(1) Note that the next meetings would be held on 19th October 2011 and 
22nd February 2012,  

(2) Request that the meetings followed on immediately after meetings of the 
Licensing and Gambling Acts Committee without a break between them. 

 
 
The meeting started at 6.00 pm and ended at 7.15 pm 

152


	Agenda
	3 Update on Taxi Licensing Activity April 2011- August 2011
	4 Closed Circuit Television in Licensed Vehicles - Conditions to be attached to Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicles
	5 Draft Sex Establishment Licensing Policy
	GPLic-DraftSexEstablishmentLicensingPolicy-Appendix

	6 Horse Drawn Carriages - Consultation
	APPENDICES 1-5 - HORSE DRAWN CARRIAGES (2)
	APPENDIX 5 - CONSULTATION RESPONSES
	GPLic-HorseDrawnCarriage-Report-Appendix-6
	GPLic-HorseDrawnCarriage-Report-Appendix-7
	GPLic-HorseDrawnCarriage-Report-Appendix-8
	GPLic-HorseDrawnCarriage-Report-Appendix-9

	7 Hackney Carriage Unmet Demand Survey
	GPLic-UnmetDemand-Report-Appendix-1
	GPLic-UnmetDemand-Report-Appendix-2

	8 Designation of Streets for Street Trading - Consultation Responses
	GPLic-DesignationOfStreets-Appendix

	9 Minutes

